
In The Matter Of:

Delaware Department of Natural Resources
and Environmental Control

In Re: Agency Regulations - Order Number 36
January 7, 2013

Wilcox & Fetzer, Ltd.
1330 King Street

Wilmington, DE   19801
email: depos@wilfet.com, web: www.wilfet.com

phone:  302-655-0477, fax:  302-655-0497

To open files, click on the desired file type in bookmark on left.
For quick saving or searching multiple files, click attachments tab (or paperclip) on left.

For best viewing/searching, use Adobe Reader/Acrobat ver. 9 or higher
(www.adobe.com).


	Schedule A Reporter
	Files
	ScreenView Transcript (view/search)
	Condensed Transcript (view/search/print) 
	Full Size Format (view/search/print) 
	ASCII Transcript File
	LexisNexis TextMap File





Page 1


 1                  THE STATE OF DELAWARE
 2           DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES AND
 3                  ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
 4
 5     In Re:                         )
                                      )
 6     Public Hearing for Review of   )
       Agency Regulations - Executive )
 7     Order Number 36                )
       Sussex County                  )
 8                                    )
 9
10
11               TRANSCRIPT OF PUBLIC HEARING
12
                Sussex Central High School
13              26026 Patriots Way
                Georgetown, Delaware  19947
14              January 7, 2013
                6:12 p.m.
15
16
17       CONDUCTED BY:  DAVID SMALL - Deputy Secretary
       of DNREC
18
19
20
21
22
                       WILCOX & FETZER
23   1330 King Street, Wilmington, Delaware 1980
                        (302) 655-0477
24                      www.wilfet.com


Wilcox & Fetzer Ltd.







Page 2


 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, good


 2     evening, and thank you all for coming out


 3     tonight.  My name is David Small, I'm the Deputy


 4     Secretary for the Delaware Department of Natural


 5     Resources and Environmental Control, and we're


 6     here tonight, really, to listen to you all.


 7                  If you'll indulge me for a few


 8     minutes, let me give you a little bit of


 9     background.  If you're here, you obviously know


10     a little something about the purpose for this


11     evening.  In June, Governor Markell signed an


12     Executive Order directing all of the Cabinet


13     agencies to take a look at their regulations and


14     see if there was a way to reduce the burden on


15     individuals in the business community here in


16     the state of Delaware.


17                  There's been a lot of interest over


18     the years in this topic.  There was some


19     legislative interest in this topic last -- last


20     year.  And so, as a result, the Governor signed


21     the Executive Order.  It's available online.


22     I'm not sure if we have copies here with us, but


23     we can certainly get you copies if you haven't


24     been able to take a look.
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 1                  So, beginning in the fall, there


 2     were agencies that went through a very similar


 3     process to this, and they are in the process of


 4     looking at public comments and reviewing their


 5     own regulations.


 6                  And I have to tell you, and you all


 7     probably know it, DNREC certainly is a very


 8     diverse agency, and we touch a lot of different


 9     functions and activities.  And so, we are in the


10     midst of reviewing these regulations, all of


11     these regulations ourselves.  And we're trying


12     to do this with an eye towards maintaining


13     environmental standards.


14                  And the reason I say that is a


15     number of our programs are delegated to us from


16     Federal agencies; notably, EPA, as you might


17     expect, in the areas of, particularly, of air,


18     waste, hazardous waste, and water.  And so, in


19     order to -- excuse me -- maintain those


20     programs, we have to maintain regulations that


21     are adapted at the local level, but adopt


22     Federal standards.


23                  And so, one of the things we have


24     done, and are continuing to do, is look at not
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 1     so much those standards, necessarily, but maybe


 2     how we meet those standards; looking for


 3     flexibility in doing that, and looking at some


 4     processes.


 5                  And I can tell you that, you know,


 6     over the years, we've engaged a number of


 7     techniques to try to be more efficient in our


 8     permitting process and reduce turnaround times


 9     for folks that are waiting on permits.  Some


10     programs have really pushed this issue and done


11     very well.  In our air program, for example, and


12     some of our water programs.  You know, we are


13     down to about 50 percent turnaround times and


14     waiting times from where we were a number of


15     years ago.


16                  So, but this process really is


17     important to hear from you all.  And we're here


18     tonight, we will be in Kent County next Monday


19     evening at Delaware State University.  And we


20     can give you the details, Martin Luther King


21     Center there.  And then on the 22nd of this


22     month, we will be, at the same time, 6 p.m., and


23     it's a Tuesday evening, we will be at the Carvel


24     Building in Wilmington, in the auditorium up on
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 1     the mezzanine level.


 2                  And beyond that, if you -- you


 3     know, this process isn't closed tonight.  And if


 4     you think that you forgot to say something and


 5     you get home, please feel free to send us


 6     comments.  We're accepting written comments


 7     until March 1.  And at that point, then, we will


 8     take everything that we've gotten from our


 9     public hearings, from the written comments that


10     we've received, and you can -- you can submit


11     those in writing or you can submit them


12     electronically online from our website.


13                  And that, in combination with our


14     own review, we'll be developing a report, as I


15     mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the


16     Governor, with recommended changes on a number


17     of regulatory fronts.


18                  And we've been thinking about


19     those.  We have -- you know, we've been looking


20     at our Coastal Zone regs, for example.  We see


21     some unevenness there.  In Sussex County, in the


22     wetlands and subaqueous lands permit, again, not


23     so much the standards that we have, but maybe in


24     creating some efficiencies, and maybe a little
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 1     bit more certainty in those programs.


 2                  So, you know, again, we're


 3     interested in hearing from you on those and any


 4     of a number of other subjects.  Let me just


 5     mention, you know, we have a diverse agency.  We


 6     have our Division of Energy and Climate that


 7     administers regulations on our Green Energy


 8     Fund, for example.  This is a program that if


 9     you are a Delmarva Power customer, for example,


10     you can apply for it and receive funding for


11     installation of renewables.


12                  We have our Division of Air, which


13     is responsible for monitoring our state's air


14     quality and regulating any of the number of


15     sources.  It's been a very aggressive and


16     effective program, and quite honestly, we think


17     we need some help from EPA to help us with some


18     of the states to the west of us, for a level


19     playing field.  But that certainly is a very


20     large volume of regulations that touch a lot of


21     different sources of air emissions.


22                  Our Division of Waste and Hazardous


23     Substances regulates solid waste, it regulates


24     hazardous waste.  Things, if you're in the waste
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 1     hauling business, for example, you need a permit


 2     from us for transportation of that material.  If


 3     you handle hazardous waste or if you store it or


 4     if you dispose of it, for example, you need some


 5     oversight from the Department.


 6                  We also are responsible for


 7     cleaning up legacy contamination sites.


 8     Superfund sites are the worst ones.  Those are


 9     established by EPA, and the State, since 1990,


10     has had a program to oversee the cleanup of


11     sites that aren't quite as contaminated, but


12     still need to be addressed in order to minimize


13     impacts on public health and the environment.


14                  We have our Division of Water,


15     which oversees the discharge of wastewater in


16     any of a manner of functions.  That could be a


17     discharge into surface water, such as rivers,


18     streams, or bays, and also, septic systems.


19     Some of you may have that on your mind this


20     evening, I know we've just gone through a


21     process recently.  As well as spray irrigation,


22     there are a number of sites that are operated by


23     facilities that are operated by the County, as


24     well as municipalities and the private sector,
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 1     private wastewater utilities, that -- that


 2     operate spray irrigation facilities.  Those two


 3     are subject to regulation oversight and


 4     permitting by the agency.


 5                  Wells, if any of you have


 6     individual wells on your property, either for


 7     residential purposes or for business purposes,


 8     we oversee the design, construction, and


 9     installation of those wells, along -- and I


10     mentioned septic systems earlier.


11                  The Division of Fish and Wildlife,


12     I don't know if any of you are anglers or


13     hunters, or otherwise interested in habitat and


14     wildlife and fisheries, but there is a body of


15     regulation, as you might well expect, that comes


16     with managing those natural resources.  And you


17     know, we have advisory councils in the agency


18     that we work very closely with on development of


19     those regulations that may mean size and creel


20     limits for Weakfish and any of a number of other


21     species, but those are regulatory actions that


22     the agency takes routinely, as well.


23                  Our Division of Parks has


24     regulations in place to oversee its park
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 1     activities.  So, you get a sense.  Division of


 2     Watershed Stewardship, for example, stormwater


 3     requirements.  There was legislation passed in


 4     1990 overseeing stormwater, getting a better


 5     handle on the impacts, potentially, to our


 6     ground and surface waters from surface -- from


 7     stormwater.  And that program's been in place,


 8     in Sussex County the program is delegated to the


 9     Sussex Conservation District for stormwater


10     management and oversight of plans.


11                  But that division is also


12     responsible for oversight of construction on our


13     beachfront.  The Beach Act passed probably back


14     in the '90s, as well, maybe a little earlier


15     than that.  It regulates the type and placement


16     of construction along the beachfront to make


17     sure that we're preserving our dune system,


18     which, as we found this past fall with Hurricane


19     Sandy, is a very, very important natural


20     resource for us to manage.


21                  I think that's -- you know, that's


22     just a quick, quick snapshot of all of our --


23     you know, of our divisions.  We have a lot of


24     touch points with all of you.  We're interested
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 1     in hearing from all of you, either -- you know,


 2     in whatever format that is most comfortable for


 3     you.


 4                  I will tell you that this evening


 5     we do have a stenographer here who is providing


 6     a transcript for us, so we'll be able to capture


 7     your comments verbatim.  And so, what I'm going


 8     to do is -- and I should also state, say, we


 9     have a number of staff here this evening, that,


10     you know, if we need to answer some questions,


11     we can try and do that.


12                  But this is really, again, we're


13     here to listen.  You know, and if we need to


14     respond we will, but we want to get your


15     feedback and your comments.


16                  And so, with that, I will say that


17     I have a list of folks who have signed in and


18     indicated that they would like to speak.  And


19     what I will do is ask you to come down, and


20     maybe I'll step over to this mike, because most


21     of the folks are sitting over here.  But we have


22     folks sitting in the back, and what I'd ask you


23     to do, if that's okay, is to come down to the


24     front.  We have some wireless mikes, but they


Wilcox & Fetzer Ltd.







Page 11


 1     don't seem to be working this evening.


 2                  So in fairness to everybody, so


 3     that everyone can hear and that our stenographer


 4     can be sure to accurately record your comments,


 5     I'd ask you to come down and provide some


 6     feedback, if that's okay.


 7                  Let me just take a quick look to


 8     see if there's any other notes that I need to


 9     share with you before I start with our list of


10     sign-ins.  I think that's enough of me talking.


11                  So, I'm going to go to the list


12     that we received as people signed in.  And I


13     will apologize in advance if I don't get your


14     name correct.  But it looks to me like the first


15     name that I have is Carol Zander.  Am I right?


16     Ms. Zander, if you could come down, please.


17                  MS. ZANDER:  Good evening.  I was


18     hoping not to be the first, but I came this


19     evening because I understood from the radio and


20     from some things I had read that DNREC is


21     planning to impose new septic regulations on


22     anybody who's within 1000 feet of the


23     waterfront.  Of any waterfront, along any body


24     of water.  Can you tell me, is that true?  And
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 1     what those new regulations are going to be that


 2     we're going to have to deal with.  I mean is it


 3     as draconian as I've heard?


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Is that


 5     your -- is that it?  Can I come over to the


 6     mike?


 7                  MS. ZANDER:  Yeah, can I -- can I


 8     ask questions when you get finished, if


 9     necessary?


10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.  Let


11     me -- so, we have gone through a public hearing


12     process twice now on the proposed changes to our


13     on-site wastewater regulations.  And so, the


14     public record is closed on that specific


15     regulation.  We're happy to hear comments on


16     those this evening, as well.


17                  I believe, specifically to your


18     question, what the regulation proposes is that


19     if you have to completely replace your existing


20     system, or if you're building -- putting in a


21     new system and you are within 1000 feet of the


22     Nanticoke River, the tidal portions, only the


23     tidal portions of the Nanticoke River or Broad


24     Creek, then under those conditions, when these
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 1     regulations would be promulgated -- and they


 2     have not yet been promulgated -- then you could


 3     be required to install what we're calling an


 4     enhanced nutrient removal system, okay?


 5                  MS. ZANDER:  Uh-huh.


 6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Now, I


 7     will also tell you that we have gotten a large


 8     body of public comment on this.  We are


 9     reviewing that.  We've had, you know, the


10     General Assembly has expressed some opinions


11     about this, as well.  So, we're taking a look at


12     that.


13                  It may be that we make some further


14     changes to those regulations.  And if we do,


15     there will be additional opportunity for public


16     comment, when that happens.


17                  MS. ZANDER:  So they're not


18     affecting us right here in this area, as of now?


19                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, we


20     have existing regulations in place now for --


21     that dictate the -- you know, how septic systems


22     are installed, managed, et cetera.  These would


23     be an update to those regulations.  But they are


24     not in effect, what we have proposed and what
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 1     you mentioned about the 1000 feet is not in


 2     effect right now.  It is in effect in the tidal


 3     waters around the Inland Bays.  But again, it's


 4     1000 feet within tidal waters of the Inland Bays


 5     watershed.


 6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Does that cover


 7     what I -- do you want me to --


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Yes,


 9     please.


10                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  What I've heard


11     is that we would be required, if we live within


12     1000 feet of a body of water, say the Indian


13     River, okay, that we would be required to be


14     having two inspections a year at our cost for


15     our septic system.  Is that one of the things


16     that, you know, I'm looking forward to?


17                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  So, what


18     the proposed regulation would do, and I'm


19     looking at Jim Cassidy.  Jim is our manager in


20     our Georgetown office for the on-site branch.


21     What would be required, if you put in one of


22     those enhanced systems, then you would need


23     inspections twice a year.


24                  MS. ZANDER:  Oh, okay.
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And part


 2     of the reason for that is that the


 3     manufacturer's warranty, I believe, requires


 4     inspections, at least for the first two years,


 5     twice a year.


 6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  So there's


 7     nothing that's affecting the existing homeowners


 8     at this particular time?


 9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than


10     our --


11                  MS. ZANDER:  Other than what's


12     already --


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than


14     what's already in place.


15                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Mr. Jim


17     Baxter.  Mr. Baxter?


18                  MR. BAXTER:  As you probably know,


19     we take the sludge, from the last pickup to now,


20     and what I don't understand is that we have


21     two -- we have two places on Toccopola Farms


22     where you've had a -- what I call a mound


23     system.  It's right on the line with us, as


24     farming.  But yet, when we have to get the
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 1     permit, or the company does that we do it for,


 2     we have to get a permit from you folks to put


 3     the sludge on, and we have to be 30 foot from


 4     the property line.  I don't hardly understand


 5     why.


 6                  And maybe you can't give me an


 7     answer, either, but to me, it looks a little bit


 8     asinine to be able to put a heap of sludge, no


 9     medication, no nothing, onto -- next to our


10     property line.  I can show it to you any time


11     you want to come out there.  And I don't


12     understand why it is a 30-foot from the property


13     line, we can only -- we have to -- we can only


14     start that far away to put the sludge on.  It's


15     been treated and okayed, but none of those mound


16     systems have ever been treated, as far as I


17     know.  Okay?


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.


19     The next name I have is Dave -- Jaeger?  Is that


20     right?


21                  MR. JACOBSON:  Jacobs.  I'm sorry.


22     Do we have another Dave Jacobs?


23                  MR. JAEGER:  It's Jaeger.


24                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  What's
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 1     your last name?


 2                  MR. JAEGER:  Jaeger.  J-a-e-g-e-r,


 3     that's correct.  I'll make this short.  My name


 4     is David Jaeger, and I live in Selbyville.


 5     While I support the Governor's desire to


 6     simplify DNREC's regulations, I am concerned


 7     that this might lead to a weakening of controls


 8     on the amount of pollution on our air, land, and


 9     water, particularly around our Inland Bays.


10     These bays are the jewel of Sussex County, and


11     indeed, the whole state, but they are repeatedly


12     threatened by overdevelopment.


13                  And one of the main protectors of


14     the Inland Bays watershed is DNREC.  They are


15     charged with sustaining this prize for future


16     generations, at the same time allowing for


17     reasonable development.  That's a tough job, and


18     I don't envy them this responsibility, but it's


19     one that we all must support and respect.


20                  I am particularly concerned about


21     Sussex County, now that the economy is picking


22     up again and the building boom is likely to


23     resume to accommodate the baby boomers looking


24     to retire to lower slower Delaware.  But the
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 1     very qualities that attract folks are at risk


 2     from overdevelopment and pollution, such as


 3     septic tanks and ill-conceived wastewater


 4     systems.  We need scientific and fact-based


 5     controls that only DNREC can provide to preserve


 6     this God-given gift of nature for future


 7     generations.  Thank you.


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


 9     Mr. Jaeger.  Next I have Floyd Morton.


10                  MR. MORTON:  Thank you for giving


11     me this time to speak.  You had mentioned there


12     was actually going to be changes in regulations


13     for anglers, and that's going to be through, I


14     believe, the Delaware Bayshore Initiative


15     program?


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, I


17     think I was talking about regulations maybe in


18     size and creel limits as examples of the type of


19     diverse regulatory oversight that we're charged


20     with.


21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  And --


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I wasn't


23     here to propose anything specific.


24                  MR. MORTON:  I understand.  But do
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 1     you have any specific that you're going to be


 2     changing?


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I can tell


 4     you this:  There are, it seems to me, always


 5     changes that are pending in the world of


 6     fisheries management.  Mostly because we are


 7     responsible for maintaining compliance with


 8     somewhere around 17 fishery management plans


 9     that are coastwide.


10                  As you well know, fish move through


11     waters.  They don't just stay stationary.  So we


12     have to work with other states to manage those,


13     and there are a number of agency organizations,


14     multistate organizations that work


15     collaboratively most of the times to try to


16     manage those stocks.


17                  So there is the chance that over


18     the course of the coming year, that there will


19     be some type of regulatory change proposed in


20     order to maintain compliance with those, but I


21     can't sit here and cite exactly what those are.


22                  MR. MORTON:  I mean isn't this a


23     public comment, where we can get our comments to


24     how we feel about something?
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.


 2                  MR. MORTON:  That's what I'm


 3     saying, is this is open for something like that,


 4     correct?


 5                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.


 6                  MR. MORTON:  But you don't have any


 7     kind of regulations or anything like that that


 8     we can say, hey, we're for this, or you know,


 9     what -- it's almost like writing a blank check.


10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.  So


11     you know, the more specific that your comments


12     can be -- and I'll say this to everyone -- about


13     individual regulations, if there's a particular


14     species, or -- you know, it can be open, but the


15     things that will be most helpful to us are


16     comments that are as specific as you can be.


17                  That's not to say that we're not


18     here to listen to whatever you have to say, but


19     you know, I think those things will be


20     particularly constructive.  So with that, would


21     you go ahead, please.


22                  MR. MORTON:  I saw this morning,


23     and the Delaware Bayshore Initiative was


24     actually mentioned during this.  Is there
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 1     something that's actually going on with the


 2     Delaware Bayshore Initiative that pertains to


 3     this meeting tonight?


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The


 5     Delaware Bayshore Initiative is not a regulatory


 6     initiative.  It is, really, the notion behind


 7     that, very quickly, is to really bring in some


 8     of, you know, non-regulatory programs working


 9     more collaboratively together to conserve


10     habitat in the bayshore, protect lands, keep,


11     you know, working lands working and in private


12     hands.


13                  MR. MORTON:  Uh-huh.


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And you


15     know, restore habitat where possible, and create


16     low impact recreational and economic development


17     opportunities through -- through tourism.  As


18     you know, there are, you know, a lot of that


19     kind of activity going on along the bayshore,


20     and we would like to enhance those efforts.


21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  As of right


22     now, do you have anything pending that pertains


23     to the Delaware Bayshore Initiative that you


24     could speak about tonight?


Wilcox & Fetzer Ltd.







Page 22


 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Not in a


 2     regulatory context, no.


 3                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  This


 5     meeting is about regulations.  The bayshore is


 6     not a regulatory initiative.


 7                  MR. MORTON:  That's all I've got.


 8     Thank you.


 9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.


10     I believe it's Sally Ford?


11                  MS. FORD:  I'm a surveyor, and I --


12     my interaction with DNREC is basically doing


13     stormwater management.  And my one comment in


14     general is that I believed these hearings were


15     to discuss regulations that were in effect three


16     years ago.  And yet, there were supposed to be


17     new regulations in effect as of January 1.


18                  So, my comment is, why am I


19     addressing old regulations, when there's


20     supposed to be new ones?


21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The focus


22     of the Executive Order was on regulations that


23     had not been amended or opened, if you will, for


24     a three-year period or more.
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 1                  MS. FORD:  Okay.


 2                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And the


 3     idea behind that being that there may be some


 4     regulations that hadn't gotten attention within


 5     the past three years, that needed to be updated.


 6                  So, that's the focus.  But it's not


 7     the exclusive intent of this process to


 8     remain -- you know, to address only those


 9     regulations.  So, you know, we're looking at it


10     as an opportunity to go beyond that, if need be.


11     But I think the body of our work and review will


12     focus on those older regulations.


13                  MS. FORD:  Can I comment on the new


14     ones?


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Please, go


16     ahead.


17                  MS. FORD:  Okay.  My first comment,


18     though, concerns -- it's relative to the old and


19     to the new.


20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.


21                  MS. FORD:  And that's the notice of


22     intent permit that people get when they're doing


23     construction.  And I know it comes down from


24     EPA, and my feedback has always been, well, EPA
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 1     makes us keep it active until the last bit of


 2     construction is done.  And I have several


 3     projects that it affects greatly, one being a


 4     commercial property where all utilities are in,


 5     all surfaces are paved, site is fully graded,


 6     all buildings are up except for one last


 7     building, a 3000 square foot building.


 8                  I have as-builts and approvals for


 9     everything that's been done.  And yet, I have to


10     keep the NOI open, and DNREC won't issue me a


11     final because they say the NOI has to stay open.


12     Well, if this building doesn't get built for ten


13     years, there's a fee involved, there's our fee


14     for keeping us current with the -- with


15     everything.


16                  And I believe it should be allowed


17     to terminate when the site is fully stabilized,


18     all approvals for utilities, site improvements,


19     are complete.  And if -- when they decide to


20     build the last building, you have to get a


21     general permit just for that 3000 square foot


22     improvement, that should be acceptable.  Because


23     the stormwater already took into consideration


24     that building being there.
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 1                  I have -- another example would be


 2     your subdivision drawings, where you have a


 3     subdivision, and a lot remains vacant for 40


 4     years, because somebody in their 20s bought it


 5     hoping to build on it when they retired.  You're


 6     going to keep the developer liable with that NOI


 7     for 40 years until that last house gets built?


 8     That seems erroneous, or that doesn't seem fair.


 9                  And again, the site and the


10     stormwater management was -- that building was


11     taken into consideration, that there would be a


12     house on that lot eventually.  To keep the NOI


13     open and the stormwater permit open for that


14     amount of time -- there should be a way to close


15     a permit, reopen it if you need to, with the


16     notion that we're only building what's already


17     been approved, and it's less than the 5000


18     square foot standard disturbance, where you can


19     qualify for the general permit.


20                  Along the same line, another little


21     thing that really bothers me, in 2006 DNREC


22     stated everybody was going to have to pay for


23     the NOI annually, which is $195.  Not a big bill


24     for the big developers, but for your littler
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 1     jobs, it can get to be a big bill.


 2                  And in the new regulations, they've


 3     inserted that letter into the technical


 4     documents, which I believe makes it now a


 5     regulation, that there will be that $195 every


 6     year.  But it can't close out.  There's no way


 7     of closing out the NOI until that last lot is


 8     built upon.


 9                  I just took for an example the NOIs


10     that were still open, and I only went back to


11     2005.  And I know NOIs go back to 2001.  And


12     going back to just 2005, with the amount that


13     are still open, you would be collecting $195,000


14     a year, just annually, just to keep everybody's


15     NOIs current.


16                  So, I take insult to it, that it's


17     a little bit more of a revenue generator than


18     really do you need to charge that every year,


19     when we can't physically close it out because


20     you won't let us close it out.


21                  A couple things in the new


22     regulations -- and I'll probably do more in


23     writing -- but they're treating wooded lots


24     different than a cleared lot.  And I feel it's
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 1     unfair for somebody who wants to preserve trees,


 2     and therefore, hasn't cleared their lot, to be


 3     penalized now, when they go for their stormwater


 4     management or they go for their general permit,


 5     to have to go an additional step, versus the


 6     person who cleared their lot five years ago, and


 7     they can just get the general permit without


 8     question.


 9                  The other -- the other item, too,


10     is the general permit, they were going to allow


11     based on a percentage of impervious on the lot,


12     and that discriminates against your smaller


13     lots, because you'll reach that percentage of


14     impervious a lot quicker than you will on a


15     one-acre lot.  Therefore, you're penalizing the


16     smaller lots, versus the larger lots, as far as


17     the amount of work that they're going to have to


18     hire my company to do.


19                  And I also feel, in general, that


20     most of what was approved in revisions back in


21     2005 or 2004, when they were done previously,


22     are just getting built today.  A lot of my


23     projects are under those regulations and are


24     just getting built, so you don't even know how
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 1     they work, and they're changing the regulations.


 2     So, do you have any comment?


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I don't.


 4     Thank you.  I appreciate your comments.


 5                  MS. FORD:  Okay.


 6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Oh, boy.


 7     Don -- hmm.  Tom?


 8                  MR. FORD:  I think I'm after Sally.


 9     Tom Ford.  I have a very specific item.  Number


10     one, Dave, I'd like to take issue, the whole


11     point of this meeting is to simplify permitting


12     and cost and expediate it, and during your


13     introduction, you basically said DNREC is doing


14     a great job and has simplified and expediated


15     permitting.  And I've been in the field for 30


16     years, and I'm telling you, it's getting more


17     complicated every day, and it takes longer, and


18     costs more.


19                  And but specifically, I -- our


20     company just got a dock rebuild and extension


21     permit.  It took over a year to get it.  It took


22     a lot of back and forth with DNREC.


23                  I don't have a problem with that


24     process.  What I do have a problem with is at
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 1     the end of the process, it's assigned personally


 2     to the applicant.  And unfortunately, this


 3     applicant died three weeks after the permit was


 4     approved and recorded, signed by Collin O'Mara,


 5     the whole deal.


 6                  So, the estate now has to go back


 7     to DNREC.  And I'm not saying DNREC's going to


 8     withhold that approval, but I find it -- why are


 9     we allowing a 20-year lease out on our


10     subaqueous lands for a pier personally?  It


11     should go with the land.


12                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's


13     right.


14                  MR. FORD:  And DelDOT's doing that


15     to entrance permits, and DNREC is doing that.


16     And I find the banking community and development


17     community can't live with those unknowns.  At


18     any point, say a movie theater sells the movie


19     theater, that DelDOT permit and any DNREC septic


20     permit, or whatever, should flow with the land.


21     Not be assigned personally.  Because it marks


22     the land -- and the banking community is not


23     aware of this, and the real estate community's


24     not aware of this.  And it's a big major issue.
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 1                  And it needs to be fixed and


 2     addressed, and you need to determine why you


 3     need to do that.  Because you have the power to


 4     revoke that permit, from anybody who uses it.


 5     No matter who's the assigneds, who's the heirs,


 6     or who the rental unit of users, if they violate


 7     any issue of that permit, DNREC has that in


 8     there, too.


 9                  So why does that have to be


10     assigned personally?  You know, that property's


11     going to change hands in 20 years.  What


12     property doesn't?  Very few.  The bulk of the


13     properties exchange.


14                  That needs to be fixed, and it


15     needs to be fixed throughout the State.  And so,


16     I just bring that up, because it's a very


17     specific, and it's a very annoying bureaucratic


18     process that doesn't help anybody.  It just gets


19     in the way.  And why that estate has to come


20     back to you and ask for you to do that permit is


21     ridiculous.


22                  I think what my -- Sally Ford


23     brought out about the NOI is the problem you


24     have is in a development, not all lots are built
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 1     on.  You're going to build the roads, you're


 2     going to put the stormwater in, you're going to


 3     get them approved, you're going to do the


 4     as-builts.


 5                  You spend hundreds of thousands of


 6     dollars on some larger developments, and the


 7     developer eventually is going to sell out to the


 8     HOA.  And the HOA isn't going to take over when


 9     there's 100 percent build-out.  So the HOAs,


10     ordinary citizens who don't understand this


11     process, are going to get stuck paying that NOI.


12     They're not going to understand what they have


13     to do.  And it's -- it's ridiculous to go


14     beyond.


15                  The land has all been developed,


16     and we're only going to go for one house at a


17     time.  I mean get a general permit, get a


18     sediment erosion control, stormwater has already


19     been fixed, and let people go.  Don't hold on to


20     them for 20 years.  Because 20 years from now


21     you might have a bunch of comments from those


22     HOAs.


23                  The general person in this


24     community doesn't understand that, and how these
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 1     regulations affect them.  And these are big,


 2     major issues that our representatives are going


 3     to have to deal with, and you're going to have


 4     to deal with some day.  And I don't see the


 5     benefit.  Is it all about health, safety,


 6     welfare of the general public?  How does holding


 7     onto the NOI help them?  How does making a


 8     permit personal help the health, safety, welfare


 9     of the public?


10                  These are specific issues, and I


11     know there's many others, but that's all I have


12     to say to you tonight.


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


14     Mr. Ford.  Next I have Ron Gray.


15                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Good evening.


16     I'm the new -- tomorrow I will be sworn in as a


17     Representative here for the State of Delaware.


18     I'm very, very proud to be doing that, and I'll


19     be representing all of the citizens in my


20     district, and much of that is in the natural


21     resource area.


22                  We have the Inland Bays, the little


23     Assawoman Bay, my area, and up to Indian River


24     Bay as well, to the inlet.  I think because the
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 1     bridge washed out, I only -- I don't have to


 2     worry about that on the north side, that's


 3     another representative's side than me, so I want


 4     to make sure that doesn't happen.


 5                  Running for office, regulation has


 6     always been a bad word for me, really.  And it's


 7     what I ran on, the platform.  The point I really


 8     want to make is, I just feel like DNREC needs to


 9     be more responsive in looking at it from the


10     perspective of the end user.  Not only what Tom


11     and Sally were talking about from the technical


12     person, but regulations in general.


13                  I would like to see them being more


14     of the citizens and the technical folks that are


15     putting together the plans, to let them try to


16     work with you closely, instead of requiring them


17     to do things, let them partner with you to come


18     up with even better ways to improve the


19     environment and make it a better place.


20                  And I feel that the regulations


21     typically become onerous, and I think that they


22     have been put in place because a few folks in


23     our community took advantage of it, or polluted,


24     and we go -- the pendulum has swung, so that the
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 1     regulations have become very onerous in many


 2     cases.


 3                  And I would like to see more of a


 4     partnership, and not "regulation" should be a


 5     bad word.  We should all share with that, that


 6     we're trying to protect the environment for the


 7     jewel we have in our Inland Bays, and to


 8     maintain that.


 9                  So, you're in a very difficult


10     position.  On the new -- my first reaction when


11     I heard that we were looking at regs that were


12     three years old was, well, what about the ones


13     that have gone into place in the last three


14     years?  But you have to start somewhere.  So, I


15     salute Governor Markell for taking an effort to


16     look at the regulations, even though he's


17     starting it at the three-year point.


18                  But going forward, I feel like we


19     should -- we should try to work together, and


20     let -- and build a volunteer or support base


21     that all our natural resources, we want to


22     maintain those, and make them a better place,


23     and have volunteer support, and the community in


24     general want to work with DNREC, and not have it
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 1     as being told to do things, as much.


 2                  So, that, in a nutshell, is really


 3     what I wanted to say.  So, I totally respect


 4     you, Dave.  I think you're in a tough position,


 5     because most of the times, people are looking at


 6     you as the bad guy, or DNREC as the bad guy.


 7     And I think that needs to change.  Thank you for


 8     letting me speak for a moment, and I look


 9     forward to working with you over the next couple


10     years.


11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you


12     for your comments, Representative.


13                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Still


14     Representative Elect.


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Close


16     enough for me.  Next I have Bob and Renee


17     Coleman.  Is that right?


18                  MR. COLEMAN:  I'm Bob Coleman.


19     I'll be speaking for both of us, I guess.  I've


20     been a property owner for close to 30 years now,


21     in various parts of Sussex County.  And I guess


22     I have to say that in general, I believe that


23     the people in this state and county are very


24     concerned about water and air quality, and
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 1     they're very anxious to have those sort of


 2     things improved.


 3                  And 20, 25 years ago, I saw a lot


 4     of very significant improvements that were


 5     beneficial.  They made good sense.  But I do


 6     have to also say, over the last decade or so, it


 7     seems as though the regulations we're seeing


 8     come through are almost regulations for the sake


 9     of making a regulation, and they're not really


10     making any significant improvement in the


11     environment.  All they're doing is exerting more


12     and more control over infinitesimal limits, in


13     some cases, and a desire to control every


14     specific detail, down to the most minute thing.


15                  If the Governor's really serious


16     about making these things work more smoothly and


17     having less negative impact, I think you need to


18     take a look at that, not only on existing


19     regulations, but also on these new ones that are


20     being discussed.


21                  Now, as far as the new septic


22     regulations, I do have some comments on that,


23     also.  I understand that was a separate issue,


24     but it really ties into this, I think, as far as
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 1     the impact of regulations on the area.


 2                  These new regulations, because of


 3     their tight controls, especially on nitrogens, I


 4     think, are going to impose a severe financial


 5     hardship to anyone holding a present property


 6     that may need repairs, or new property about to


 7     be built.  And in a time when the state and


 8     county are in such desperate need of things to


 9     help growth and help people survive, it just


10     seems totally wrong to be clamping down on


11     something, unless there's a true benefit to be


12     had.


13                  Now, aside from the need for


14     putting in new systems, perhaps if you have to


15     replace them, there's, as someone else mentioned


16     earlier, this need for inspection costs, if you


17     happen to be unfortunate enough to need one of


18     these systems.  And not just the inspection


19     costs, but along with it goes a mandate that


20     regardless of individual property rights, an


21     inspector will have free access to your property


22     any time he wants, and you cannot deny access.


23     Now to me, that is a severe overreach of the


24     government.
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 1                  And someone else also pointed out,


 2     the personal attachment of these permits.  To


 3     me, that just makes absolutely no sense at all.


 4     You're regulating runoff water from a piece of


 5     land.  Why does it get tied to the individual?


 6     That is nothing but a burdensome aspect to


 7     anybody, whether they're selling, passing it on


 8     to heirs, or whatever.  It's a real burden.


 9                  And I also, as a professional


10     engineer, I have to raise a lot of questions


11     about some of these new regulations in terms of


12     their specific limits and how they're to be


13     implemented.  For example, many of these water


14     control limits that are going on right now are a


15     result, I understand, of follow-on from the EPA.


16     But once in a while the State needs to stand up


17     and get a backbone and say, hey, EPA, this


18     doesn't make any sense.


19                  We're now looking at nitrogen level


20     limits for runoff water that are half the


21     allowable limits of drinking water.  Does that


22     make any sense to anybody?  I mean we're trying


23     to put water runoff into areas that's more pure


24     than the drinking water that a lot of people
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 1     drink.


 2                  You know, I don't know if this


 3     falls under that area that the Governor was


 4     talking about in reviewing regulations, as far


 5     as burdens on business, but somebody needs to


 6     step back and take a look and say, is there any


 7     practical sense to some of these regulations.


 8                  We're asking for huge expenses of


 9     money here for infinitesimal amounts of


10     difference, in the nitrogen content, just to use


11     one example.  And it's not even clear right now


12     whether those limits are achievable.


13                  So, with that, enough said.  I hope


14     somebody puts some common sense into this.


15     Thank you.


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


17     Mr. Coleman.  Let me just respond to one point


18     that you raised on the language that's in the


19     septic regulations, and that is having to do


20     with property access.  We simply replicated


21     language that's preexisting in State law.  And


22     our interpretation of that, for as long as I've


23     been around, which is considerable, is that we


24     do not come onto a property for a septic
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 1     inspection without first contacting the owner


 2     and seeking permission.


 3                  If, in the event we believe there


 4     is a public health threat that demands our


 5     immediate action, we can move more swiftly.  But


 6     I would hope that people recognize that we've


 7     exercised that authority with a great deal of


 8     respect over the years, and we plan to continue


 9     to do that.  But thank you for your comments.


10                  Next I have Bill Moyer.


11                  MR. MOYER:  Good evening.  My name


12     is Bill Moyer.  I am president of the Inland


13     Bays Foundation.  And let me say, before I start


14     my formal remarks, that the Inland Bays


15     Foundation has no objection to the


16     simplification, or making regulations more user


17     friendly.  We think that there are ways that


18     that can be done without removing the protection


19     of the environment that they were intended for.


20                  That said, let me read in my formal


21     comments.  As I said, I am president of the


22     Inland Bays Foundation, which is dedicated to


23     improving the environmental condition of our


24     polluted Inland Bays and their surrounding
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 1     watershed.


 2                  Decades of effort by DNREC to


 3     restore the bays to their once swimmable and


 4     fishable state have met with some success, but


 5     real progress has been slowed by resistance from


 6     local organizations and improper land use


 7     decisions made by Sussex County.


 8                  In the mid 1990s, I was a member of


 9     the then-Governor's Task Force on Inland Bays,


10     and I've served as an expert witness before the


11     Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission and


12     Sussex County Council for Development, that was


13     not in compliance with Sussex County's land use


14     plan.


15                  I was born and raised in Sussex


16     County.  Although the Inland Bays Foundation


17     agrees with the intent of Executive Order 36, we


18     are concerned with some of the language that it


19     contains.  Specifically, the careful read of the


20     Order would lead one to believe that


21     environmental regulations are a deterrent to a


22     viable economy and to economic growth.  This is


23     not true.


24                  Study after study has shown that
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 1     protecting our environment creates jobs, and in


 2     the case of Sussex County, ensures that people


 3     will continue to live, vacation, and recreate


 4     here.


 5                  I have four documents that I would


 6     like to introduce into the record of this


 7     hearing.  The first is a report by the


 8     Chesapeake Bay Foundation, titled "Debunking The


 9     'Job Killer' Myth:  How Pollution Limits


10     Encourage Jobs in the Chesapeake Bay Region."The


11     report shows that there had been a 43 percent


12     increase in the number of environmental industry


13     jobs in Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Virginia


14     over the last three decades.


15                  In a ground-breaking article in The


16     Scientific American more than 20 years ago, a


17     noted Harvard University Business School


18     economist concluded that, quote, "Strict


19     environmental regulations do not inevitably


20     hinder competitive advantages against viable.


21     Indeed, they all enhance it."


22                   The report concludes, quote,


23     "Clean water also will mean more fish, crabs,


24     and oysters, which translate to more work and
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 1     thus, fishermen, processors, packers,


 2     restaurateurs and people in the tourism-related


 3     industries.  If history is any guide,


 4     environmental regulations will once again


 5     nourish God's creation."


 6                  My second document is a report


 7     published on November 8, 2012, by the Public


 8     News Service.  It also concludes, "Here in this


 9     report, document after document, research after


10     research finding, show that especially in times


11     when the economy is slowing down, environmental


12     protection stimulates that economy and creates


13     jobs."


14                  There are those groups in Sussex


15     County that would have us believe that positive


16     growth means growth without unnecessary


17     government interference, and without unnecessary


18     environmental regulations.  If they had their


19     way, development would occur anywhere, with


20     little oversight.  As I have stated, if this


21     occurs in Sussex County, this philosophy will


22     lead to uncontrolled, unsupportable growth, and


23     a deterioration of the quality of life in Sussex


24     County.
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 1                  This has happened and continues to


 2     happen around the country, with the ultimate


 3     decline in property values and economic


 4     hardships.  It's time that we start learning


 5     from our past mistakes.


 6                  Whereas, quote, "Number 7 of


 7     Executive Order 36 indicates a misunderstanding


 8     of the economics of environmental protection, in


 9     that it states it is the intent of this Order


10     to," quote, "reduce impediments to economic


11     growth," close quote, "caused by regulations


12     that may be reduced or streamlined."


13                  The Executive Order calls for,


14     quote, "meaningful public input into the


15     regulatory reform process."  I would encourage


16     DNREC to give little consideration to any


17     comments received at these public hearings that


18     do not contain specific analyses of the adverse


19     economic impact of the regulation that anyone or


20     any group is requesting to be changed or


21     limited.


22                  It would be irresponsible for DNREC


23     to make any changes without sufficient data on


24     which to base its decision.  Simply stating that
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 1     the regulation is bad or is not needed is


 2     inadequate.


 3                  For example, I'm introducing a


 4     document showing suggested changes by a group


 5     advocating positive growth in Sussex County.  It


 6     requests the elimination of the nitrogen removal


 7     standard for small septic systems, removal of


 8     the 30-day property transfer requirement from


 9     all septic permits, and the permit transfer


10     requirement for dock permits.  There is


11     absolutely no supporting documentation on how


12     these changes are adversely affecting the


13     economy or are hindering growth.


14                  Also, why would such a request be


15     made when water quality data clearly show that


16     the Inland Bays are overloaded with nitrogen,


17     leading to algae blooms and subsequent fish


18     kills.  The nitrogen discharged into the


19     groundwater eventually finds its ways into the


20     bays, as studies by the Delaware Geological


21     Survey have shown.


22                  These pro-growth organizations have


23     stated that the Inland Bays are, quote,


24     "cleaning themselves up," close quote, and that
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 1     growth with fewer restrictions will lead to a


 2     better quality of life for Sussex County


 3     residents and visitors.


 4                  Yet no facts or data has ever been


 5     presented by these groups to substantiate the


 6     supposed statement of fact.  These statements


 7     are made for self-serving interests of those


 8     that benefit financially from unrestricted and


 9     irresponsible growth.


10                  I am sure that you will hear


11     similar claims tonight and at the other


12     scheduled hearings in Kent and New Castle


13     County.  Again, I implore DNREC to consider only


14     those changes that can show a conclusive benefit


15     to the environment and to the economy of each


16     county and the state of Delaware.  This is


17     clearly the intent of Executive Order 36.


18                  Finally, I would ask that DNREC


19     reinstate the collection of subaqueous lands


20     fees for structures constructed on public


21     subaqueous lands that are generating revenue.


22     This was generated by House Bill 360 of the


23     General Assembly and adopted by DNREC on June


24     30, 1991.  Failure to collect these fees is
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 1     allowing private parties to build structures on


 2     State land, charge for the use of the


 3     structures, and pay no fee to the State for the


 4     use of State land.


 5                  This would be similar to allowing


 6     someone to build a restaurant or concession in a


 7     State park and not charge a fee.  Failure to


 8     collect these fees for many years has resulted


 9     in the loss of millions of dollars in revenue


10     that could be used to offset the cost for


11     environmental protection in Delaware.


12                  I am attaching a copy of this


13     document to my testimony.  Thank you for the


14     opportunity to comment.


15                  THE DEPUTY SECRETARY:  Thank you,


16     Mr. Moyer.  Next I have Scott Evans.


17                  MR. EVANS:  Tonight what I'm coming


18     here for is kind of like a third go around.  I'm


19     here for the soil evaluation for private


20     individual lots and developments.  There is a


21     five-year on there; after five years you have to


22     go back and get your lots reevaluated for your


23     soil samples.


24                  I'm going through that now.  We


Wilcox & Fetzer Ltd.







Page 48


 1     already had it done, which I bought a


 2     development, and in the meantime, while I bought


 3     it, probably after a year, probably when I had


 4     four years left, that at the end of that time,


 5     right now, we're having to go back and get all


 6     the lots done over again.  So we're paying


 7     double to get lots done, because of the five


 8     years.


 9                  In talking with -- as a matter of


10     fact, Joe Duke, and some of the others, you


11     know, he was the one that said he doesn't agree


12     with it.  Soil doesn't change if anything


13     doesn't move.  If you have 50 years, that's one


14     thing.  But five years.


15                  And so, this is about my third go


16     around.  The first time, Representative Hocker


17     spoke to you a while back and said something to


18     you about seeing if something could be done.  In


19     the meantime, I spoke again in Dover during one


20     of these hearings that you had and I haven't


21     heard anything.


22                  Now, if it's been changed, I


23     haven't heard.  So that's why I'm here tonight,


24     to voice my opinion again.  Because this is not
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 1     right.  I mean five years.  Look, I'm 63 years


 2     old.  Five years don't take long to roll around.


 3     It's getting less all the time as I get older.


 4                  So you know, it needs to be --


 5     something needs to be done, because now we're


 6     paying -- I just got one today for you guys


 7     right in the mail, that we just had done on


 8     another lot.  So, I mean we're paying double,


 9     and that's not right.  I mean nothing changes.


10     It doesn't go.


11                  I think it needs to be extended out


12     a little bit longer than -- than five years,


13     because it used to be there wasn't no time.  Now


14     you got five years.  Five years isn't very long.


15     I mean it rolls around in a hurry.


16                  I know there's probably -- there's


17     a time there -- I guess you can go back, I may


18     be wrong -- I think before the five years is up,


19     and you can get reevaluated, but I didn't -- I


20     wasn't aware of that fact.


21                  I'm a builder, contractor/owner.


22     But places I've done, I've never ran into this


23     before.  I had 38 lots.  Now we're down, because


24     the economy is down.  I mean I got 30 some lots.
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 1     You take that times 4 or $500, after you've


 2     already spent it, you're doubling your money.


 3                  So I think something needs to be


 4     reconsidered in the time limit, to extend it, or


 5     at least take a little consideration.  Because


 6     now we're just paying double for what we paid,


 7     because now we're starting to sell a few lots


 8     and we're having to pay this out.


 9                  So, I just wish you could take into


10     consideration of extending that, making it


11     longer, or whether something -- what can be


12     done, or does legislation have to be placed in,


13     if it has to change.


14                  I met with Senator Hocker, but you


15     know, can they do something?  Representative


16     Gray is here.  I don't know what can be done,


17     whether it be legislative, or extend it, or


18     whatever.  But it's not fair, especially someone


19     to -- you know, now-a-days young folks are


20     trying to get something, some reason somebody


21     gives them something, it's been done, all of a


22     sudden now they got to pull another $400 out, 5,


23     whatever it is, to get something done.


24                  So I don't know if there anything
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 1     has been done, or has it been talked about or


 2     what.


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The issue


 4     that you raise is, I think you previously


 5     mentioned that you had made some comments on the


 6     record for the proposal for the on-site


 7     wastewater regulations.  Is that what I


 8     understood you to say?


 9                  MR. EVANS:  Correct.  In other


10     words, we've got to go back, and you have to


11     start right from the beginning again.


12                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.


13                  MR. EVANS:  Because it's already


14     been done -- I mean it's already done.  The soil


15     samples is done.  It's all -- you know, it's


16     still there.  So now we got to do the same exact


17     thing they done five years ago.


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.


19     So, nothing has changed as of yet.  Those


20     regulations are still under review, we're


21     reviewing public comment, including your comment


22     about the extension of that.  So, I can't


23     pre-judge the outcome of that, but we have


24     received those comments, and they're under
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 1     consideration at this point.


 2                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  But I will


 4     say two points, I guess.  One is I don't believe


 5     that legislation is required, necessarily.  I


 6     think this is a regulatory issue.  And I would


 7     also say I think it is true, and you probably


 8     know more than I, that if you at any point


 9     during that five-year period were to record


10     those lots, then that -- you know, you've taken


11     care of it at that point.  You don't need to go


12     back and get another soil test.  I believe


13     that's correct.  But you may have to --


14                  MR. EVANS:  You are correct about


15     that.  But here's my problem.  The problem is


16     that that house, or whatever, once you get that


17     recorded, you have to take and put down there


18     exactly what the house is going to be, exactly


19     where the sewer system is going to be placed.


20                  Now, should you get the home and


21     somebody wants their lot -- the house on the


22     other side of the lot -- which they can do


23     that -- you've already told them where they're


24     going to put the house.  They have no say-so
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 1     where it may be.  They may want to place it


 2     somewheres else other than where you want, and


 3     it's still eligible to be placed on that piece


 4     of property.


 5                  But if you go back and think, a


 6     little common sense says you still have the same


 7     situation.  You haven't built on it, you haven't


 8     done anything.  You still have the same


 9     situation, whether it's been five years or ten


10     years, and you don't go back.  You still have


11     the same situation.  That soil hasn't changed.


12     Nothing has changed.  The only thing is this


13     play on words to do something to have it


14     recorded.  Because it says this is where it's


15     going.


16                  So, you know, it's -- it hasn't


17     changed.  Nothing has changed, I mean as far as


18     that goes.  It's just all you done is put it on


19     a piece of paper to make it look good.  So --


20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.


21                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.


23     Next I have Larry Mayo.


24                  MR. MAYO:  Thank you for having
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 1     this meeting, and I would like to commend the


 2     Governor for the one thing that I think he's


 3     done right, which is looking to simplify some


 4     regulations.


 5                  Let me talk to you a little bit


 6     about my experience with regulations.  And not


 7     all of them are DNREC's, but some of them are.


 8     I inherited three lots with two mobile homes on


 9     them.  Those mobile homes were put on in the


10     '60s and '70s.  Okay?  That is my net worth.  I


11     make approximately $30,000 a year, and that's


12     pretty much what it takes for me to live.  So I


13     decided since this was my net worth, and this


14     was going to be my retirement plan, that I would


15     take those two mobile homes, and since I'm a


16     contractor, build houses and sell the houses,


17     so -- to get myself a retirement fund.


18                  Well, I inherited them in 2006.  At


19     that time, that made my net worth about


20     $300,000.  The lots.  Thanks to banking


21     regulations, the only thing I could borrow money


22     to do was build a house.  Thanks to DNREC


23     regulations, I couldn't build a house unless I


24     put new septic systems in both lots.
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 1                  Well, the amount of money I could


 2     borrow on my limited income would not allow for


 3     that.  So I converted one of them into a class C


 4     in order to sell it for enough to be able to fix


 5     up the other one.


 6                  Well, thanks to the Government


 7     intrusion in the housing market, that HAS now


 8     been on the market for three years, and is now


 9     worth what I owe.  So, even if it sells, I'll


10     just be one lot short of what I started.  This


11     is how regulations hurt regular people.


12                  Now, as far as EPA regulations,


13     I've been studying this document for the last


14     three years.  I've taken two college courses on


15     it.  There is no place in this document, which


16     is the Constitution of the United States, that


17     gives the Federal government the authority to


18     regulate my land or your land.


19                  So, the EPA does not have to be


20     listened to by the State.  Okay?  Get them to


21     show you where in the Constitution they have the


22     authority to tell you what water can run off


23     your land.  It's not in there.  Believe me.


24     I'll read it over and over and over again.
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 1                  To our State legislators that are


 2     out here, I'd like to see you guys grow a large


 3     set of cajones and start taking advantage of the


 4     Tenth Amendment to the Constitution.  Because


 5     you guys should have more power over me than


 6     President Obama and the Congress and the Senate.


 7     And certainly more than the United Nations and


 8     their agenda 21.


 9                  I thank you for your public


10     service.  I hope you take this to heart.  Most


11     of the regulations implemented over the last ten


12     years have done a lot to hurt the small guy.


13     You can't burn leaves, the trash company won't


14     take them.  I don't know what you're supposed to


15     do with them.  I just let them lay on my land


16     and rot.


17                  Thank you.


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


19     Mr. Mayo.  Next I have Rich Collins.


20                  MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, Dave.  I


21     thank the Department for being here tonight, and


22     I'm sure you understand no comments are


23     personal, certainly not from me.  I'm trying to


24     get to the heart of this Executive Order 36, the
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 1     whole point of it.


 2                  Back in 2008, we had something


 3     happen in the economy.  I think most of us know


 4     about it.  It wasn't good.  I think DNREC knows


 5     about it, because I know your budget has shrunk,


 6     and I believe you lost some employees due to


 7     some of that, correct?


 8                  All right.  So, people in -- out in


 9     constituent land are in the same position.  My


10     understanding is that underemployment, if you


11     have unemployment and underemployment, we're


12     somewhere -- these are different numbers, but


13     maybe 18, 19 percent.  Very, very high rate of


14     unemployment for young people, and some forecast


15     that it could be getting much worse.


16                  I have an economic report here,


17     it's actually a subscription I pay for, talks


18     about the demographic hurricane coming towards


19     us, with folks aging, and the incredible burden


20     we're going to face paying for Social Security


21     and Medicare.


22                  In short, there is a Federal


23     government sponsored study that I've found, and


24     you can find any number of them, that basically
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 1     indicates we're probably looking at, if we don't


 2     do exactly the right things, a declining


 3     standard of living.  For a long time now.


 4                  And so, I'm hoping that the whole


 5     concept of Executive Order 36 is to realize that


 6     Delaware has to compete with other states and


 7     other countries.  Otherwise, we're going to have


 8     a decline.  And as I think has been demonstrated


 9     here on more than one occasion tonight, there


10     are certain things that are costing people more


11     money, in my opinion, than probably needs to be


12     spent.


13                  I wanted to address the EPA real


14     quickly, before I forget.  I know that you are


15     under tremendous pressure from the EPA.  But I


16     go to about as many DNREC meetings as anybody


17     who's not a professional, you know, doing


18     business with you on a daily basis.  I don't


19     really hear much transparency in terms of what


20     you really do have to deal with.


21                  Now, I know Attorney General


22     Cuccinelli in Virginia, the EPA told Virginia


23     that they had to pay -- I think it was billions


24     of dollars, to prevent stormwater runoff.  He
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 1     sued.  He, through the Virginia Department of


 2     Transportation and Fairfax County, I believe.


 3     And the Supreme Court of the United States just


 4     ruled that they were right, and that EPA had no


 5     authority to regulate water flow through the


 6     Clean Water Act, water runoff.


 7                  And so, I believe that's going to


 8     go to the heart of Delaware's pending stormwater


 9     regulations.  I -- I sincerely hope -- I'm


10     frustrated in that when I go to a meeting that's


11     a joint meeting with EPA and DNREC, and Delaware


12     citizens, that I feel some of your employees


13     feel like they're more beholden to the EPA than


14     they are to their citizens that pay their


15     salaries.  Now I hope I'm wrong on that, but


16     that's the impression I get sometimes.  And I


17     just really -- I hope they're on our side first.


18                  Also, let me make one comment about


19     the thing about being on property without


20     warrants.  I'm the one that publicized that, as


21     much as anyone.  I did do my best, every time I


22     said it, I think, to make it clear that it is


23     State law.  What I see is different this time is


24     that in this new septic regulation, it's obvious
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 1     the Department is very anxious to force people


 2     to have a type of system that performs so poorly


 3     that it has to be inspected twice a year.


 4                  And I think it's obvious, based on


 5     that and other things, that they expect a lot of


 6     breakdowns.  And I believe it's obvious that


 7     they're expecting to have to take action more


 8     than in the past.


 9                  And I would also say that I get


10     great discomfort reading those new septic


11     regulations.  And in fact, I put together a


12     little paragraph describing what someone selling


13     our home would have to explain to their buyer,


14     you know, in the form of disclosure.  It almost


15     looks like some aspects of those regulations are


16     designed to prevent -- or discourage freedom


17     using their rural properties.


18                  And so, it's not so much the words


19     which, as you point out, are identical to what's


20     in State law.  It's why are they being, for the


21     first time, put into regulation, in conjunction


22     with the whole big picture look of how these


23     regulations look?


24                  Now, I think probably more
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 1     important than the particulars of a lot of


 2     regulations is the process.  You know,


 3     businesses need three things.  They need to know


 4     what the rules are, they need to know roughly


 5     how long it's going to take to get through the


 6     process, and they have to know that if they


 7     actually follow the rules, that at the end of


 8     the process they probably will get the prize.


 9                  We've had some testimony here from


10     folks tonight making it clear that they don't


11     feel that the process is clear and defined.


12     Furthermore, there is no doubt in my mind that


13     DNREC is making some fundamental mistakes in


14     application of State law.


15                  The main one, let's talk about


16     these 30-day requirements to transfer a permit.


17     I see two reasons why that's not legal.  Number


18     one, there is a -- there has been a very deep


19     precedent set by the Delaware Supreme Court that


20     DNREC regulations cannot override State law.


21     And a lawsuit that was settled recently made


22     very clear that that's the case.  And there is


23     an entire title of State law that has to do with


24     property transfers, I think it's Title 25, but
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 1     it's right there, whatever it is.


 2                  Well, there isn't one word of DNREC


 3     having any sort of veto power over that process


 4     whatsoever in State law.  Nor, when you read


 5     DNREC's operating authority, is there any hint


 6     that they would have control in any way of a


 7     real estate settlement process.  So on that


 8     basis, I'm pretty confident it's not a legal


 9     thing to do.


10                  The other reason, though, however,


11     is more fundamental, even.  Because regulations


12     are created through something called the


13     Administrative Procedures Act.  It's a State


14     law, Title 29, Chapter 101.  First of all, I


15     want to read the definition of a regulation.


16     Regulation.  Means "Any statement of law,


17     procedure, policy, right, requirement, or


18     prohibition formulated and promulgated by an


19     agency as a rule or standard or as a guide for


20     the decision of the cases there -- thereafter by


21     it or by any other agency, authority, or court."


22                  Now, the point is, anything you do,


23     anything that affects a citizen, forces them to


24     do something in a legal manner, is defined as a
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 1     regulation.  So, how do regulations get created?


 2     If you look under -- bear with me.  Too many


 3     pages.  Oh, shoot.  I don't see it.  Here's what


 4     it says, I know what it says.  You have to


 5     publish the regulation in the State Register,


 6     State Register of Regulations, you have to hold


 7     a public hearing, and then the Secretary has to


 8     formally adopt the regulation.  Those three


 9     things have to happen.


10                  I checked the existing septic


11     regulations.  I do not -- oh.  And by the way,


12     this language of being 30 days prior to


13     settlement, written permission from DNREC,


14     that's being put on septic permits right now.  I


15     just spoke to another gentleman today.  He


16     looked at his septic regulation -- permit that


17     he just got recently.  I said I'll bet you're


18     going to find that language on it.  Look for it.


19     He didn't know anything about it, even though


20     the guy is pretty sophisticated.


21                  He looks around and says, oh, here


22     it is.  Last item.  He read it, word for word.


23     That's never been approved in a regulation


24     legally.
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 1                  I would go so far as to say this:


 2     If a person walks into any State agency and they


 3     are told we don't do it that way anymore, and if


 4     they cannot point to a regulation approved by


 5     their Secretary, they've broken State law.


 6     Folks, you should be able to find the rules


 7     before you go into any given agency, and you


 8     should know -- I'm telling you, you can ask them


 9     for site-specific concerns, of course, but you


10     should in a general sense know exactly what's


11     going to be required of you if you look it up,


12     and right now you don't.


13                  So, I think that's really


14     fundamental.  That -- I believe that also


15     applies to the boat dock that were brought up.


16     That does not have that 30-day requirement, but


17     it does make that business personal.  So, I


18     would ask -- I would urge DNREC to look at these


19     things, make sure that they're following the


20     rules they have to follow.


21                  Finally I'll say this:  Sometimes I


22     wish DNREC would be more forthcoming with the


23     data they have available to them.  A few years


24     ago I was in your office in Dover, and one of
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 1     their employees handed me a USGS publication,


 2     and at the time, we happened to be engaged


 3     pretty heavily in another regulation.  I won't


 4     get specific about it.  Well, the USGS -- U.S.


 5     Geological Survey made it pretty clear that what


 6     DNREC had been saying was the source of the


 7     pollution problem was not the problem.  In fact,


 8     it overwhelmingly made that case.  And so, I


 9     simply pointed it out to the folks involved, and


10     you could see that it was -- that report


11     suddenly became radioactive.


12                  This concept that septic systems


13     are like the worst thing that can happen to


14     anything, polluting the Inland Bays, folks, in


15     my opinion, based on reading quite a few


16     technical documents, is not backed up by fact.


17     And I believe there are many other things that


18     could be done that could have far more positive


19     impact on the environment than just forcing


20     people to spend 20, 25,000.  I have a quote from


21     five years ago on a septic system, 20 -- almost


22     $22,000.  And I want to point out that in the


23     rural areas, many of the folks that are required


24     to spend this kind of money are some of the
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 1     folks who can least afford it.


 2                  And I would also say, given the


 3     state of the economy and the outlook for the


 4     future, the concept that DNREC is going to give


 5     everybody money that can't afford it is a little


 6     shaky, too.  At the very time when you're laying


 7     off people because you don't have enough money,


 8     where did that idea come that we just find a


 9     whole bunch of other money and fork it out to


10     people, just so they can put a whole bunch of


11     money into the septic system that's going to


12     break down, and that over a long period of time


13     is going to show a virtually unmeasurable


14     difference in what's being done right now?


15                  So, to conclude, attitude,


16     attitude.  I'm hoping that everybody in this


17     State government understands the world has


18     changed.  We are either going to -- and you


19     know, this is the other discouraging thing.  I'm


20     not aware of one single regulation in this


21     State -- maybe it's happened, but I don't know


22     of it -- that specifically somebody says, you


23     know what?  People can't afford this anymore.


24     Let's find a cheaper way.  Even though we are


Wilcox & Fetzer Ltd.







Page 67


 1     all dramatically poorer.


 2                  I mean we had one man mention his


 3     financial situation.  I can tell you right now


 4     the real estate that I own has declined, and I'm


 5     just a homeowner.  You know, I've got a house


 6     and a couple rental houses.  I would guarantee


 7     you my property values have declined by 3 or


 8     $400,000, along with my net worth.  That's


 9     happened to virtually everybody in Delaware.


10                  So, why isn't our State government


11     approaching this problem with that mindset; that


12     we all need to pull in our belt and figure how


13     to be successful going forward.  Thank you.


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


15     Mr. Collins.  Next I have John Burton.


16                  MR. NEWLIN:  Thank you for calling


17     on me.  I got a little different concept than


18     what's going on tonight.  In fact -- I'm getting


19     to an age myself, I'm going to put my glasses


20     on.  As a member of one of the boards of the


21     State of Delaware, we were notified that maybe


22     we should attend these hearings, in case


23     something comes before us that would have some


24     effect on it.
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 1                  As a member of the Delaware


 2     Industrial Control Board, I received


 3     notification from the Governor's office


 4     regarding this public hearing, and would like to


 5     present the following ideals, ideas, for


 6     consideration.


 7                  As present owner of 160 acres of


 8     land on the western side of Rehoboth Bay, the


 9     east side of this property runs approximately


10     2000 feet of the waters of Rehoboth Bay, known


11     as John S. and Samuel J. Burton Farm Preserve.


12                  I observed the erosion problems


13     that affected the property over the last ten


14     years.  I'm sure many other property owners also


15     have the same concerns.  One of my main concerns


16     is the lack of funding to DNREC and the Federal


17     government on lands owned by private individuals


18     and reserved dynasties.  I feel that this


19     funding program should be reviewed and be


20     brought up to date regarding the high cost


21     incurred by land owners.


22                  My second concern is the flow of


23     water coming into Rehoboth Bay never being


24     restricted in any way.  The dredging on many
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 1     dead-end lagoons and long prongs of the


 2     waterways in Rehoboth Bay have been an


 3     environmental issue, which I feel should be


 4     reviewed.


 5                  The lack of dredging, in my


 6     opinion, is causing the areas that are available


 7     for the influx of the water to be much smaller,


 8     and we are still receiving the same or more


 9     amounts of water from the ocean and other


10     tributaries from the Delaware Bay.  Example,


11     very simple.  Take a 12-ounce cup of coffee, put


12     2 two ounces of sand and mud, and you're going


13     to get 10 ounces of coffee in it.


14                  I believe the dredging program


15     should have some type of committee review, or we


16     should involve an environmental study of the


17     possibilities of restricting the flow of water


18     into Rehoboth Bay.  It seems to me that if we


19     cut or slow 10 to 20 percent of the intake of


20     the water coming into the bay in a seven-hour


21     period, it would help to control the level of


22     the flooding of the water.


23                  As a property owner, I've spent


24     thousands and thousands of dollars on shoreline
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 1     erosion control.  I wish to say that I am not


 2     criticizing DNREC.  In fact, I have a very good


 3     working relationship with the agency, in trying


 4     to protect the shoreline.  However, it is hard


 5     to continue to do environmental work such as


 6     erosion control without some assistance from the


 7     State or Federal government, as a private


 8     reserve owner -- preserve.


 9                  Thank you for the opportunity to


10     share my concerns regarding Executive Order 36.


11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


12     Mr. Burton.


13                  MR. BURTON:  And I would like to


14     leave a copy with you.


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Great.


16     Thank you.  Next I have Dave Jacobs.


17                  MR. JACOBSON:  Unless we can


18     discuss ethanol and the gas, that kind of thing,


19     I might as well pass.  Is that open for


20     discussion?  We got a Federal -- we have a


21     legislator here.


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You know,


23     ethanol is a Federal issue.  It's not a State


24     issue, from a regulatory point of view.  I'm
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 1     happy to talk with you afterwards, if that's


 2     okay.


 3                  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  Well --


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Or if you


 5     can -- we're almost wrapping it up, so go ahead.


 6                  MR. JACOBS:  I'll just take a


 7     minute of your time.  We have a State


 8     Representative, they did bring up Congress and


 9     the Constitution and all of that.


10                  I buy gas here in Millsboro, and


11     it's got 10 percent ethanol.  And that's


12     regulated because Philadelphia has a pollution


13     problem.  We're all paying through the nose


14     here.  When I go to another state, like ten


15     miles away to Pittsville, Maryland, the gas


16     there has less than 10 percent ethanol.  It's


17     whatever Maryland dictates.  And I get like 50,


18     52 miles a gallon on my motorcycle.  With


19     Delaware gas I'm getting about 48.


20                  Now that's a motorcycle.  So now


21     transcribe that to your SUVs, and how much


22     you're putting into your gas tanks, and et


23     cetera.  It's a Federal issue, but America and


24     the Federal systems got to start with the little
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 1     individual citizen.  So, I'm here.


 2                  The EPA has some influence.  It


 3     doesn't come down -- maybe it goes up from your


 4     end, you speak to Federal EPA people.  And


 5     Mr. Representative, there it is.  I may not even


 6     be in your district, but I'm sure if you have a


 7     constituency that lives in Delaware, they


 8     probably would like to get a better performance


 9     out of the car.  We're talking about the water


10     and boating and fishing.  I know the boats are


11     lined up at the gas stations in Maryland,


12     because the ethanol screws up the gas, screws up


13     the gas tanks in boats.  So, anyone that can


14     alleviate and help these problems, that would be


15     great.


16                  The other thing I noticed, what the


17     EPA, or maybe DNREC, when I moved down here in


18     '96, this place was full of chicken farms.  A


19     lot of people, chicken farms, a lot of people


20     working.  And they say it's the economy.


21                  They came down with rules.  My


22     neighbor had four chicken houses, and it was


23     bustling, every six weeks, new chickens coming


24     in, more chickens going out.
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 1                  And then suddenly, what happened?


 2     He said, well, they've got some new regulations,


 3     I've got to put like $200,000 worth of something


 4     to fix it up, because perhaps of some runoff or


 5     whatever it was.


 6                  And they -- chicken farms have all


 7     dried up.  You don't have to drive very far from


 8     this location here to see the chicken farms that


 9     have dried up.  The small farmer has -- who


10     couldn't afford a couple hundred thousand


11     dollars to fix it up, they've gone into


12     retirement, or whatever.


13                  Now, I -- I'm going to say it had


14     to have been regulations, because I used to eat


15     as much in 1969 -- '96, when I came here, and I


16     don't think people have stopped eating.  So,


17     where are they getting their chickens from?  You


18     can go to Maryland and get chickens, or other


19     states.  But I know Delaware's chicken output


20     must be a lot less.


21                  And whatever the EPA, DNREC can do


22     to improve that, and maybe drop a lot of


23     regulations.  Apparently some of them aren't --


24     they aren't coming out the way they were
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 1     described, to be bad for the environment.  I


 2     don't know.  But I live next to a chicken farm.


 3     My water's fine.  It was fine before, it's fine


 4     now.  You know.


 5                  Thank you for your time, and I hope


 6     I wasn't too far off the track.  Thank you very


 7     much.


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


 9     Mr. Jacobs.  Next I have Stephanie Herron.


10                  MS. HERRON:  My name is Stephanie


11     Herron.  I'm with the Delaware chapter of the


12     Sierra Club, and we have some comments to offer,


13     but I will have some more formal comments


14     written or at a later hearing.


15                  I would first like to say that we


16     completely agree and echo everything that


17     Mr. Moyer and the Inland Bay Foundation said


18     about environmental regulations not being bad


19     for jobs.


20                  And I also have something to say.


21     The Delaware chapter of the Sierra Club has been


22     monitoring the DNREC and State public meeting


23     web calendars in an effort to notify our members


24     of the times and locations of the DNREC
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 1     regulation review hearings under Executive Order


 2     36.  We could find no notice on either site of


 3     this or the following two public hearings until


 4     today, January 7th, 2013.  And we find it


 5     extremely troublesome that such an important


 6     meeting as this would be held with less than 24


 7     hours notice to the residents of Sussex County


 8     who are not on the DNREC mailing list, who went


 9     out on the e-mail list.


10                  In order to remedy this series


11     oversight, we request that the public comment


12     period be extended from March 1, 2013, as the


13     end, to April 1, 2013.  Thank you.


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


15     Ms. Herron.  Next I have Henry Glowiak as a


16     maybe.  Are you a yes or are you a no,


17     Mr. Glowiak, if you're still with us?  Sorry if


18     I've pronounced that -- done an injustice to


19     that.  No?  Not with us.  Okay.


20                  Sam Wilson.  Okay.  He may be in


21     the lobby.  So, somebody's going to go see if


22     Sam wants to --


23                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  How are you


24     doing?
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  How are


 2     you, sir.


 3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  I don't believe


 4     I put my name on to speak, but I do have one


 5     comment.  I believe that the -- that any


 6     regulation that any agency, I don't care who it


 7     is, Natural Resources or DelDOT, whoever, that's


 8     put regulations upon the public, the general


 9     public, that this regulation, you've come up


10     with the ideas before it can be finally


11     approved, it must go to the General Assembly.


12                  They are the ones who make it, and


13     they should be the ones responsible for every


14     regulation.  And if they're not doing the job


15     right, the general public has to know about


16     this, and they have the right to vote them out.


17     If bureaucrats continue to make regulations, all


18     we can do is we can fuss.  You can't really be


19     replaced, or neither can anyone else.


20                  So, my recommendation is, let's put


21     this -- these regulations back in to the people


22     that should be responsible.  Those are the


23     legislators.  And let them tell you at the final


24     that it's improved or not approved.
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 1                  If it's important enough to levy


 2     fines and regulations, it's important enough for


 3     them to vote on.


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you


 5     Councilman Wilson.  The last thing I have signed


 6     up, and we'll go back out and see if anybody has


 7     any final thoughts that they want to share, or


 8     if folks have been here and decided that they


 9     would like to share something with us.


10     Mr. Cramer.


11                  MR. CRAMER:  I believe I'm signed


12     in.


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You are.


14                  MR. CRAMER:  Okay.


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I have a


16     note that said you wanted to have the last word,


17     and it turned out you were last on the list,


18     so --


19                  MR. CRAMER:  Well, it didn't really


20     matter.  I just didn't want to be the first one.


21     I wanted to see what the others had to say


22     first.  My name is Dan Cramer.  Can you actually


23     hear me, or do you need me to get closer to the


24     mike?
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 1                  Well, I'll tell you what.  How do


 2     you not start a business?  DNREC.  That's how


 3     you don't start a business.  A couple years


 4     ago -- it had to have been more than three years


 5     ago, because my face got messed up, so it had to


 6     be more than three years ago when I was in a


 7     meeting and I said you know how you solve this


 8     problem.  I wanted to get into business for this


 9     particular problem, and it would have helped the


10     environment.


11                  But then I was told, oh, you can't


12     do that without a permit from DNREC, because it


13     has a diesel engine on it.  So in order to do


14     this, in order for me to pollute the air, I had


15     to kiss DNREC.  And that's one person, people,


16     or whatever, I'm not going to kiss.


17                  So therefore, the business is not


18     going to start.  And it would have.  The machine


19     itself costs about $250,000.  Another building


20     would have had to have been put up, and trucks


21     bought.  Would have been about a half a million


22     dollars.  And in fact, five guys would have had


23     jobs.


24                  But do you think I'm going to
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 1     invest $500,000 and they're going to tell me


 2     when I can start the motor, when I have to shut


 3     it off?  And if you don't believe so, go watch


 4     the advertising in the fine print, generally on


 5     a Sunday in The News Journal.  And you'll see


 6     where somebody wants to use a diesel engine, and


 7     they'll say, oh, so many pounds of X, so many


 8     pounds of Y, and so many pounds of Z is going to


 9     be put out.  And this is regulated, and you will


10     not be permitted to put out more.


11                  And I'll tell you what actually


12     happened.  This is a true story.  Delaware


13     Electric put a diesel engine to their plant, to


14     their headquarters.  Wanting to use it as a


15     backup when electric went off and they needed


16     more electric.  They were flat-out told, don't


17     start that engine.  Now, did they change


18     anything since then?  Don't know.  Don't really


19     care.


20                  The whole thing is a bunch of crap,


21     because that little bit of pollution that I


22     wanted to put out, I would have offset it by


23     reducing the pollution of what I was going to


24     remove.  But I'm not going to -- I'd rather take
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 1     that $500,000 and just stick it in a bank, get


 2     that 1 percent.  I'd be way ahead of the game.


 3                  And now that's going to talk a


 4     little bit about septic tanks.  These same


 5     septic tanks that they want to now bring in


 6     here, 15 years ago they wouldn't even approve


 7     them.  Why not?  Because they said they didn't


 8     work.


 9                  When the fact of the matter was, in


10     Ohio they were being used and the water was not


11     putting to the ground.  It was actually put


12     right along the driveway and that, and the


13     longer roads.  And I said how in the world can


14     you do that?  The health department approved it.


15     That's how good the water was.


16                  And by the way, all these Inland


17     Bay people here that are so hepped up, the best


18     thing you guys could do in the Inland Bays area,


19     move out of there.  Because then that pollution


20     won't be there, because you're the ones


21     polluting it.  Thank you.


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


23     Mr. Cramer.  I don't have any other folks signed


24     up to speak.  Is there anyone who would like to
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 1     speak who hasn't?  Is there anyone who would


 2     like to speak again?


 3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  Me.  I got one


 4     comment.  I don't need to come up there, but --


 5     Sam Wilson.  I'd like to make one quick comment.


 6     Sulfur has been removed from fuel oil, diesel


 7     fuel, and a lot of money's been spent, a lot of


 8     regulations.  At this point in time, farmers are


 9     buying sulfur to put on their farms.  We're just


10     actually wasting people's money to do -- or take


11     away sulfur out of fuel.  And it's only got


12     worse since now we've taken sulfur out of fuel.


13     Before, we did get some natural sulfur, things


14     like that, that would come back on the soil.


15     But now we're short on sulfur.


16                  So, it's just a comment.  Let us


17     know what -- how some things -- the EPA has


18     screwed up a lot of things, and it's cost us a


19     lot of money, and it doesn't amount to a hill of


20     beans, and that made things worse.  Thank you.


21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.


22     Mr. Moyer.


23                  MR. MOYER:  Again, president of the


24     Inland Bays Foundation.  I would like to remind
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 1     the commenters and DNREC that Executive Order 36


 2     was very specific on what regulations are going


 3     to be reviewed, and those are regulations that


 4     are older than three years.  And much of the


 5     testimony tonight has been on regulations that


 6     have been proposed within the last three years.


 7                  So, I would request that the


 8     Department stick with the requirements of the


 9     Executive Order, and/or get clarification as to


10     whether or not it's going to look at regulations


11     that have been adopted after that three-year


12     limit, and would urge them to stick with the


13     intent of Executive Order 36.  Thank you.


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


15     Mr. Moyer.  Mr. Wheatley.


16                  MR. WHEATLEY:  My name is Bob


17     Wheatley, and I would ask that you would allow


18     common sense to prevail, and respect the


19     comments of every person here who bothered to


20     give up their time to show up, whether it was a


21     regulation three years old, one year old, or a


22     regulation yet to be promulgated.


23                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,


24     sir.  Seeing no other hands, I wanted to take a
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 1     moment to thank all of you for coming, and


 2     either sharing your thoughts or coming to


 3     listen.  I appreciate the respect with which you


 4     delivered your comments, the thought that you've


 5     provided behind those.


 6                  And I would just say this:  I also


 7     heard a number of issues that are examples that


 8     people brought to the microphone.  There is a


 9     larger regulatory context behind most of them,


10     but if you're -- I would encourage you, if


11     you're having issues, and maybe you've tried and


12     this didn't work for you, but you know, working


13     with the agency, as Representative Gray


14     mentioned earlier, to try and solve issues and


15     navigate through some of these regulatory


16     hurdles, you know, we do a pretty good job if we


17     are given the opportunity.


18                  We don't always get it right, and I


19     understand that, but I would just encourage you


20     all to reach out to the agency and let us know


21     what your challenges are.  We might be able to


22     help you.  Not to say that there isn't a


23     regulatory issue behind that, but you know, we


24     spend a lot of time working with constituents
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 1     and the regulated community to try and both be


 2     protective and responsible and reasonable.


 3                  So with that I will stop, and


 4     again, thank you all.  And remember, we have


 5     additional hearings.  Right now the public


 6     comment period is open until March 1.


 7     Ms. Herron, your request will be taken under


 8     advisement.


 9                  So, thank you all again.


10                  (Hearing concluded at 7:55 p.m.)
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 1      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Well, good
 2  evening, and thank you all for coming out
 3  tonight.  My name is David Small, I'm the Deputy
 4  Secretary for the Delaware Department of Natural
 5  Resources and Environmental Control, and we're
 6  here tonight, really, to listen to you all.
 7      If you'll indulge me for a few
 8  minutes, let me give you a little bit of
 9  background.  If you're here, you obviously know
10  a little something about the purpose for this
11  evening.  In June, Governor Markell signed an
12  Executive Order directing all of the Cabinet
13  agencies to take a look at their regulations and
14  see if there was a way to reduce the burden on
15  individuals in the business community here in
16  the state of Delaware.
17      There's been a lot of interest over
18  the years in this topic.  There was some
19  legislative interest in this topic last -- last
20  year.  And so, as a result, the Governor signed
21  the Executive Order.  It's available online.
22  I'm not sure if we have copies here with us, but
23  we can certainly get you copies if you haven't
24  been able to take a look.
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 1      So, beginning in the fall, there
 2  were agencies that went through a very similar
 3  process to this, and they are in the process of
 4  looking at public comments and reviewing their
 5  own regulations.
 6      And I have to tell you, and you all
 7  probably know it, DNREC certainly is a very
 8  diverse agency, and we touch a lot of different
 9  functions and activities.  And so, we are in the
10  midst of reviewing these regulations, all of
11  these regulations ourselves.  And we're trying
12  to do this with an eye towards maintaining
13  environmental standards.
14      And the reason I say that is a
15  number of our programs are delegated to us from
16  Federal agencies; notably, EPA, as you might
17  expect, in the areas of, particularly, of air,
18  waste, hazardous waste, and water.  And so, in
19  order to -- excuse me -- maintain those
20  programs, we have to maintain regulations that
21  are adapted at the local level, but adopt
22  Federal standards.
23      And so, one of the things we have
24  done, and are continuing to do, is look at not
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 1  so much those standards, necessarily, but maybe
 2  how we meet those standards; looking for
 3  flexibility in doing that, and looking at some
 4  processes.
 5      And I can tell you that, you know,
 6  over the years, we've engaged a number of
 7  techniques to try to be more efficient in our
 8  permitting process and reduce turnaround times
 9  for folks that are waiting on permits.  Some
10  programs have really pushed this issue and done
11  very well.  In our air program, for example, and
12  some of our water programs.  You know, we are
13  down to about 50 percent turnaround times and
14  waiting times from where we were a number of
15  years ago.
16      So, but this process really is
17  important to hear from you all.  And we're here
18  tonight, we will be in Kent County next Monday
19  evening at Delaware State University.  And we
20  can give you the details, Martin Luther King
21  Center there.  And then on the 22nd of this
22  month, we will be, at the same time, 6 p.m., and
23  it's a Tuesday evening, we will be at the Carvel
24  Building in Wilmington, in the auditorium up on
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 1  the mezzanine level.
 2      And beyond that, if you -- you
 3  know, this process isn't closed tonight.  And if
 4  you think that you forgot to say something and
 5  you get home, please feel free to send us
 6  comments.  We're accepting written comments
 7  until March 1.  And at that point, then, we will
 8  take everything that we've gotten from our
 9  public hearings, from the written comments that
10  we've received, and you can -- you can submit
11  those in writing or you can submit them
12  electronically online from our website.
13      And that, in combination with our
14  own review, we'll be developing a report, as I
15  mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the
16  Governor, with recommended changes on a number
17  of regulatory fronts.
18      And we've been thinking about
19  those.  We have -- you know, we've been looking
20  at our Coastal Zone regs, for example.  We see
21  some unevenness there.  In Sussex County, in the
22  wetlands and subaqueous lands permit, again, not
23  so much the standards that we have, but maybe in
24  creating some efficiencies, and maybe a little
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 1  bit more certainty in those programs.
 2      So, you know, again, we're
 3  interested in hearing from you on those and any
 4  of a number of other subjects.  Let me just
 5  mention, you know, we have a diverse agency.  We
 6  have our Division of Energy and Climate that
 7  administers regulations on our Green Energy
 8  Fund, for example.  This is a program that if
 9  you are a Delmarva Power customer, for example,
10  you can apply for it and receive funding for
11  installation of renewables.
12      We have our Division of Air, which
13  is responsible for monitoring our state's air
14  quality and regulating any of the number of
15  sources.  It's been a very aggressive and
16  effective program, and quite honestly, we think
17  we need some help from EPA to help us with some
18  of the states to the west of us, for a level
19  playing field.  But that certainly is a very
20  large volume of regulations that touch a lot of
21  different sources of air emissions.
22      Our Division of Waste and Hazardous
23  Substances regulates solid waste, it regulates
24  hazardous waste.  Things, if you're in the waste
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 1  hauling business, for example, you need a permit
 2  from us for transportation of that material.  If
 3  you handle hazardous waste or if you store it or
 4  if you dispose of it, for example, you need some
 5  oversight from the Department.
 6      We also are responsible for
 7  cleaning up legacy contamination sites.
 8  Superfund sites are the worst ones.  Those are
 9  established by EPA, and the State, since 1990,
10  has had a program to oversee the cleanup of
11  sites that aren't quite as contaminated, but
12  still need to be addressed in order to minimize
13  impacts on public health and the environment.
14      We have our Division of Water,
15  which oversees the discharge of wastewater in
16  any of a manner of functions.  That could be a
17  discharge into surface water, such as rivers,
18  streams, or bays, and also, septic systems.
19  Some of you may have that on your mind this
20  evening, I know we've just gone through a
21  process recently.  As well as spray irrigation,
22  there are a number of sites that are operated by
23  facilities that are operated by the County, as
24  well as municipalities and the private sector,
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 1  private wastewater utilities, that -- that
 2  operate spray irrigation facilities.  Those two
 3  are subject to regulation oversight and
 4  permitting by the agency.
 5      Wells, if any of you have
 6  individual wells on your property, either for
 7  residential purposes or for business purposes,
 8  we oversee the design, construction, and
 9  installation of those wells, along -- and I
10  mentioned septic systems earlier.
11      The Division of Fish and Wildlife,
12  I don't know if any of you are anglers or
13  hunters, or otherwise interested in habitat and
14  wildlife and fisheries, but there is a body of
15  regulation, as you might well expect, that comes
16  with managing those natural resources.  And you
17  know, we have advisory councils in the agency
18  that we work very closely with on development of
19  those regulations that may mean size and creel
20  limits for Weakfish and any of a number of other
21  species, but those are regulatory actions that
22  the agency takes routinely, as well.
23      Our Division of Parks has
24  regulations in place to oversee its park
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 1  activities.  So, you get a sense.  Division of
 2  Watershed Stewardship, for example, stormwater
 3  requirements.  There was legislation passed in
 4  1990 overseeing stormwater, getting a better
 5  handle on the impacts, potentially, to our
 6  ground and surface waters from surface -- from
 7  stormwater.  And that program's been in place,
 8  in Sussex County the program is delegated to the
 9  Sussex Conservation District for stormwater
10  management and oversight of plans.
11      But that division is also
12  responsible for oversight of construction on our
13  beachfront.  The Beach Act passed probably back
14  in the '90s, as well, maybe a little earlier
15  than that.  It regulates the type and placement
16  of construction along the beachfront to make
17  sure that we're preserving our dune system,
18  which, as we found this past fall with Hurricane
19  Sandy, is a very, very important natural
20  resource for us to manage.
21      I think that's -- you know, that's
22  just a quick, quick snapshot of all of our --
23  you know, of our divisions.  We have a lot of
24  touch points with all of you.  We're interested
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 1  in hearing from all of you, either -- you know,
 2  in whatever format that is most comfortable for
 3  you.
 4      I will tell you that this evening
 5  we do have a stenographer here who is providing
 6  a transcript for us, so we'll be able to capture
 7  your comments verbatim.  And so, what I'm going
 8  to do is -- and I should also state, say, we
 9  have a number of staff here this evening, that,
10  you know, if we need to answer some questions,
11  we can try and do that.
12      But this is really, again, we're
13  here to listen.  You know, and if we need to
14  respond we will, but we want to get your
15  feedback and your comments.
16      And so, with that, I will say that
17  I have a list of folks who have signed in and
18  indicated that they would like to speak.  And
19  what I will do is ask you to come down, and
20  maybe I'll step over to this mike, because most
21  of the folks are sitting over here.  But we have
22  folks sitting in the back, and what I'd ask you
23  to do, if that's okay, is to come down to the
24  front.  We have some wireless mikes, but they
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 1  don't seem to be working this evening.
 2      So in fairness to everybody, so
 3  that everyone can hear and that our stenographer
 4  can be sure to accurately record your comments,
 5  I'd ask you to come down and provide some
 6  feedback, if that's okay.
 7      Let me just take a quick look to
 8  see if there's any other notes that I need to
 9  share with you before I start with our list of
10  sign-ins.  I think that's enough of me talking.
11      So, I'm going to go to the list
12  that we received as people signed in.  And I
13  will apologize in advance if I don't get your
14  name correct.  But it looks to me like the first
15  name that I have is Carol Zander.  Am I right?
16  Ms. Zander, if you could come down, please.
17      MS. ZANDER: Good evening.  I was
18  hoping not to be the first, but I came this
19  evening because I understood from the radio and
20  from some things I had read that DNREC is
21  planning to impose new septic regulations on
22  anybody who's within 1000 feet of the
23  waterfront.  Of any waterfront, along any body
24  of water.  Can you tell me, is that true?  And
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 1  what those new regulations are going to be that
 2  we're going to have to deal with.  I mean is it
 3  as draconian as I've heard?
 4      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Is that
 5  your -- is that it?  Can I come over to the
 6  mike?
 7      MS. ZANDER: Yeah, can I -- can I
 8  ask questions when you get finished, if
 9  necessary?
10      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Sure.  Let
11  me -- so, we have gone through a public hearing
12  process twice now on the proposed changes to our
13  on-site wastewater regulations.  And so, the
14  public record is closed on that specific
15  regulation.  We're happy to hear comments on
16  those this evening, as well.
17      I believe, specifically to your
18  question, what the regulation proposes is that
19  if you have to completely replace your existing
20  system, or if you're building -- putting in a
21  new system and you are within 1000 feet of the
22  Nanticoke River, the tidal portions, only the
23  tidal portions of the Nanticoke River or Broad
24  Creek, then under those conditions, when these
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 1  regulations would be promulgated -- and they
 2  have not yet been promulgated -- then you could
 3  be required to install what we're calling an
 4  enhanced nutrient removal system, okay?
 5      MS. ZANDER: Uh-huh.
 6      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Now, I
 7  will also tell you that we have gotten a large
 8  body of public comment on this.  We are
 9  reviewing that.  We've had, you know, the
10  General Assembly has expressed some opinions
11  about this, as well.  So, we're taking a look at
12  that.
13      It may be that we make some further
14  changes to those regulations.  And if we do,
15  there will be additional opportunity for public
16  comment, when that happens.
17      MS. ZANDER: So they're not
18  affecting us right here in this area, as of now?
19      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Well, we
20  have existing regulations in place now for --
21  that dictate the -- you know, how septic systems
22  are installed, managed, et cetera.  These would
23  be an update to those regulations.  But they are
24  not in effect, what we have proposed and what
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 1  you mentioned about the 1000 feet is not in
 2  effect right now.  It is in effect in the tidal
 3  waters around the Inland Bays.  But again, it's
 4  1000 feet within tidal waters of the Inland Bays
 5  watershed.
 6      MS. ZANDER: Okay.  Does that cover
 7  what I -- do you want me to --
 8      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Yes,
 9  please.
10      MS. ZANDER: Okay.  What I've heard
11  is that we would be required, if we live within
12  1000 feet of a body of water, say the Indian
13  River, okay, that we would be required to be
14  having two inspections a year at our cost for
15  our septic system.  Is that one of the things
16  that, you know, I'm looking forward to?
17      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: So, what
18  the proposed regulation would do, and I'm
19  looking at Jim Cassidy.  Jim is our manager in
20  our Georgetown office for the on-site branch.
21  What would be required, if you put in one of
22  those enhanced systems, then you would need
23  inspections twice a year.
24      MS. ZANDER: Oh, okay.


Page 15


 1      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: And part
 2  of the reason for that is that the
 3  manufacturer's warranty, I believe, requires
 4  inspections, at least for the first two years,
 5  twice a year.
 6      MS. ZANDER: Okay.  So there's
 7  nothing that's affecting the existing homeowners
 8  at this particular time?
 9      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Other than
10  our --
11      MS. ZANDER: Other than what's
12  already --
13      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Other than
14  what's already in place.
15      MS. ZANDER: Okay.  Thank you.
16      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Mr. Jim
17  Baxter.  Mr. Baxter?
18      MR. BAXTER: As you probably know,
19  we take the sludge, from the last pickup to now,
20  and what I don't understand is that we have
21  two -- we have two places on Toccopola Farms
22  where you've had a -- what I call a mound
23  system.  It's right on the line with us, as
24  farming.  But yet, when we have to get the
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 1  permit, or the company does that we do it for,
 2  we have to get a permit from you folks to put
 3  the sludge on, and we have to be 30 foot from
 4  the property line.  I don't hardly understand
 5  why.
 6      And maybe you can't give me an
 7  answer, either, but to me, it looks a little bit
 8  asinine to be able to put a heap of sludge, no
 9  medication, no nothing, onto -- next to our
10  property line.  I can show it to you any time
11  you want to come out there.  And I don't
12  understand why it is a 30-foot from the property
13  line, we can only -- we have to -- we can only
14  start that far away to put the sludge on.  It's
15  been treated and okayed, but none of those mound
16  systems have ever been treated, as far as I
17  know.  Okay?
18      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you.
19  The next name I have is Dave -- Jaeger?  Is that
20  right?
21      MR. JACOBSON: Jacobs.  I'm sorry.
22  Do we have another Dave Jacobs?
23      MR. JAEGER: It's Jaeger.
24      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: What's
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 1  your last name?
 2      MR. JAEGER: Jaeger.  J-a-e-g-e-r,
 3  that's correct.  I'll make this short.  My name
 4  is David Jaeger, and I live in Selbyville.
 5  While I support the Governor's desire to
 6  simplify DNREC's regulations, I am concerned
 7  that this might lead to a weakening of controls
 8  on the amount of pollution on our air, land, and
 9  water, particularly around our Inland Bays.
10  These bays are the jewel of Sussex County, and
11  indeed, the whole state, but they are repeatedly
12  threatened by overdevelopment.
13      And one of the main protectors of
14  the Inland Bays watershed is DNREC.  They are
15  charged with sustaining this prize for future
16  generations, at the same time allowing for
17  reasonable development.  That's a tough job, and
18  I don't envy them this responsibility, but it's
19  one that we all must support and respect.
20      I am particularly concerned about
21  Sussex County, now that the economy is picking
22  up again and the building boom is likely to
23  resume to accommodate the baby boomers looking
24  to retire to lower slower Delaware.  But the
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 1  very qualities that attract folks are at risk
 2  from overdevelopment and pollution, such as
 3  septic tanks and ill-conceived wastewater
 4  systems.  We need scientific and fact-based
 5  controls that only DNREC can provide to preserve
 6  this God-given gift of nature for future
 7  generations.  Thank you.
 8      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
 9  Mr. Jaeger.  Next I have Floyd Morton.
10      MR. MORTON: Thank you for giving
11  me this time to speak.  You had mentioned there
12  was actually going to be changes in regulations
13  for anglers, and that's going to be through, I
14  believe, the Delaware Bayshore Initiative
15  program?
16      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Well, I
17  think I was talking about regulations maybe in
18  size and creel limits as examples of the type of
19  diverse regulatory oversight that we're charged
20  with.
21      MR. MORTON: Okay.  And --
22      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: I wasn't
23  here to propose anything specific.
24      MR. MORTON: I understand.  But do
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 1  you have any specific that you're going to be
 2  changing?
 3      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: I can tell
 4  you this:  There are, it seems to me, always
 5  changes that are pending in the world of
 6  fisheries management.  Mostly because we are
 7  responsible for maintaining compliance with
 8  somewhere around 17 fishery management plans
 9  that are coastwide.
10      As you well know, fish move through
11  waters.  They don't just stay stationary.  So we
12  have to work with other states to manage those,
13  and there are a number of agency organizations,
14  multistate organizations that work
15  collaboratively most of the times to try to
16  manage those stocks.
17      So there is the chance that over
18  the course of the coming year, that there will
19  be some type of regulatory change proposed in
20  order to maintain compliance with those, but I
21  can't sit here and cite exactly what those are.
22      MR. MORTON: I mean isn't this a
23  public comment, where we can get our comments to
24  how we feel about something?
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 1      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Sure.
 2      MR. MORTON: That's what I'm
 3  saying, is this is open for something like that,
 4  correct?
 5      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Sure.
 6      MR. MORTON: But you don't have any
 7  kind of regulations or anything like that that
 8  we can say, hey, we're for this, or you know,
 9  what -- it's almost like writing a blank check.
10      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Right.  So
11  you know, the more specific that your comments
12  can be -- and I'll say this to everyone -- about
13  individual regulations, if there's a particular
14  species, or -- you know, it can be open, but the
15  things that will be most helpful to us are
16  comments that are as specific as you can be.
17      That's not to say that we're not
18  here to listen to whatever you have to say, but
19  you know, I think those things will be
20  particularly constructive.  So with that, would
21  you go ahead, please.
22      MR. MORTON: I saw this morning,
23  and the Delaware Bayshore Initiative was
24  actually mentioned during this.  Is there
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 1  something that's actually going on with the
 2  Delaware Bayshore Initiative that pertains to
 3  this meeting tonight?
 4      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: The
 5  Delaware Bayshore Initiative is not a regulatory
 6  initiative.  It is, really, the notion behind
 7  that, very quickly, is to really bring in some
 8  of, you know, non-regulatory programs working
 9  more collaboratively together to conserve
10  habitat in the bayshore, protect lands, keep,
11  you know, working lands working and in private
12  hands.
13      MR. MORTON: Uh-huh.
14      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: And you
15  know, restore habitat where possible, and create
16  low impact recreational and economic development
17  opportunities through -- through tourism.  As
18  you know, there are, you know, a lot of that
19  kind of activity going on along the bayshore,
20  and we would like to enhance those efforts.
21      MR. MORTON: Okay.  As of right
22  now, do you have anything pending that pertains
23  to the Delaware Bayshore Initiative that you
24  could speak about tonight?
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 1      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Not in a
 2  regulatory context, no.
 3      MR. MORTON: Okay.
 4      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: This
 5  meeting is about regulations.  The bayshore is
 6  not a regulatory initiative.
 7      MR. MORTON: That's all I've got.
 8  Thank you.
 9      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you.
10  I believe it's Sally Ford?
11      MS. FORD: I'm a surveyor, and I --
12  my interaction with DNREC is basically doing
13  stormwater management.  And my one comment in
14  general is that I believed these hearings were
15  to discuss regulations that were in effect three
16  years ago.  And yet, there were supposed to be
17  new regulations in effect as of January 1.
18      So, my comment is, why am I
19  addressing old regulations, when there's
20  supposed to be new ones?
21      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: The focus
22  of the Executive Order was on regulations that
23  had not been amended or opened, if you will, for
24  a three-year period or more.
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 1      MS. FORD: Okay.
 2      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: And the
 3  idea behind that being that there may be some
 4  regulations that hadn't gotten attention within
 5  the past three years, that needed to be updated.
 6      So, that's the focus.  But it's not
 7  the exclusive intent of this process to
 8  remain -- you know, to address only those
 9  regulations.  So, you know, we're looking at it
10  as an opportunity to go beyond that, if need be.
11  But I think the body of our work and review will
12  focus on those older regulations.
13      MS. FORD: Can I comment on the new
14  ones?
15      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Please, go
16  ahead.
17      MS. FORD: Okay.  My first comment,
18  though, concerns -- it's relative to the old and
19  to the new.
20      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Okay.
21      MS. FORD: And that's the notice of
22  intent permit that people get when they're doing
23  construction.  And I know it comes down from
24  EPA, and my feedback has always been, well, EPA
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 1  makes us keep it active until the last bit of
 2  construction is done.  And I have several
 3  projects that it affects greatly, one being a
 4  commercial property where all utilities are in,
 5  all surfaces are paved, site is fully graded,
 6  all buildings are up except for one last
 7  building, a 3000 square foot building.
 8      I have as-builts and approvals for
 9  everything that's been done.  And yet, I have to
10  keep the NOI open, and DNREC won't issue me a
11  final because they say the NOI has to stay open.
12  Well, if this building doesn't get built for ten
13  years, there's a fee involved, there's our fee
14  for keeping us current with the -- with
15  everything.
16      And I believe it should be allowed
17  to terminate when the site is fully stabilized,
18  all approvals for utilities, site improvements,
19  are complete.  And if -- when they decide to
20  build the last building, you have to get a
21  general permit just for that 3000 square foot
22  improvement, that should be acceptable.  Because
23  the stormwater already took into consideration
24  that building being there.
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 1      I have -- another example would be
 2  your subdivision drawings, where you have a
 3  subdivision, and a lot remains vacant for 40
 4  years, because somebody in their 20s bought it
 5  hoping to build on it when they retired.  You're
 6  going to keep the developer liable with that NOI
 7  for 40 years until that last house gets built?
 8  That seems erroneous, or that doesn't seem fair.
 9      And again, the site and the
10  stormwater management was -- that building was
11  taken into consideration, that there would be a
12  house on that lot eventually.  To keep the NOI
13  open and the stormwater permit open for that
14  amount of time -- there should be a way to close
15  a permit, reopen it if you need to, with the
16  notion that we're only building what's already
17  been approved, and it's less than the 5000
18  square foot standard disturbance, where you can
19  qualify for the general permit.
20      Along the same line, another little
21  thing that really bothers me, in 2006 DNREC
22  stated everybody was going to have to pay for
23  the NOI annually, which is $195.  Not a big bill
24  for the big developers, but for your littler
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 1  jobs, it can get to be a big bill.
 2      And in the new regulations, they've
 3  inserted that letter into the technical
 4  documents, which I believe makes it now a
 5  regulation, that there will be that $195 every
 6  year.  But it can't close out.  There's no way
 7  of closing out the NOI until that last lot is
 8  built upon.
 9      I just took for an example the NOIs
10  that were still open, and I only went back to
11  2005.  And I know NOIs go back to 2001.  And
12  going back to just 2005, with the amount that
13  are still open, you would be collecting $195,000
14  a year, just annually, just to keep everybody's
15  NOIs current.
16      So, I take insult to it, that it's
17  a little bit more of a revenue generator than
18  really do you need to charge that every year,
19  when we can't physically close it out because
20  you won't let us close it out.
21      A couple things in the new
22  regulations -- and I'll probably do more in
23  writing -- but they're treating wooded lots
24  different than a cleared lot.  And I feel it's
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 1  unfair for somebody who wants to preserve trees,
 2  and therefore, hasn't cleared their lot, to be
 3  penalized now, when they go for their stormwater
 4  management or they go for their general permit,
 5  to have to go an additional step, versus the
 6  person who cleared their lot five years ago, and
 7  they can just get the general permit without
 8  question.
 9      The other -- the other item, too,
10  is the general permit, they were going to allow
11  based on a percentage of impervious on the lot,
12  and that discriminates against your smaller
13  lots, because you'll reach that percentage of
14  impervious a lot quicker than you will on a
15  one-acre lot.  Therefore, you're penalizing the
16  smaller lots, versus the larger lots, as far as
17  the amount of work that they're going to have to
18  hire my company to do.
19      And I also feel, in general, that
20  most of what was approved in revisions back in
21  2005 or 2004, when they were done previously,
22  are just getting built today.  A lot of my
23  projects are under those regulations and are
24  just getting built, so you don't even know how
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 1  they work, and they're changing the regulations.
 2  So, do you have any comment?
 3      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: I don't.
 4  Thank you.  I appreciate your comments.
 5      MS. FORD: Okay.
 6      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Oh, boy.
 7  Don -- hmm.  Tom?
 8      MR. FORD: I think I'm after Sally.
 9  Tom Ford.  I have a very specific item.  Number
10  one, Dave, I'd like to take issue, the whole
11  point of this meeting is to simplify permitting
12  and cost and expediate it, and during your
13  introduction, you basically said DNREC is doing
14  a great job and has simplified and expediated
15  permitting.  And I've been in the field for 30
16  years, and I'm telling you, it's getting more
17  complicated every day, and it takes longer, and
18  costs more.
19      And but specifically, I -- our
20  company just got a dock rebuild and extension
21  permit.  It took over a year to get it.  It took
22  a lot of back and forth with DNREC.
23      I don't have a problem with that
24  process.  What I do have a problem with is at
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 1  the end of the process, it's assigned personally
 2  to the applicant.  And unfortunately, this
 3  applicant died three weeks after the permit was
 4  approved and recorded, signed by Collin O'Mara,
 5  the whole deal.
 6      So, the estate now has to go back
 7  to DNREC.  And I'm not saying DNREC's going to
 8  withhold that approval, but I find it -- why are
 9  we allowing a 20-year lease out on our
10  subaqueous lands for a pier personally?  It
11  should go with the land.
12      UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That's
13  right.
14      MR. FORD: And DelDOT's doing that
15  to entrance permits, and DNREC is doing that.
16  And I find the banking community and development
17  community can't live with those unknowns.  At
18  any point, say a movie theater sells the movie
19  theater, that DelDOT permit and any DNREC septic
20  permit, or whatever, should flow with the land.
21  Not be assigned personally.  Because it marks
22  the land -- and the banking community is not
23  aware of this, and the real estate community's
24  not aware of this.  And it's a big major issue.
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 1      And it needs to be fixed and
 2  addressed, and you need to determine why you
 3  need to do that.  Because you have the power to
 4  revoke that permit, from anybody who uses it.
 5  No matter who's the assigneds, who's the heirs,
 6  or who the rental unit of users, if they violate
 7  any issue of that permit, DNREC has that in
 8  there, too.
 9      So why does that have to be
10  assigned personally?  You know, that property's
11  going to change hands in 20 years.  What
12  property doesn't?  Very few.  The bulk of the
13  properties exchange.
14      That needs to be fixed, and it
15  needs to be fixed throughout the State.  And so,
16  I just bring that up, because it's a very
17  specific, and it's a very annoying bureaucratic
18  process that doesn't help anybody.  It just gets
19  in the way.  And why that estate has to come
20  back to you and ask for you to do that permit is
21  ridiculous.
22      I think what my -- Sally Ford
23  brought out about the NOI is the problem you
24  have is in a development, not all lots are built
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 1  on.  You're going to build the roads, you're
 2  going to put the stormwater in, you're going to
 3  get them approved, you're going to do the
 4  as-builts.
 5      You spend hundreds of thousands of
 6  dollars on some larger developments, and the
 7  developer eventually is going to sell out to the
 8  HOA.  And the HOA isn't going to take over when
 9  there's 100 percent build-out.  So the HOAs,
10  ordinary citizens who don't understand this
11  process, are going to get stuck paying that NOI.
12  They're not going to understand what they have
13  to do.  And it's -- it's ridiculous to go
14  beyond.
15      The land has all been developed,
16  and we're only going to go for one house at a
17  time.  I mean get a general permit, get a
18  sediment erosion control, stormwater has already
19  been fixed, and let people go.  Don't hold on to
20  them for 20 years.  Because 20 years from now
21  you might have a bunch of comments from those
22  HOAs.
23      The general person in this
24  community doesn't understand that, and how these
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 1  regulations affect them.  And these are big,
 2  major issues that our representatives are going
 3  to have to deal with, and you're going to have
 4  to deal with some day.  And I don't see the
 5  benefit.  Is it all about health, safety,
 6  welfare of the general public?  How does holding
 7  onto the NOI help them?  How does making a
 8  permit personal help the health, safety, welfare
 9  of the public?
10      These are specific issues, and I
11  know there's many others, but that's all I have
12  to say to you tonight.
13      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
14  Mr. Ford.  Next I have Ron Gray.
15      REPRESENTATIVE GRAY: Good evening.
16  I'm the new -- tomorrow I will be sworn in as a
17  Representative here for the State of Delaware.
18  I'm very, very proud to be doing that, and I'll
19  be representing all of the citizens in my
20  district, and much of that is in the natural
21  resource area.
22      We have the Inland Bays, the little
23  Assawoman Bay, my area, and up to Indian River
24  Bay as well, to the inlet.  I think because the
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 1  bridge washed out, I only -- I don't have to
 2  worry about that on the north side, that's
 3  another representative's side than me, so I want
 4  to make sure that doesn't happen.
 5      Running for office, regulation has
 6  always been a bad word for me, really.  And it's
 7  what I ran on, the platform.  The point I really
 8  want to make is, I just feel like DNREC needs to
 9  be more responsive in looking at it from the
10  perspective of the end user.  Not only what Tom
11  and Sally were talking about from the technical
12  person, but regulations in general.
13      I would like to see them being more
14  of the citizens and the technical folks that are
15  putting together the plans, to let them try to
16  work with you closely, instead of requiring them
17  to do things, let them partner with you to come
18  up with even better ways to improve the
19  environment and make it a better place.
20      And I feel that the regulations
21  typically become onerous, and I think that they
22  have been put in place because a few folks in
23  our community took advantage of it, or polluted,
24  and we go -- the pendulum has swung, so that the
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 1  regulations have become very onerous in many
 2  cases.
 3      And I would like to see more of a
 4  partnership, and not "regulation" should be a
 5  bad word.  We should all share with that, that
 6  we're trying to protect the environment for the
 7  jewel we have in our Inland Bays, and to
 8  maintain that.
 9      So, you're in a very difficult
10  position.  On the new -- my first reaction when
11  I heard that we were looking at regs that were
12  three years old was, well, what about the ones
13  that have gone into place in the last three
14  years?  But you have to start somewhere.  So, I
15  salute Governor Markell for taking an effort to
16  look at the regulations, even though he's
17  starting it at the three-year point.
18      But going forward, I feel like we
19  should -- we should try to work together, and
20  let -- and build a volunteer or support base
21  that all our natural resources, we want to
22  maintain those, and make them a better place,
23  and have volunteer support, and the community in
24  general want to work with DNREC, and not have it
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 1  as being told to do things, as much.
 2      So, that, in a nutshell, is really
 3  what I wanted to say.  So, I totally respect
 4  you, Dave.  I think you're in a tough position,
 5  because most of the times, people are looking at
 6  you as the bad guy, or DNREC as the bad guy.
 7  And I think that needs to change.  Thank you for
 8  letting me speak for a moment, and I look
 9  forward to working with you over the next couple
10  years.
11      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you
12  for your comments, Representative.
13      REPRESENTATIVE GRAY: Still
14  Representative Elect.
15      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Close
16  enough for me.  Next I have Bob and Renee
17  Coleman.  Is that right?
18      MR. COLEMAN: I'm Bob Coleman.
19  I'll be speaking for both of us, I guess.  I've
20  been a property owner for close to 30 years now,
21  in various parts of Sussex County.  And I guess
22  I have to say that in general, I believe that
23  the people in this state and county are very
24  concerned about water and air quality, and
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 1  they're very anxious to have those sort of
 2  things improved.
 3      And 20, 25 years ago, I saw a lot
 4  of very significant improvements that were
 5  beneficial.  They made good sense.  But I do
 6  have to also say, over the last decade or so, it
 7  seems as though the regulations we're seeing
 8  come through are almost regulations for the sake
 9  of making a regulation, and they're not really
10  making any significant improvement in the
11  environment.  All they're doing is exerting more
12  and more control over infinitesimal limits, in
13  some cases, and a desire to control every
14  specific detail, down to the most minute thing.
15      If the Governor's really serious
16  about making these things work more smoothly and
17  having less negative impact, I think you need to
18  take a look at that, not only on existing
19  regulations, but also on these new ones that are
20  being discussed.
21      Now, as far as the new septic
22  regulations, I do have some comments on that,
23  also.  I understand that was a separate issue,
24  but it really ties into this, I think, as far as
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 1  the impact of regulations on the area.
 2      These new regulations, because of
 3  their tight controls, especially on nitrogens, I
 4  think, are going to impose a severe financial
 5  hardship to anyone holding a present property
 6  that may need repairs, or new property about to
 7  be built.  And in a time when the state and
 8  county are in such desperate need of things to
 9  help growth and help people survive, it just
10  seems totally wrong to be clamping down on
11  something, unless there's a true benefit to be
12  had.
13      Now, aside from the need for
14  putting in new systems, perhaps if you have to
15  replace them, there's, as someone else mentioned
16  earlier, this need for inspection costs, if you
17  happen to be unfortunate enough to need one of
18  these systems.  And not just the inspection
19  costs, but along with it goes a mandate that
20  regardless of individual property rights, an
21  inspector will have free access to your property
22  any time he wants, and you cannot deny access.
23  Now to me, that is a severe overreach of the
24  government.
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 1      And someone else also pointed out,
 2  the personal attachment of these permits.  To
 3  me, that just makes absolutely no sense at all.
 4  You're regulating runoff water from a piece of
 5  land.  Why does it get tied to the individual?
 6  That is nothing but a burdensome aspect to
 7  anybody, whether they're selling, passing it on
 8  to heirs, or whatever.  It's a real burden.
 9      And I also, as a professional
10  engineer, I have to raise a lot of questions
11  about some of these new regulations in terms of
12  their specific limits and how they're to be
13  implemented.  For example, many of these water
14  control limits that are going on right now are a
15  result, I understand, of follow-on from the EPA.
16  But once in a while the State needs to stand up
17  and get a backbone and say, hey, EPA, this
18  doesn't make any sense.
19      We're now looking at nitrogen level
20  limits for runoff water that are half the
21  allowable limits of drinking water.  Does that
22  make any sense to anybody?  I mean we're trying
23  to put water runoff into areas that's more pure
24  than the drinking water that a lot of people
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 1  drink.
 2      You know, I don't know if this
 3  falls under that area that the Governor was
 4  talking about in reviewing regulations, as far
 5  as burdens on business, but somebody needs to
 6  step back and take a look and say, is there any
 7  practical sense to some of these regulations.
 8      We're asking for huge expenses of
 9  money here for infinitesimal amounts of
10  difference, in the nitrogen content, just to use
11  one example.  And it's not even clear right now
12  whether those limits are achievable.
13      So, with that, enough said.  I hope
14  somebody puts some common sense into this.
15  Thank you.
16      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
17  Mr. Coleman.  Let me just respond to one point
18  that you raised on the language that's in the
19  septic regulations, and that is having to do
20  with property access.  We simply replicated
21  language that's preexisting in State law.  And
22  our interpretation of that, for as long as I've
23  been around, which is considerable, is that we
24  do not come onto a property for a septic
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 1  inspection without first contacting the owner
 2  and seeking permission.
 3      If, in the event we believe there
 4  is a public health threat that demands our
 5  immediate action, we can move more swiftly.  But
 6  I would hope that people recognize that we've
 7  exercised that authority with a great deal of
 8  respect over the years, and we plan to continue
 9  to do that.  But thank you for your comments.
10      Next I have Bill Moyer.
11      MR. MOYER: Good evening.  My name
12  is Bill Moyer.  I am president of the Inland
13  Bays Foundation.  And let me say, before I start
14  my formal remarks, that the Inland Bays
15  Foundation has no objection to the
16  simplification, or making regulations more user
17  friendly.  We think that there are ways that
18  that can be done without removing the protection
19  of the environment that they were intended for.
20      That said, let me read in my formal
21  comments.  As I said, I am president of the
22  Inland Bays Foundation, which is dedicated to
23  improving the environmental condition of our
24  polluted Inland Bays and their surrounding
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 1  watershed.
 2      Decades of effort by DNREC to
 3  restore the bays to their once swimmable and
 4  fishable state have met with some success, but
 5  real progress has been slowed by resistance from
 6  local organizations and improper land use
 7  decisions made by Sussex County.
 8      In the mid 1990s, I was a member of
 9  the then-Governor's Task Force on Inland Bays,
10  and I've served as an expert witness before the
11  Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission and
12  Sussex County Council for Development, that was
13  not in compliance with Sussex County's land use
14  plan.
15      I was born and raised in Sussex
16  County.  Although the Inland Bays Foundation
17  agrees with the intent of Executive Order 36, we
18  are concerned with some of the language that it
19  contains.  Specifically, the careful read of the
20  Order would lead one to believe that
21  environmental regulations are a deterrent to a
22  viable economy and to economic growth.  This is
23  not true.
24      Study after study has shown that
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 1  protecting our environment creates jobs, and in
 2  the case of Sussex County, ensures that people
 3  will continue to live, vacation, and recreate
 4  here.
 5      I have four documents that I would
 6  like to introduce into the record of this
 7  hearing.  The first is a report by the
 8  Chesapeake Bay Foundation, titled "Debunking The
 9  'Job Killer' Myth:  How Pollution Limits
10  Encourage Jobs in the Chesapeake Bay Region."The
11  report shows that there had been a 43 percent
12  increase in the number of environmental industry
13  jobs in Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Virginia
14  over the last three decades.
15      In a ground-breaking article in The
16  Scientific American more than 20 years ago, a
17  noted Harvard University Business School
18  economist concluded that, quote, "Strict
19  environmental regulations do not inevitably
20  hinder competitive advantages against viable.
21  Indeed, they all enhance it."
22      The report concludes, quote,
23  "Clean water also will mean more fish, crabs,
24  and oysters, which translate to more work and


Page 43


 1  thus, fishermen, processors, packers,
 2  restaurateurs and people in the tourism-related
 3  industries.  If history is any guide,
 4  environmental regulations will once again
 5  nourish God's creation."
 6      My second document is a report
 7  published on November 8, 2012, by the Public
 8  News Service.  It also concludes, "Here in this
 9  report, document after document, research after
10  research finding, show that especially in times
11  when the economy is slowing down, environmental
12  protection stimulates that economy and creates
13  jobs."
14      There are those groups in Sussex
15  County that would have us believe that positive
16  growth means growth without unnecessary
17  government interference, and without unnecessary
18  environmental regulations.  If they had their
19  way, development would occur anywhere, with
20  little oversight.  As I have stated, if this
21  occurs in Sussex County, this philosophy will
22  lead to uncontrolled, unsupportable growth, and
23  a deterioration of the quality of life in Sussex
24  County.
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 1      This has happened and continues to
 2  happen around the country, with the ultimate
 3  decline in property values and economic
 4  hardships.  It's time that we start learning
 5  from our past mistakes.
 6      Whereas, quote, "Number 7 of
 7  Executive Order 36 indicates a misunderstanding
 8  of the economics of environmental protection, in
 9  that it states it is the intent of this Order
10  to," quote, "reduce impediments to economic
11  growth," close quote, "caused by regulations
12  that may be reduced or streamlined."
13      The Executive Order calls for,
14  quote, "meaningful public input into the
15  regulatory reform process."  I would encourage
16  DNREC to give little consideration to any
17  comments received at these public hearings that
18  do not contain specific analyses of the adverse
19  economic impact of the regulation that anyone or
20  any group is requesting to be changed or
21  limited.
22      It would be irresponsible for DNREC
23  to make any changes without sufficient data on
24  which to base its decision.  Simply stating that
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 1  the regulation is bad or is not needed is
 2  inadequate.
 3      For example, I'm introducing a
 4  document showing suggested changes by a group
 5  advocating positive growth in Sussex County.  It
 6  requests the elimination of the nitrogen removal
 7  standard for small septic systems, removal of
 8  the 30-day property transfer requirement from
 9  all septic permits, and the permit transfer
10  requirement for dock permits.  There is
11  absolutely no supporting documentation on how
12  these changes are adversely affecting the
13  economy or are hindering growth.
14      Also, why would such a request be
15  made when water quality data clearly show that
16  the Inland Bays are overloaded with nitrogen,
17  leading to algae blooms and subsequent fish
18  kills.  The nitrogen discharged into the
19  groundwater eventually finds its ways into the
20  bays, as studies by the Delaware Geological
21  Survey have shown.
22      These pro-growth organizations have
23  stated that the Inland Bays are, quote,
24  "cleaning themselves up," close quote, and that
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 1  growth with fewer restrictions will lead to a
 2  better quality of life for Sussex County
 3  residents and visitors.
 4      Yet no facts or data has ever been
 5  presented by these groups to substantiate the
 6  supposed statement of fact.  These statements
 7  are made for self-serving interests of those
 8  that benefit financially from unrestricted and
 9  irresponsible growth.
10      I am sure that you will hear
11  similar claims tonight and at the other
12  scheduled hearings in Kent and New Castle
13  County.  Again, I implore DNREC to consider only
14  those changes that can show a conclusive benefit
15  to the environment and to the economy of each
16  county and the state of Delaware.  This is
17  clearly the intent of Executive Order 36.
18      Finally, I would ask that DNREC
19  reinstate the collection of subaqueous lands
20  fees for structures constructed on public
21  subaqueous lands that are generating revenue.
22  This was generated by House Bill 360 of the
23  General Assembly and adopted by DNREC on June
24  30, 1991.  Failure to collect these fees is
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 1  allowing private parties to build structures on
 2  State land, charge for the use of the
 3  structures, and pay no fee to the State for the
 4  use of State land.
 5      This would be similar to allowing
 6  someone to build a restaurant or concession in a
 7  State park and not charge a fee.  Failure to
 8  collect these fees for many years has resulted
 9  in the loss of millions of dollars in revenue
10  that could be used to offset the cost for
11  environmental protection in Delaware.
12      I am attaching a copy of this
13  document to my testimony.  Thank you for the
14  opportunity to comment.
15      THE DEPUTY SECRETARY: Thank you,
16  Mr. Moyer.  Next I have Scott Evans.
17      MR. EVANS: Tonight what I'm coming
18  here for is kind of like a third go around.  I'm
19  here for the soil evaluation for private
20  individual lots and developments.  There is a
21  five-year on there; after five years you have to
22  go back and get your lots reevaluated for your
23  soil samples.
24      I'm going through that now.  We
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 1  already had it done, which I bought a
 2  development, and in the meantime, while I bought
 3  it, probably after a year, probably when I had
 4  four years left, that at the end of that time,
 5  right now, we're having to go back and get all
 6  the lots done over again.  So we're paying
 7  double to get lots done, because of the five
 8  years.
 9      In talking with -- as a matter of
10  fact, Joe Duke, and some of the others, you
11  know, he was the one that said he doesn't agree
12  with it.  Soil doesn't change if anything
13  doesn't move.  If you have 50 years, that's one
14  thing.  But five years.
15      And so, this is about my third go
16  around.  The first time, Representative Hocker
17  spoke to you a while back and said something to
18  you about seeing if something could be done.  In
19  the meantime, I spoke again in Dover during one
20  of these hearings that you had and I haven't
21  heard anything.
22      Now, if it's been changed, I
23  haven't heard.  So that's why I'm here tonight,
24  to voice my opinion again.  Because this is not
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 1  right.  I mean five years.  Look, I'm 63 years
 2  old.  Five years don't take long to roll around.
 3  It's getting less all the time as I get older.
 4      So you know, it needs to be --
 5  something needs to be done, because now we're
 6  paying -- I just got one today for you guys
 7  right in the mail, that we just had done on
 8  another lot.  So, I mean we're paying double,
 9  and that's not right.  I mean nothing changes.
10  It doesn't go.
11      I think it needs to be extended out
12  a little bit longer than -- than five years,
13  because it used to be there wasn't no time.  Now
14  you got five years.  Five years isn't very long.
15  I mean it rolls around in a hurry.
16      I know there's probably -- there's
17  a time there -- I guess you can go back, I may
18  be wrong -- I think before the five years is up,
19  and you can get reevaluated, but I didn't -- I
20  wasn't aware of that fact.
21      I'm a builder, contractor/owner.
22  But places I've done, I've never ran into this
23  before.  I had 38 lots.  Now we're down, because
24  the economy is down.  I mean I got 30 some lots.
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 1  You take that times 4 or $500, after you've
 2  already spent it, you're doubling your money.
 3      So I think something needs to be
 4  reconsidered in the time limit, to extend it, or
 5  at least take a little consideration.  Because
 6  now we're just paying double for what we paid,
 7  because now we're starting to sell a few lots
 8  and we're having to pay this out.
 9      So, I just wish you could take into
10  consideration of extending that, making it
11  longer, or whether something -- what can be
12  done, or does legislation have to be placed in,
13  if it has to change.
14      I met with Senator Hocker, but you
15  know, can they do something?  Representative
16  Gray is here.  I don't know what can be done,
17  whether it be legislative, or extend it, or
18  whatever.  But it's not fair, especially someone
19  to -- you know, now-a-days young folks are
20  trying to get something, some reason somebody
21  gives them something, it's been done, all of a
22  sudden now they got to pull another $400 out, 5,
23  whatever it is, to get something done.
24      So I don't know if there anything
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 1  has been done, or has it been talked about or
 2  what.
 3      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: The issue
 4  that you raise is, I think you previously
 5  mentioned that you had made some comments on the
 6  record for the proposal for the on-site
 7  wastewater regulations.  Is that what I
 8  understood you to say?
 9      MR. EVANS: Correct.  In other
10  words, we've got to go back, and you have to
11  start right from the beginning again.
12      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Right.
13      MR. EVANS: Because it's already
14  been done -- I mean it's already done.  The soil
15  samples is done.  It's all -- you know, it's
16  still there.  So now we got to do the same exact
17  thing they done five years ago.
18      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Right.
19  So, nothing has changed as of yet.  Those
20  regulations are still under review, we're
21  reviewing public comment, including your comment
22  about the extension of that.  So, I can't
23  pre-judge the outcome of that, but we have
24  received those comments, and they're under
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 1  consideration at this point.
 2      MR. EVANS: Thank you.
 3      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: But I will
 4  say two points, I guess.  One is I don't believe
 5  that legislation is required, necessarily.  I
 6  think this is a regulatory issue.  And I would
 7  also say I think it is true, and you probably
 8  know more than I, that if you at any point
 9  during that five-year period were to record
10  those lots, then that -- you know, you've taken
11  care of it at that point.  You don't need to go
12  back and get another soil test.  I believe
13  that's correct.  But you may have to --
14      MR. EVANS: You are correct about
15  that.  But here's my problem.  The problem is
16  that that house, or whatever, once you get that
17  recorded, you have to take and put down there
18  exactly what the house is going to be, exactly
19  where the sewer system is going to be placed.
20      Now, should you get the home and
21  somebody wants their lot -- the house on the
22  other side of the lot -- which they can do
23  that -- you've already told them where they're
24  going to put the house.  They have no say-so
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 1  where it may be.  They may want to place it
 2  somewheres else other than where you want, and
 3  it's still eligible to be placed on that piece
 4  of property.
 5      But if you go back and think, a
 6  little common sense says you still have the same
 7  situation.  You haven't built on it, you haven't
 8  done anything.  You still have the same
 9  situation, whether it's been five years or ten
10  years, and you don't go back.  You still have
11  the same situation.  That soil hasn't changed.
12  Nothing has changed.  The only thing is this
13  play on words to do something to have it
14  recorded.  Because it says this is where it's
15  going.
16      So, you know, it's -- it hasn't
17  changed.  Nothing has changed, I mean as far as
18  that goes.  It's just all you done is put it on
19  a piece of paper to make it look good.  So --
20      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Okay.
21      MR. EVANS: Thank you.
22      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you.
23  Next I have Larry Mayo.
24      MR. MAYO: Thank you for having
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 1  this meeting, and I would like to commend the
 2  Governor for the one thing that I think he's
 3  done right, which is looking to simplify some
 4  regulations.
 5      Let me talk to you a little bit
 6  about my experience with regulations.  And not
 7  all of them are DNREC's, but some of them are.
 8  I inherited three lots with two mobile homes on
 9  them.  Those mobile homes were put on in the
10  '60s and '70s.  Okay?  That is my net worth.  I
11  make approximately $30,000 a year, and that's
12  pretty much what it takes for me to live.  So I
13  decided since this was my net worth, and this
14  was going to be my retirement plan, that I would
15  take those two mobile homes, and since I'm a
16  contractor, build houses and sell the houses,
17  so -- to get myself a retirement fund.
18      Well, I inherited them in 2006.  At
19  that time, that made my net worth about
20  $300,000.  The lots.  Thanks to banking
21  regulations, the only thing I could borrow money
22  to do was build a house.  Thanks to DNREC
23  regulations, I couldn't build a house unless I
24  put new septic systems in both lots.
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 1      Well, the amount of money I could
 2  borrow on my limited income would not allow for
 3  that.  So I converted one of them into a class C
 4  in order to sell it for enough to be able to fix
 5  up the other one.
 6      Well, thanks to the Government
 7  intrusion in the housing market, that HAS now
 8  been on the market for three years, and is now
 9  worth what I owe.  So, even if it sells, I'll
10  just be one lot short of what I started.  This
11  is how regulations hurt regular people.
12      Now, as far as EPA regulations,
13  I've been studying this document for the last
14  three years.  I've taken two college courses on
15  it.  There is no place in this document, which
16  is the Constitution of the United States, that
17  gives the Federal government the authority to
18  regulate my land or your land.
19      So, the EPA does not have to be
20  listened to by the State.  Okay?  Get them to
21  show you where in the Constitution they have the
22  authority to tell you what water can run off
23  your land.  It's not in there.  Believe me.
24  I'll read it over and over and over again.
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 1      To our State legislators that are
 2  out here, I'd like to see you guys grow a large
 3  set of cajones and start taking advantage of the
 4  Tenth Amendment to the Constitution.  Because
 5  you guys should have more power over me than
 6  President Obama and the Congress and the Senate.
 7  And certainly more than the United Nations and
 8  their agenda 21.
 9      I thank you for your public
10  service.  I hope you take this to heart.  Most
11  of the regulations implemented over the last ten
12  years have done a lot to hurt the small guy.
13  You can't burn leaves, the trash company won't
14  take them.  I don't know what you're supposed to
15  do with them.  I just let them lay on my land
16  and rot.
17      Thank you.
18      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
19  Mr. Mayo.  Next I have Rich Collins.
20      MR. COLLINS: Thank you, Dave.  I
21  thank the Department for being here tonight, and
22  I'm sure you understand no comments are
23  personal, certainly not from me.  I'm trying to
24  get to the heart of this Executive Order 36, the
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 1  whole point of it.
 2      Back in 2008, we had something
 3  happen in the economy.  I think most of us know
 4  about it.  It wasn't good.  I think DNREC knows
 5  about it, because I know your budget has shrunk,
 6  and I believe you lost some employees due to
 7  some of that, correct?
 8      All right.  So, people in -- out in
 9  constituent land are in the same position.  My
10  understanding is that underemployment, if you
11  have unemployment and underemployment, we're
12  somewhere -- these are different numbers, but
13  maybe 18, 19 percent.  Very, very high rate of
14  unemployment for young people, and some forecast
15  that it could be getting much worse.
16      I have an economic report here,
17  it's actually a subscription I pay for, talks
18  about the demographic hurricane coming towards
19  us, with folks aging, and the incredible burden
20  we're going to face paying for Social Security
21  and Medicare.
22      In short, there is a Federal
23  government sponsored study that I've found, and
24  you can find any number of them, that basically
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 1  indicates we're probably looking at, if we don't
 2  do exactly the right things, a declining
 3  standard of living.  For a long time now.
 4      And so, I'm hoping that the whole
 5  concept of Executive Order 36 is to realize that
 6  Delaware has to compete with other states and
 7  other countries.  Otherwise, we're going to have
 8  a decline.  And as I think has been demonstrated
 9  here on more than one occasion tonight, there
10  are certain things that are costing people more
11  money, in my opinion, than probably needs to be
12  spent.
13      I wanted to address the EPA real
14  quickly, before I forget.  I know that you are
15  under tremendous pressure from the EPA.  But I
16  go to about as many DNREC meetings as anybody
17  who's not a professional, you know, doing
18  business with you on a daily basis.  I don't
19  really hear much transparency in terms of what
20  you really do have to deal with.
21      Now, I know Attorney General
22  Cuccinelli in Virginia, the EPA told Virginia
23  that they had to pay -- I think it was billions
24  of dollars, to prevent stormwater runoff.  He
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 1  sued.  He, through the Virginia Department of
 2  Transportation and Fairfax County, I believe.
 3  And the Supreme Court of the United States just
 4  ruled that they were right, and that EPA had no
 5  authority to regulate water flow through the
 6  Clean Water Act, water runoff.
 7      And so, I believe that's going to
 8  go to the heart of Delaware's pending stormwater
 9  regulations.  I -- I sincerely hope -- I'm
10  frustrated in that when I go to a meeting that's
11  a joint meeting with EPA and DNREC, and Delaware
12  citizens, that I feel some of your employees
13  feel like they're more beholden to the EPA than
14  they are to their citizens that pay their
15  salaries.  Now I hope I'm wrong on that, but
16  that's the impression I get sometimes.  And I
17  just really -- I hope they're on our side first.
18      Also, let me make one comment about
19  the thing about being on property without
20  warrants.  I'm the one that publicized that, as
21  much as anyone.  I did do my best, every time I
22  said it, I think, to make it clear that it is
23  State law.  What I see is different this time is
24  that in this new septic regulation, it's obvious
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 1  the Department is very anxious to force people
 2  to have a type of system that performs so poorly
 3  that it has to be inspected twice a year.
 4      And I think it's obvious, based on
 5  that and other things, that they expect a lot of
 6  breakdowns.  And I believe it's obvious that
 7  they're expecting to have to take action more
 8  than in the past.
 9      And I would also say that I get
10  great discomfort reading those new septic
11  regulations.  And in fact, I put together a
12  little paragraph describing what someone selling
13  our home would have to explain to their buyer,
14  you know, in the form of disclosure.  It almost
15  looks like some aspects of those regulations are
16  designed to prevent -- or discourage freedom
17  using their rural properties.
18      And so, it's not so much the words
19  which, as you point out, are identical to what's
20  in State law.  It's why are they being, for the
21  first time, put into regulation, in conjunction
22  with the whole big picture look of how these
23  regulations look?
24      Now, I think probably more
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 1  important than the particulars of a lot of
 2  regulations is the process.  You know,
 3  businesses need three things.  They need to know
 4  what the rules are, they need to know roughly
 5  how long it's going to take to get through the
 6  process, and they have to know that if they
 7  actually follow the rules, that at the end of
 8  the process they probably will get the prize.
 9      We've had some testimony here from
10  folks tonight making it clear that they don't
11  feel that the process is clear and defined.
12  Furthermore, there is no doubt in my mind that
13  DNREC is making some fundamental mistakes in
14  application of State law.
15      The main one, let's talk about
16  these 30-day requirements to transfer a permit.
17  I see two reasons why that's not legal.  Number
18  one, there is a -- there has been a very deep
19  precedent set by the Delaware Supreme Court that
20  DNREC regulations cannot override State law.
21  And a lawsuit that was settled recently made
22  very clear that that's the case.  And there is
23  an entire title of State law that has to do with
24  property transfers, I think it's Title 25, but
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 1  it's right there, whatever it is.
 2      Well, there isn't one word of DNREC
 3  having any sort of veto power over that process
 4  whatsoever in State law.  Nor, when you read
 5  DNREC's operating authority, is there any hint
 6  that they would have control in any way of a
 7  real estate settlement process.  So on that
 8  basis, I'm pretty confident it's not a legal
 9  thing to do.
10      The other reason, though, however,
11  is more fundamental, even.  Because regulations
12  are created through something called the
13  Administrative Procedures Act.  It's a State
14  law, Title 29, Chapter 101.  First of all, I
15  want to read the definition of a regulation.
16  Regulation.  Means "Any statement of law,
17  procedure, policy, right, requirement, or
18  prohibition formulated and promulgated by an
19  agency as a rule or standard or as a guide for
20  the decision of the cases there -- thereafter by
21  it or by any other agency, authority, or court."
22      Now, the point is, anything you do,
23  anything that affects a citizen, forces them to
24  do something in a legal manner, is defined as a
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 1  regulation.  So, how do regulations get created?
 2  If you look under -- bear with me.  Too many
 3  pages.  Oh, shoot.  I don't see it.  Here's what
 4  it says, I know what it says.  You have to
 5  publish the regulation in the State Register,
 6  State Register of Regulations, you have to hold
 7  a public hearing, and then the Secretary has to
 8  formally adopt the regulation.  Those three
 9  things have to happen.
10      I checked the existing septic
11  regulations.  I do not -- oh.  And by the way,
12  this language of being 30 days prior to
13  settlement, written permission from DNREC,
14  that's being put on septic permits right now.  I
15  just spoke to another gentleman today.  He
16  looked at his septic regulation -- permit that
17  he just got recently.  I said I'll bet you're
18  going to find that language on it.  Look for it.
19  He didn't know anything about it, even though
20  the guy is pretty sophisticated.
21      He looks around and says, oh, here
22  it is.  Last item.  He read it, word for word.
23  That's never been approved in a regulation
24  legally.
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 1      I would go so far as to say this:
 2  If a person walks into any State agency and they
 3  are told we don't do it that way anymore, and if
 4  they cannot point to a regulation approved by
 5  their Secretary, they've broken State law.
 6  Folks, you should be able to find the rules
 7  before you go into any given agency, and you
 8  should know -- I'm telling you, you can ask them
 9  for site-specific concerns, of course, but you
10  should in a general sense know exactly what's
11  going to be required of you if you look it up,
12  and right now you don't.
13      So, I think that's really
14  fundamental.  That -- I believe that also
15  applies to the boat dock that were brought up.
16  That does not have that 30-day requirement, but
17  it does make that business personal.  So, I
18  would ask -- I would urge DNREC to look at these
19  things, make sure that they're following the
20  rules they have to follow.
21      Finally I'll say this:  Sometimes I
22  wish DNREC would be more forthcoming with the
23  data they have available to them.  A few years
24  ago I was in your office in Dover, and one of
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 1  their employees handed me a USGS publication,
 2  and at the time, we happened to be engaged
 3  pretty heavily in another regulation.  I won't
 4  get specific about it.  Well, the USGS -- U.S.
 5  Geological Survey made it pretty clear that what
 6  DNREC had been saying was the source of the
 7  pollution problem was not the problem.  In fact,
 8  it overwhelmingly made that case.  And so, I
 9  simply pointed it out to the folks involved, and
10  you could see that it was -- that report
11  suddenly became radioactive.
12      This concept that septic systems
13  are like the worst thing that can happen to
14  anything, polluting the Inland Bays, folks, in
15  my opinion, based on reading quite a few
16  technical documents, is not backed up by fact.
17  And I believe there are many other things that
18  could be done that could have far more positive
19  impact on the environment than just forcing
20  people to spend 20, 25,000.  I have a quote from
21  five years ago on a septic system, 20 -- almost
22  $22,000.  And I want to point out that in the
23  rural areas, many of the folks that are required
24  to spend this kind of money are some of the
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 1  folks who can least afford it.
 2      And I would also say, given the
 3  state of the economy and the outlook for the
 4  future, the concept that DNREC is going to give
 5  everybody money that can't afford it is a little
 6  shaky, too.  At the very time when you're laying
 7  off people because you don't have enough money,
 8  where did that idea come that we just find a
 9  whole bunch of other money and fork it out to
10  people, just so they can put a whole bunch of
11  money into the septic system that's going to
12  break down, and that over a long period of time
13  is going to show a virtually unmeasurable
14  difference in what's being done right now?
15      So, to conclude, attitude,
16  attitude.  I'm hoping that everybody in this
17  State government understands the world has
18  changed.  We are either going to -- and you
19  know, this is the other discouraging thing.  I'm
20  not aware of one single regulation in this
21  State -- maybe it's happened, but I don't know
22  of it -- that specifically somebody says, you
23  know what?  People can't afford this anymore.
24  Let's find a cheaper way.  Even though we are
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 1  all dramatically poorer.
 2      I mean we had one man mention his
 3  financial situation.  I can tell you right now
 4  the real estate that I own has declined, and I'm
 5  just a homeowner.  You know, I've got a house
 6  and a couple rental houses.  I would guarantee
 7  you my property values have declined by 3 or
 8  $400,000, along with my net worth.  That's
 9  happened to virtually everybody in Delaware.
10      So, why isn't our State government
11  approaching this problem with that mindset; that
12  we all need to pull in our belt and figure how
13  to be successful going forward.  Thank you.
14      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
15  Mr. Collins.  Next I have John Burton.
16      MR. NEWLIN: Thank you for calling
17  on me.  I got a little different concept than
18  what's going on tonight.  In fact -- I'm getting
19  to an age myself, I'm going to put my glasses
20  on.  As a member of one of the boards of the
21  State of Delaware, we were notified that maybe
22  we should attend these hearings, in case
23  something comes before us that would have some
24  effect on it.
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 1      As a member of the Delaware
 2  Industrial Control Board, I received
 3  notification from the Governor's office
 4  regarding this public hearing, and would like to
 5  present the following ideals, ideas, for
 6  consideration.
 7      As present owner of 160 acres of
 8  land on the western side of Rehoboth Bay, the
 9  east side of this property runs approximately
10  2000 feet of the waters of Rehoboth Bay, known
11  as John S. and Samuel J. Burton Farm Preserve.
12      I observed the erosion problems
13  that affected the property over the last ten
14  years.  I'm sure many other property owners also
15  have the same concerns.  One of my main concerns
16  is the lack of funding to DNREC and the Federal
17  government on lands owned by private individuals
18  and reserved dynasties.  I feel that this
19  funding program should be reviewed and be
20  brought up to date regarding the high cost
21  incurred by land owners.
22      My second concern is the flow of
23  water coming into Rehoboth Bay never being
24  restricted in any way.  The dredging on many
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 1  dead-end lagoons and long prongs of the
 2  waterways in Rehoboth Bay have been an
 3  environmental issue, which I feel should be
 4  reviewed.
 5      The lack of dredging, in my
 6  opinion, is causing the areas that are available
 7  for the influx of the water to be much smaller,
 8  and we are still receiving the same or more
 9  amounts of water from the ocean and other
10  tributaries from the Delaware Bay.  Example,
11  very simple.  Take a 12-ounce cup of coffee, put
12  2 two ounces of sand and mud, and you're going
13  to get 10 ounces of coffee in it.
14      I believe the dredging program
15  should have some type of committee review, or we
16  should involve an environmental study of the
17  possibilities of restricting the flow of water
18  into Rehoboth Bay.  It seems to me that if we
19  cut or slow 10 to 20 percent of the intake of
20  the water coming into the bay in a seven-hour
21  period, it would help to control the level of
22  the flooding of the water.
23      As a property owner, I've spent
24  thousands and thousands of dollars on shoreline
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 1  erosion control.  I wish to say that I am not
 2  criticizing DNREC.  In fact, I have a very good
 3  working relationship with the agency, in trying
 4  to protect the shoreline.  However, it is hard
 5  to continue to do environmental work such as
 6  erosion control without some assistance from the
 7  State or Federal government, as a private
 8  reserve owner -- preserve.
 9      Thank you for the opportunity to
10  share my concerns regarding Executive Order 36.
11      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
12  Mr. Burton.
13      MR. BURTON: And I would like to
14  leave a copy with you.
15      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Great.
16  Thank you.  Next I have Dave Jacobs.
17      MR. JACOBSON: Unless we can
18  discuss ethanol and the gas, that kind of thing,
19  I might as well pass.  Is that open for
20  discussion?  We got a Federal -- we have a
21  legislator here.
22      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: You know,
23  ethanol is a Federal issue.  It's not a State
24  issue, from a regulatory point of view.  I'm
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 1  happy to talk with you afterwards, if that's
 2  okay.
 3      MR. JACOBS: Okay.  Well --
 4      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Or if you
 5  can -- we're almost wrapping it up, so go ahead.
 6      MR. JACOBS: I'll just take a
 7  minute of your time.  We have a State
 8  Representative, they did bring up Congress and
 9  the Constitution and all of that.
10      I buy gas here in Millsboro, and
11  it's got 10 percent ethanol.  And that's
12  regulated because Philadelphia has a pollution
13  problem.  We're all paying through the nose
14  here.  When I go to another state, like ten
15  miles away to Pittsville, Maryland, the gas
16  there has less than 10 percent ethanol.  It's
17  whatever Maryland dictates.  And I get like 50,
18  52 miles a gallon on my motorcycle.  With
19  Delaware gas I'm getting about 48.
20      Now that's a motorcycle.  So now
21  transcribe that to your SUVs, and how much
22  you're putting into your gas tanks, and et
23  cetera.  It's a Federal issue, but America and
24  the Federal systems got to start with the little
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 1  individual citizen.  So, I'm here.
 2      The EPA has some influence.  It
 3  doesn't come down -- maybe it goes up from your
 4  end, you speak to Federal EPA people.  And
 5  Mr. Representative, there it is.  I may not even
 6  be in your district, but I'm sure if you have a
 7  constituency that lives in Delaware, they
 8  probably would like to get a better performance
 9  out of the car.  We're talking about the water
10  and boating and fishing.  I know the boats are
11  lined up at the gas stations in Maryland,
12  because the ethanol screws up the gas, screws up
13  the gas tanks in boats.  So, anyone that can
14  alleviate and help these problems, that would be
15  great.
16      The other thing I noticed, what the
17  EPA, or maybe DNREC, when I moved down here in
18  '96, this place was full of chicken farms.  A
19  lot of people, chicken farms, a lot of people
20  working.  And they say it's the economy.
21      They came down with rules.  My
22  neighbor had four chicken houses, and it was
23  bustling, every six weeks, new chickens coming
24  in, more chickens going out.
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 1      And then suddenly, what happened?
 2  He said, well, they've got some new regulations,
 3  I've got to put like $200,000 worth of something
 4  to fix it up, because perhaps of some runoff or
 5  whatever it was.
 6      And they -- chicken farms have all
 7  dried up.  You don't have to drive very far from
 8  this location here to see the chicken farms that
 9  have dried up.  The small farmer has -- who
10  couldn't afford a couple hundred thousand
11  dollars to fix it up, they've gone into
12  retirement, or whatever.
13      Now, I -- I'm going to say it had
14  to have been regulations, because I used to eat
15  as much in 1969 -- '96, when I came here, and I
16  don't think people have stopped eating.  So,
17  where are they getting their chickens from?  You
18  can go to Maryland and get chickens, or other
19  states.  But I know Delaware's chicken output
20  must be a lot less.
21      And whatever the EPA, DNREC can do
22  to improve that, and maybe drop a lot of
23  regulations.  Apparently some of them aren't --
24  they aren't coming out the way they were
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 1  described, to be bad for the environment.  I
 2  don't know.  But I live next to a chicken farm.
 3  My water's fine.  It was fine before, it's fine
 4  now.  You know.
 5      Thank you for your time, and I hope
 6  I wasn't too far off the track.  Thank you very
 7  much.
 8      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
 9  Mr. Jacobs.  Next I have Stephanie Herron.
10      MS. HERRON: My name is Stephanie
11  Herron.  I'm with the Delaware chapter of the
12  Sierra Club, and we have some comments to offer,
13  but I will have some more formal comments
14  written or at a later hearing.
15      I would first like to say that we
16  completely agree and echo everything that
17  Mr. Moyer and the Inland Bay Foundation said
18  about environmental regulations not being bad
19  for jobs.
20      And I also have something to say.
21  The Delaware chapter of the Sierra Club has been
22  monitoring the DNREC and State public meeting
23  web calendars in an effort to notify our members
24  of the times and locations of the DNREC
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 1  regulation review hearings under Executive Order
 2  36.  We could find no notice on either site of
 3  this or the following two public hearings until
 4  today, January 7th, 2013.  And we find it
 5  extremely troublesome that such an important
 6  meeting as this would be held with less than 24
 7  hours notice to the residents of Sussex County
 8  who are not on the DNREC mailing list, who went
 9  out on the e-mail list.
10      In order to remedy this series
11  oversight, we request that the public comment
12  period be extended from March 1, 2013, as the
13  end, to April 1, 2013.  Thank you.
14      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
15  Ms. Herron.  Next I have Henry Glowiak as a
16  maybe.  Are you a yes or are you a no,
17  Mr. Glowiak, if you're still with us?  Sorry if
18  I've pronounced that -- done an injustice to
19  that.  No?  Not with us.  Okay.
20      Sam Wilson.  Okay.  He may be in
21  the lobby.  So, somebody's going to go see if
22  Sam wants to --
23      COUNCILMAN WILSON: How are you
24  doing?
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 1      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: How are
 2  you, sir.
 3      COUNCILMAN WILSON: I don't believe
 4  I put my name on to speak, but I do have one
 5  comment.  I believe that the -- that any
 6  regulation that any agency, I don't care who it
 7  is, Natural Resources or DelDOT, whoever, that's
 8  put regulations upon the public, the general
 9  public, that this regulation, you've come up
10  with the ideas before it can be finally
11  approved, it must go to the General Assembly.
12      They are the ones who make it, and
13  they should be the ones responsible for every
14  regulation.  And if they're not doing the job
15  right, the general public has to know about
16  this, and they have the right to vote them out.
17  If bureaucrats continue to make regulations, all
18  we can do is we can fuss.  You can't really be
19  replaced, or neither can anyone else.
20      So, my recommendation is, let's put
21  this -- these regulations back in to the people
22  that should be responsible.  Those are the
23  legislators.  And let them tell you at the final
24  that it's improved or not approved.
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 1      If it's important enough to levy
 2  fines and regulations, it's important enough for
 3  them to vote on.
 4      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you
 5  Councilman Wilson.  The last thing I have signed
 6  up, and we'll go back out and see if anybody has
 7  any final thoughts that they want to share, or
 8  if folks have been here and decided that they
 9  would like to share something with us.
10  Mr. Cramer.
11      MR. CRAMER: I believe I'm signed
12  in.
13      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: You are.
14      MR. CRAMER: Okay.
15      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: I have a
16  note that said you wanted to have the last word,
17  and it turned out you were last on the list,
18  so --
19      MR. CRAMER: Well, it didn't really
20  matter.  I just didn't want to be the first one.
21  I wanted to see what the others had to say
22  first.  My name is Dan Cramer.  Can you actually
23  hear me, or do you need me to get closer to the
24  mike?
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 1      Well, I'll tell you what.  How do
 2  you not start a business?  DNREC.  That's how
 3  you don't start a business.  A couple years
 4  ago -- it had to have been more than three years
 5  ago, because my face got messed up, so it had to
 6  be more than three years ago when I was in a
 7  meeting and I said you know how you solve this
 8  problem.  I wanted to get into business for this
 9  particular problem, and it would have helped the
10  environment.
11      But then I was told, oh, you can't
12  do that without a permit from DNREC, because it
13  has a diesel engine on it.  So in order to do
14  this, in order for me to pollute the air, I had
15  to kiss DNREC.  And that's one person, people,
16  or whatever, I'm not going to kiss.
17      So therefore, the business is not
18  going to start.  And it would have.  The machine
19  itself costs about $250,000.  Another building
20  would have had to have been put up, and trucks
21  bought.  Would have been about a half a million
22  dollars.  And in fact, five guys would have had
23  jobs.
24      But do you think I'm going to
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 1  invest $500,000 and they're going to tell me
 2  when I can start the motor, when I have to shut
 3  it off?  And if you don't believe so, go watch
 4  the advertising in the fine print, generally on
 5  a Sunday in The News Journal.  And you'll see
 6  where somebody wants to use a diesel engine, and
 7  they'll say, oh, so many pounds of X, so many
 8  pounds of Y, and so many pounds of Z is going to
 9  be put out.  And this is regulated, and you will
10  not be permitted to put out more.
11      And I'll tell you what actually
12  happened.  This is a true story.  Delaware
13  Electric put a diesel engine to their plant, to
14  their headquarters.  Wanting to use it as a
15  backup when electric went off and they needed
16  more electric.  They were flat-out told, don't
17  start that engine.  Now, did they change
18  anything since then?  Don't know.  Don't really
19  care.
20      The whole thing is a bunch of crap,
21  because that little bit of pollution that I
22  wanted to put out, I would have offset it by
23  reducing the pollution of what I was going to
24  remove.  But I'm not going to -- I'd rather take
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 1  that $500,000 and just stick it in a bank, get
 2  that 1 percent.  I'd be way ahead of the game.
 3      And now that's going to talk a
 4  little bit about septic tanks.  These same
 5  septic tanks that they want to now bring in
 6  here, 15 years ago they wouldn't even approve
 7  them.  Why not?  Because they said they didn't
 8  work.
 9      When the fact of the matter was, in
10  Ohio they were being used and the water was not
11  putting to the ground.  It was actually put
12  right along the driveway and that, and the
13  longer roads.  And I said how in the world can
14  you do that?  The health department approved it.
15  That's how good the water was.
16      And by the way, all these Inland
17  Bay people here that are so hepped up, the best
18  thing you guys could do in the Inland Bays area,
19  move out of there.  Because then that pollution
20  won't be there, because you're the ones
21  polluting it.  Thank you.
22      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
23  Mr. Cramer.  I don't have any other folks signed
24  up to speak.  Is there anyone who would like to
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 1  speak who hasn't?  Is there anyone who would
 2  like to speak again?
 3      COUNCILMAN WILSON: Me.  I got one
 4  comment.  I don't need to come up there, but --
 5  Sam Wilson.  I'd like to make one quick comment.
 6  Sulfur has been removed from fuel oil, diesel
 7  fuel, and a lot of money's been spent, a lot of
 8  regulations.  At this point in time, farmers are
 9  buying sulfur to put on their farms.  We're just
10  actually wasting people's money to do -- or take
11  away sulfur out of fuel.  And it's only got
12  worse since now we've taken sulfur out of fuel.
13  Before, we did get some natural sulfur, things
14  like that, that would come back on the soil.
15  But now we're short on sulfur.
16      So, it's just a comment.  Let us
17  know what -- how some things -- the EPA has
18  screwed up a lot of things, and it's cost us a
19  lot of money, and it doesn't amount to a hill of
20  beans, and that made things worse.  Thank you.
21      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you.
22  Mr. Moyer.
23      MR. MOYER: Again, president of the
24  Inland Bays Foundation.  I would like to remind
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 1  the commenters and DNREC that Executive Order 36
 2  was very specific on what regulations are going
 3  to be reviewed, and those are regulations that
 4  are older than three years.  And much of the
 5  testimony tonight has been on regulations that
 6  have been proposed within the last three years.
 7      So, I would request that the
 8  Department stick with the requirements of the
 9  Executive Order, and/or get clarification as to
10  whether or not it's going to look at regulations
11  that have been adopted after that three-year
12  limit, and would urge them to stick with the
13  intent of Executive Order 36.  Thank you.
14      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
15  Mr. Moyer.  Mr. Wheatley.
16      MR. WHEATLEY: My name is Bob
17  Wheatley, and I would ask that you would allow
18  common sense to prevail, and respect the
19  comments of every person here who bothered to
20  give up their time to show up, whether it was a
21  regulation three years old, one year old, or a
22  regulation yet to be promulgated.
23      DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL: Thank you,
24  sir.  Seeing no other hands, I wanted to take a
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 1  moment to thank all of you for coming, and
 2  either sharing your thoughts or coming to
 3  listen.  I appreciate the respect with which you
 4  delivered your comments, the thought that you've
 5  provided behind those.
 6      And I would just say this:  I also
 7  heard a number of issues that are examples that
 8  people brought to the microphone.  There is a
 9  larger regulatory context behind most of them,
10  but if you're -- I would encourage you, if
11  you're having issues, and maybe you've tried and
12  this didn't work for you, but you know, working
13  with the agency, as Representative Gray
14  mentioned earlier, to try and solve issues and
15  navigate through some of these regulatory
16  hurdles, you know, we do a pretty good job if we
17  are given the opportunity.
18      We don't always get it right, and I
19  understand that, but I would just encourage you
20  all to reach out to the agency and let us know
21  what your challenges are.  We might be able to
22  help you.  Not to say that there isn't a
23  regulatory issue behind that, but you know, we
24  spend a lot of time working with constituents
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 1  and the regulated community to try and both be
 2  protective and responsible and reasonable.
 3      So with that I will stop, and
 4  again, thank you all.  And remember, we have
 5  additional hearings.  Right now the public
 6  comment period is open until March 1.
 7  Ms. Herron, your request will be taken under
 8  advisement.
 9      So, thank you all again.
10      (Hearing concluded at 7:55 p.m.)
11  
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, good
  


 2     evening, and thank you all for coming out
  


 3     tonight.  My name is David Small, I'm the Deputy
  


 4     Secretary for the Delaware Department of Natural
  


 5     Resources and Environmental Control, and we're
  


 6     here tonight, really, to listen to you all.
  


 7                  If you'll indulge me for a few
  


 8     minutes, let me give you a little bit of
  


 9     background.  If you're here, you obviously know
  


10     a little something about the purpose for this
  


11     evening.  In June, Governor Markell signed an
  


12     Executive Order directing all of the Cabinet
  


13     agencies to take a look at their regulations and
  


14     see if there was a way to reduce the burden on
  


15     individuals in the business community here in
  


16     the state of Delaware.
  


17                  There's been a lot of interest over
  


18     the years in this topic.  There was some
  


19     legislative interest in this topic last -- last
  


20     year.  And so, as a result, the Governor signed
  


21     the Executive Order.  It's available online.
  


22     I'm not sure if we have copies here with us, but
  


23     we can certainly get you copies if you haven't
  


24     been able to take a look.
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 1                  So, beginning in the fall, there
  


 2     were agencies that went through a very similar
  


 3     process to this, and they are in the process of
  


 4     looking at public comments and reviewing their
  


 5     own regulations.
  


 6                  And I have to tell you, and you all
  


 7     probably know it, DNREC certainly is a very
  


 8     diverse agency, and we touch a lot of different
  


 9     functions and activities.  And so, we are in the
  


10     midst of reviewing these regulations, all of
  


11     these regulations ourselves.  And we're trying
  


12     to do this with an eye towards maintaining
  


13     environmental standards.
  


14                  And the reason I say that is a
  


15     number of our programs are delegated to us from
  


16     Federal agencies; notably, EPA, as you might
  


17     expect, in the areas of, particularly, of air,
  


18     waste, hazardous waste, and water.  And so, in
  


19     order to -- excuse me -- maintain those
  


20     programs, we have to maintain regulations that
  


21     are adapted at the local level, but adopt
  


22     Federal standards.
  


23                  And so, one of the things we have
  


24     done, and are continuing to do, is look at not
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 1     so much those standards, necessarily, but maybe
  


 2     how we meet those standards; looking for
  


 3     flexibility in doing that, and looking at some
  


 4     processes.
  


 5                  And I can tell you that, you know,
  


 6     over the years, we've engaged a number of
  


 7     techniques to try to be more efficient in our
  


 8     permitting process and reduce turnaround times
  


 9     for folks that are waiting on permits.  Some
  


10     programs have really pushed this issue and done
  


11     very well.  In our air program, for example, and
  


12     some of our water programs.  You know, we are
  


13     down to about 50 percent turnaround times and
  


14     waiting times from where we were a number of
  


15     years ago.
  


16                  So, but this process really is
  


17     important to hear from you all.  And we're here
  


18     tonight, we will be in Kent County next Monday
  


19     evening at Delaware State University.  And we
  


20     can give you the details, Martin Luther King
  


21     Center there.  And then on the 22nd of this
  


22     month, we will be, at the same time, 6 p.m., and
  


23     it's a Tuesday evening, we will be at the Carvel
  


24     Building in Wilmington, in the auditorium up on
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 1     the mezzanine level.
  


 2                  And beyond that, if you -- you
  


 3     know, this process isn't closed tonight.  And if
  


 4     you think that you forgot to say something and
  


 5     you get home, please feel free to send us
  


 6     comments.  We're accepting written comments
  


 7     until March 1.  And at that point, then, we will
  


 8     take everything that we've gotten from our
  


 9     public hearings, from the written comments that
  


10     we've received, and you can -- you can submit
  


11     those in writing or you can submit them
  


12     electronically online from our website.
  


13                  And that, in combination with our
  


14     own review, we'll be developing a report, as I
  


15     mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the
  


16     Governor, with recommended changes on a number
  


17     of regulatory fronts.
  


18                  And we've been thinking about
  


19     those.  We have -- you know, we've been looking
  


20     at our Coastal Zone regs, for example.  We see
  


21     some unevenness there.  In Sussex County, in the
  


22     wetlands and subaqueous lands permit, again, not
  


23     so much the standards that we have, but maybe in
  


24     creating some efficiencies, and maybe a little
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 1     bit more certainty in those programs.
  


 2                  So, you know, again, we're
  


 3     interested in hearing from you on those and any
  


 4     of a number of other subjects.  Let me just
  


 5     mention, you know, we have a diverse agency.  We
  


 6     have our Division of Energy and Climate that
  


 7     administers regulations on our Green Energy
  


 8     Fund, for example.  This is a program that if
  


 9     you are a Delmarva Power customer, for example,
  


10     you can apply for it and receive funding for
  


11     installation of renewables.
  


12                  We have our Division of Air, which
  


13     is responsible for monitoring our state's air
  


14     quality and regulating any of the number of
  


15     sources.  It's been a very aggressive and
  


16     effective program, and quite honestly, we think
  


17     we need some help from EPA to help us with some
  


18     of the states to the west of us, for a level
  


19     playing field.  But that certainly is a very
  


20     large volume of regulations that touch a lot of
  


21     different sources of air emissions.
  


22                  Our Division of Waste and Hazardous
  


23     Substances regulates solid waste, it regulates
  


24     hazardous waste.  Things, if you're in the waste
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 1     hauling business, for example, you need a permit
  


 2     from us for transportation of that material.  If
  


 3     you handle hazardous waste or if you store it or
  


 4     if you dispose of it, for example, you need some
  


 5     oversight from the Department.
  


 6                  We also are responsible for
  


 7     cleaning up legacy contamination sites.
  


 8     Superfund sites are the worst ones.  Those are
  


 9     established by EPA, and the State, since 1990,
  


10     has had a program to oversee the cleanup of
  


11     sites that aren't quite as contaminated, but
  


12     still need to be addressed in order to minimize
  


13     impacts on public health and the environment.
  


14                  We have our Division of Water,
  


15     which oversees the discharge of wastewater in
  


16     any of a manner of functions.  That could be a
  


17     discharge into surface water, such as rivers,
  


18     streams, or bays, and also, septic systems.
  


19     Some of you may have that on your mind this
  


20     evening, I know we've just gone through a
  


21     process recently.  As well as spray irrigation,
  


22     there are a number of sites that are operated by
  


23     facilities that are operated by the County, as
  


24     well as municipalities and the private sector,
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 1     private wastewater utilities, that -- that
  


 2     operate spray irrigation facilities.  Those two
  


 3     are subject to regulation oversight and
  


 4     permitting by the agency.
  


 5                  Wells, if any of you have
  


 6     individual wells on your property, either for
  


 7     residential purposes or for business purposes,
  


 8     we oversee the design, construction, and
  


 9     installation of those wells, along -- and I
  


10     mentioned septic systems earlier.
  


11                  The Division of Fish and Wildlife,
  


12     I don't know if any of you are anglers or
  


13     hunters, or otherwise interested in habitat and
  


14     wildlife and fisheries, but there is a body of
  


15     regulation, as you might well expect, that comes
  


16     with managing those natural resources.  And you
  


17     know, we have advisory councils in the agency
  


18     that we work very closely with on development of
  


19     those regulations that may mean size and creel
  


20     limits for Weakfish and any of a number of other
  


21     species, but those are regulatory actions that
  


22     the agency takes routinely, as well.
  


23                  Our Division of Parks has
  


24     regulations in place to oversee its park
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 1     activities.  So, you get a sense.  Division of
  


 2     Watershed Stewardship, for example, stormwater
  


 3     requirements.  There was legislation passed in
  


 4     1990 overseeing stormwater, getting a better
  


 5     handle on the impacts, potentially, to our
  


 6     ground and surface waters from surface -- from
  


 7     stormwater.  And that program's been in place,
  


 8     in Sussex County the program is delegated to the
  


 9     Sussex Conservation District for stormwater
  


10     management and oversight of plans.
  


11                  But that division is also
  


12     responsible for oversight of construction on our
  


13     beachfront.  The Beach Act passed probably back
  


14     in the '90s, as well, maybe a little earlier
  


15     than that.  It regulates the type and placement
  


16     of construction along the beachfront to make
  


17     sure that we're preserving our dune system,
  


18     which, as we found this past fall with Hurricane
  


19     Sandy, is a very, very important natural
  


20     resource for us to manage.
  


21                  I think that's -- you know, that's
  


22     just a quick, quick snapshot of all of our --
  


23     you know, of our divisions.  We have a lot of
  


24     touch points with all of you.  We're interested
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 1     in hearing from all of you, either -- you know,
  


 2     in whatever format that is most comfortable for
  


 3     you.
  


 4                  I will tell you that this evening
  


 5     we do have a stenographer here who is providing
  


 6     a transcript for us, so we'll be able to capture
  


 7     your comments verbatim.  And so, what I'm going
  


 8     to do is -- and I should also state, say, we
  


 9     have a number of staff here this evening, that,
  


10     you know, if we need to answer some questions,
  


11     we can try and do that.
  


12                  But this is really, again, we're
  


13     here to listen.  You know, and if we need to
  


14     respond we will, but we want to get your
  


15     feedback and your comments.
  


16                  And so, with that, I will say that
  


17     I have a list of folks who have signed in and
  


18     indicated that they would like to speak.  And
  


19     what I will do is ask you to come down, and
  


20     maybe I'll step over to this mike, because most
  


21     of the folks are sitting over here.  But we have
  


22     folks sitting in the back, and what I'd ask you
  


23     to do, if that's okay, is to come down to the
  


24     front.  We have some wireless mikes, but they







11


  


 1     don't seem to be working this evening.
  


 2                  So in fairness to everybody, so
  


 3     that everyone can hear and that our stenographer
  


 4     can be sure to accurately record your comments,
  


 5     I'd ask you to come down and provide some
  


 6     feedback, if that's okay.
  


 7                  Let me just take a quick look to
  


 8     see if there's any other notes that I need to
  


 9     share with you before I start with our list of
  


10     sign-ins.  I think that's enough of me talking.
  


11                  So, I'm going to go to the list
  


12     that we received as people signed in.  And I
  


13     will apologize in advance if I don't get your
  


14     name correct.  But it looks to me like the first
  


15     name that I have is Carol Zander.  Am I right?
  


16     Ms. Zander, if you could come down, please.
  


17                  MS. ZANDER:  Good evening.  I was
  


18     hoping not to be the first, but I came this
  


19     evening because I understood from the radio and
  


20     from some things I had read that DNREC is
  


21     planning to impose new septic regulations on
  


22     anybody who's within 1000 feet of the
  


23     waterfront.  Of any waterfront, along any body
  


24     of water.  Can you tell me, is that true?  And
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 1     what those new regulations are going to be that
  


 2     we're going to have to deal with.  I mean is it
  


 3     as draconian as I've heard?
  


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Is that
  


 5     your -- is that it?  Can I come over to the
  


 6     mike?
  


 7                  MS. ZANDER:  Yeah, can I -- can I
  


 8     ask questions when you get finished, if
  


 9     necessary?
  


10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.  Let
  


11     me -- so, we have gone through a public hearing
  


12     process twice now on the proposed changes to our
  


13     on-site wastewater regulations.  And so, the
  


14     public record is closed on that specific
  


15     regulation.  We're happy to hear comments on
  


16     those this evening, as well.
  


17                  I believe, specifically to your
  


18     question, what the regulation proposes is that
  


19     if you have to completely replace your existing
  


20     system, or if you're building -- putting in a
  


21     new system and you are within 1000 feet of the
  


22     Nanticoke River, the tidal portions, only the
  


23     tidal portions of the Nanticoke River or Broad
  


24     Creek, then under those conditions, when these
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 1     regulations would be promulgated -- and they
  


 2     have not yet been promulgated -- then you could
  


 3     be required to install what we're calling an
  


 4     enhanced nutrient removal system, okay?
  


 5                  MS. ZANDER:  Uh-huh.
  


 6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Now, I
  


 7     will also tell you that we have gotten a large
  


 8     body of public comment on this.  We are
  


 9     reviewing that.  We've had, you know, the
  


10     General Assembly has expressed some opinions
  


11     about this, as well.  So, we're taking a look at
  


12     that.
  


13                  It may be that we make some further
  


14     changes to those regulations.  And if we do,
  


15     there will be additional opportunity for public
  


16     comment, when that happens.
  


17                  MS. ZANDER:  So they're not
  


18     affecting us right here in this area, as of now?
  


19                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, we
  


20     have existing regulations in place now for --
  


21     that dictate the -- you know, how septic systems
  


22     are installed, managed, et cetera.  These would
  


23     be an update to those regulations.  But they are
  


24     not in effect, what we have proposed and what
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 1     you mentioned about the 1000 feet is not in
  


 2     effect right now.  It is in effect in the tidal
  


 3     waters around the Inland Bays.  But again, it's
  


 4     1000 feet within tidal waters of the Inland Bays
  


 5     watershed.
  


 6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Does that cover
  


 7     what I -- do you want me to --
  


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Yes,
  


 9     please.
  


10                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  What I've heard
  


11     is that we would be required, if we live within
  


12     1000 feet of a body of water, say the Indian
  


13     River, okay, that we would be required to be
  


14     having two inspections a year at our cost for
  


15     our septic system.  Is that one of the things
  


16     that, you know, I'm looking forward to?
  


17                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  So, what
  


18     the proposed regulation would do, and I'm
  


19     looking at Jim Cassidy.  Jim is our manager in
  


20     our Georgetown office for the on-site branch.
  


21     What would be required, if you put in one of
  


22     those enhanced systems, then you would need
  


23     inspections twice a year.
  


24                  MS. ZANDER:  Oh, okay.
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And part
  


 2     of the reason for that is that the
  


 3     manufacturer's warranty, I believe, requires
  


 4     inspections, at least for the first two years,
  


 5     twice a year.
  


 6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  So there's
  


 7     nothing that's affecting the existing homeowners
  


 8     at this particular time?
  


 9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than
  


10     our --
  


11                  MS. ZANDER:  Other than what's
  


12     already --
  


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than
  


14     what's already in place.
  


15                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Mr. Jim
  


17     Baxter.  Mr. Baxter?
  


18                  MR. BAXTER:  As you probably know,
  


19     we take the sludge, from the last pickup to now,
  


20     and what I don't understand is that we have
  


21     two -- we have two places on Toccopola Farms
  


22     where you've had a -- what I call a mound
  


23     system.  It's right on the line with us, as
  


24     farming.  But yet, when we have to get the
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 1     permit, or the company does that we do it for,
  


 2     we have to get a permit from you folks to put
  


 3     the sludge on, and we have to be 30 foot from
  


 4     the property line.  I don't hardly understand
  


 5     why.
  


 6                  And maybe you can't give me an
  


 7     answer, either, but to me, it looks a little bit
  


 8     asinine to be able to put a heap of sludge, no
  


 9     medication, no nothing, onto -- next to our
  


10     property line.  I can show it to you any time
  


11     you want to come out there.  And I don't
  


12     understand why it is a 30-foot from the property
  


13     line, we can only -- we have to -- we can only
  


14     start that far away to put the sludge on.  It's
  


15     been treated and okayed, but none of those mound
  


16     systems have ever been treated, as far as I
  


17     know.  Okay?
  


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.
  


19     The next name I have is Dave -- Jaeger?  Is that
  


20     right?
  


21                  MR. JACOBSON:  Jacobs.  I'm sorry.
  


22     Do we have another Dave Jacobs?
  


23                  MR. JAEGER:  It's Jaeger.
  


24                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  What's
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 1     your last name?
  


 2                  MR. JAEGER:  Jaeger.  J-a-e-g-e-r,
  


 3     that's correct.  I'll make this short.  My name
  


 4     is David Jaeger, and I live in Selbyville.
  


 5     While I support the Governor's desire to
  


 6     simplify DNREC's regulations, I am concerned
  


 7     that this might lead to a weakening of controls
  


 8     on the amount of pollution on our air, land, and
  


 9     water, particularly around our Inland Bays.
  


10     These bays are the jewel of Sussex County, and
  


11     indeed, the whole state, but they are repeatedly
  


12     threatened by overdevelopment.
  


13                  And one of the main protectors of
  


14     the Inland Bays watershed is DNREC.  They are
  


15     charged with sustaining this prize for future
  


16     generations, at the same time allowing for
  


17     reasonable development.  That's a tough job, and
  


18     I don't envy them this responsibility, but it's
  


19     one that we all must support and respect.
  


20                  I am particularly concerned about
  


21     Sussex County, now that the economy is picking
  


22     up again and the building boom is likely to
  


23     resume to accommodate the baby boomers looking
  


24     to retire to lower slower Delaware.  But the
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 1     very qualities that attract folks are at risk
  


 2     from overdevelopment and pollution, such as
  


 3     septic tanks and ill-conceived wastewater
  


 4     systems.  We need scientific and fact-based
  


 5     controls that only DNREC can provide to preserve
  


 6     this God-given gift of nature for future
  


 7     generations.  Thank you.
  


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


 9     Mr. Jaeger.  Next I have Floyd Morton.
  


10                  MR. MORTON:  Thank you for giving
  


11     me this time to speak.  You had mentioned there
  


12     was actually going to be changes in regulations
  


13     for anglers, and that's going to be through, I
  


14     believe, the Delaware Bayshore Initiative
  


15     program?
  


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, I
  


17     think I was talking about regulations maybe in
  


18     size and creel limits as examples of the type of
  


19     diverse regulatory oversight that we're charged
  


20     with.
  


21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  And --
  


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I wasn't
  


23     here to propose anything specific.
  


24                  MR. MORTON:  I understand.  But do
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 1     you have any specific that you're going to be
  


 2     changing?
  


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I can tell
  


 4     you this:  There are, it seems to me, always
  


 5     changes that are pending in the world of
  


 6     fisheries management.  Mostly because we are
  


 7     responsible for maintaining compliance with
  


 8     somewhere around 17 fishery management plans
  


 9     that are coastwide.
  


10                  As you well know, fish move through
  


11     waters.  They don't just stay stationary.  So we
  


12     have to work with other states to manage those,
  


13     and there are a number of agency organizations,
  


14     multistate organizations that work
  


15     collaboratively most of the times to try to
  


16     manage those stocks.
  


17                  So there is the chance that over
  


18     the course of the coming year, that there will
  


19     be some type of regulatory change proposed in
  


20     order to maintain compliance with those, but I
  


21     can't sit here and cite exactly what those are.
  


22                  MR. MORTON:  I mean isn't this a
  


23     public comment, where we can get our comments to
  


24     how we feel about something?
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.
  


 2                  MR. MORTON:  That's what I'm
  


 3     saying, is this is open for something like that,
  


 4     correct?
  


 5                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.
  


 6                  MR. MORTON:  But you don't have any
  


 7     kind of regulations or anything like that that
  


 8     we can say, hey, we're for this, or you know,
  


 9     what -- it's almost like writing a blank check.
  


10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.  So
  


11     you know, the more specific that your comments
  


12     can be -- and I'll say this to everyone -- about
  


13     individual regulations, if there's a particular
  


14     species, or -- you know, it can be open, but the
  


15     things that will be most helpful to us are
  


16     comments that are as specific as you can be.
  


17                  That's not to say that we're not
  


18     here to listen to whatever you have to say, but
  


19     you know, I think those things will be
  


20     particularly constructive.  So with that, would
  


21     you go ahead, please.
  


22                  MR. MORTON:  I saw this morning,
  


23     and the Delaware Bayshore Initiative was
  


24     actually mentioned during this.  Is there
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 1     something that's actually going on with the
  


 2     Delaware Bayshore Initiative that pertains to
  


 3     this meeting tonight?
  


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The
  


 5     Delaware Bayshore Initiative is not a regulatory
  


 6     initiative.  It is, really, the notion behind
  


 7     that, very quickly, is to really bring in some
  


 8     of, you know, non-regulatory programs working
  


 9     more collaboratively together to conserve
  


10     habitat in the bayshore, protect lands, keep,
  


11     you know, working lands working and in private
  


12     hands.
  


13                  MR. MORTON:  Uh-huh.
  


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And you
  


15     know, restore habitat where possible, and create
  


16     low impact recreational and economic development
  


17     opportunities through -- through tourism.  As
  


18     you know, there are, you know, a lot of that
  


19     kind of activity going on along the bayshore,
  


20     and we would like to enhance those efforts.
  


21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  As of right
  


22     now, do you have anything pending that pertains
  


23     to the Delaware Bayshore Initiative that you
  


24     could speak about tonight?
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Not in a
  


 2     regulatory context, no.
  


 3                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.
  


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  This
  


 5     meeting is about regulations.  The bayshore is
  


 6     not a regulatory initiative.
  


 7                  MR. MORTON:  That's all I've got.
  


 8     Thank you.
  


 9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.
  


10     I believe it's Sally Ford?
  


11                  MS. FORD:  I'm a surveyor, and I --
  


12     my interaction with DNREC is basically doing
  


13     stormwater management.  And my one comment in
  


14     general is that I believed these hearings were
  


15     to discuss regulations that were in effect three
  


16     years ago.  And yet, there were supposed to be
  


17     new regulations in effect as of January 1.
  


18                  So, my comment is, why am I
  


19     addressing old regulations, when there's
  


20     supposed to be new ones?
  


21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The focus
  


22     of the Executive Order was on regulations that
  


23     had not been amended or opened, if you will, for
  


24     a three-year period or more.
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 1                  MS. FORD:  Okay.
  


 2                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And the
  


 3     idea behind that being that there may be some
  


 4     regulations that hadn't gotten attention within
  


 5     the past three years, that needed to be updated.
  


 6                  So, that's the focus.  But it's not
  


 7     the exclusive intent of this process to
  


 8     remain -- you know, to address only those
  


 9     regulations.  So, you know, we're looking at it
  


10     as an opportunity to go beyond that, if need be.
  


11     But I think the body of our work and review will
  


12     focus on those older regulations.
  


13                  MS. FORD:  Can I comment on the new
  


14     ones?
  


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Please, go
  


16     ahead.
  


17                  MS. FORD:  Okay.  My first comment,
  


18     though, concerns -- it's relative to the old and
  


19     to the new.
  


20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.
  


21                  MS. FORD:  And that's the notice of
  


22     intent permit that people get when they're doing
  


23     construction.  And I know it comes down from
  


24     EPA, and my feedback has always been, well, EPA
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 1     makes us keep it active until the last bit of
  


 2     construction is done.  And I have several
  


 3     projects that it affects greatly, one being a
  


 4     commercial property where all utilities are in,
  


 5     all surfaces are paved, site is fully graded,
  


 6     all buildings are up except for one last
  


 7     building, a 3000 square foot building.
  


 8                  I have as-builts and approvals for
  


 9     everything that's been done.  And yet, I have to
  


10     keep the NOI open, and DNREC won't issue me a
  


11     final because they say the NOI has to stay open.
  


12     Well, if this building doesn't get built for ten
  


13     years, there's a fee involved, there's our fee
  


14     for keeping us current with the -- with
  


15     everything.
  


16                  And I believe it should be allowed
  


17     to terminate when the site is fully stabilized,
  


18     all approvals for utilities, site improvements,
  


19     are complete.  And if -- when they decide to
  


20     build the last building, you have to get a
  


21     general permit just for that 3000 square foot
  


22     improvement, that should be acceptable.  Because
  


23     the stormwater already took into consideration
  


24     that building being there.
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 1                  I have -- another example would be
  


 2     your subdivision drawings, where you have a
  


 3     subdivision, and a lot remains vacant for 40
  


 4     years, because somebody in their 20s bought it
  


 5     hoping to build on it when they retired.  You're
  


 6     going to keep the developer liable with that NOI
  


 7     for 40 years until that last house gets built?
  


 8     That seems erroneous, or that doesn't seem fair.
  


 9                  And again, the site and the
  


10     stormwater management was -- that building was
  


11     taken into consideration, that there would be a
  


12     house on that lot eventually.  To keep the NOI
  


13     open and the stormwater permit open for that
  


14     amount of time -- there should be a way to close
  


15     a permit, reopen it if you need to, with the
  


16     notion that we're only building what's already
  


17     been approved, and it's less than the 5000
  


18     square foot standard disturbance, where you can
  


19     qualify for the general permit.
  


20                  Along the same line, another little
  


21     thing that really bothers me, in 2006 DNREC
  


22     stated everybody was going to have to pay for
  


23     the NOI annually, which is $195.  Not a big bill
  


24     for the big developers, but for your littler
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 1     jobs, it can get to be a big bill.
  


 2                  And in the new regulations, they've
  


 3     inserted that letter into the technical
  


 4     documents, which I believe makes it now a
  


 5     regulation, that there will be that $195 every
  


 6     year.  But it can't close out.  There's no way
  


 7     of closing out the NOI until that last lot is
  


 8     built upon.
  


 9                  I just took for an example the NOIs
  


10     that were still open, and I only went back to
  


11     2005.  And I know NOIs go back to 2001.  And
  


12     going back to just 2005, with the amount that
  


13     are still open, you would be collecting $195,000
  


14     a year, just annually, just to keep everybody's
  


15     NOIs current.
  


16                  So, I take insult to it, that it's
  


17     a little bit more of a revenue generator than
  


18     really do you need to charge that every year,
  


19     when we can't physically close it out because
  


20     you won't let us close it out.
  


21                  A couple things in the new
  


22     regulations -- and I'll probably do more in
  


23     writing -- but they're treating wooded lots
  


24     different than a cleared lot.  And I feel it's
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 1     unfair for somebody who wants to preserve trees,
  


 2     and therefore, hasn't cleared their lot, to be
  


 3     penalized now, when they go for their stormwater
  


 4     management or they go for their general permit,
  


 5     to have to go an additional step, versus the
  


 6     person who cleared their lot five years ago, and
  


 7     they can just get the general permit without
  


 8     question.
  


 9                  The other -- the other item, too,
  


10     is the general permit, they were going to allow
  


11     based on a percentage of impervious on the lot,
  


12     and that discriminates against your smaller
  


13     lots, because you'll reach that percentage of
  


14     impervious a lot quicker than you will on a
  


15     one-acre lot.  Therefore, you're penalizing the
  


16     smaller lots, versus the larger lots, as far as
  


17     the amount of work that they're going to have to
  


18     hire my company to do.
  


19                  And I also feel, in general, that
  


20     most of what was approved in revisions back in
  


21     2005 or 2004, when they were done previously,
  


22     are just getting built today.  A lot of my
  


23     projects are under those regulations and are
  


24     just getting built, so you don't even know how
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 1     they work, and they're changing the regulations.
  


 2     So, do you have any comment?
  


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I don't.
  


 4     Thank you.  I appreciate your comments.
  


 5                  MS. FORD:  Okay.
  


 6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Oh, boy.
  


 7     Don -- hmm.  Tom?
  


 8                  MR. FORD:  I think I'm after Sally.
  


 9     Tom Ford.  I have a very specific item.  Number
  


10     one, Dave, I'd like to take issue, the whole
  


11     point of this meeting is to simplify permitting
  


12     and cost and expediate it, and during your
  


13     introduction, you basically said DNREC is doing
  


14     a great job and has simplified and expediated
  


15     permitting.  And I've been in the field for 30
  


16     years, and I'm telling you, it's getting more
  


17     complicated every day, and it takes longer, and
  


18     costs more.
  


19                  And but specifically, I -- our
  


20     company just got a dock rebuild and extension
  


21     permit.  It took over a year to get it.  It took
  


22     a lot of back and forth with DNREC.
  


23                  I don't have a problem with that
  


24     process.  What I do have a problem with is at
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 1     the end of the process, it's assigned personally
  


 2     to the applicant.  And unfortunately, this
  


 3     applicant died three weeks after the permit was
  


 4     approved and recorded, signed by Collin O'Mara,
  


 5     the whole deal.
  


 6                  So, the estate now has to go back
  


 7     to DNREC.  And I'm not saying DNREC's going to
  


 8     withhold that approval, but I find it -- why are
  


 9     we allowing a 20-year lease out on our
  


10     subaqueous lands for a pier personally?  It
  


11     should go with the land.
  


12                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's
  


13     right.
  


14                  MR. FORD:  And DelDOT's doing that
  


15     to entrance permits, and DNREC is doing that.
  


16     And I find the banking community and development
  


17     community can't live with those unknowns.  At
  


18     any point, say a movie theater sells the movie
  


19     theater, that DelDOT permit and any DNREC septic
  


20     permit, or whatever, should flow with the land.
  


21     Not be assigned personally.  Because it marks
  


22     the land -- and the banking community is not
  


23     aware of this, and the real estate community's
  


24     not aware of this.  And it's a big major issue.
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 1                  And it needs to be fixed and
  


 2     addressed, and you need to determine why you
  


 3     need to do that.  Because you have the power to
  


 4     revoke that permit, from anybody who uses it.
  


 5     No matter who's the assigneds, who's the heirs,
  


 6     or who the rental unit of users, if they violate
  


 7     any issue of that permit, DNREC has that in
  


 8     there, too.
  


 9                  So why does that have to be
  


10     assigned personally?  You know, that property's
  


11     going to change hands in 20 years.  What
  


12     property doesn't?  Very few.  The bulk of the
  


13     properties exchange.
  


14                  That needs to be fixed, and it
  


15     needs to be fixed throughout the State.  And so,
  


16     I just bring that up, because it's a very
  


17     specific, and it's a very annoying bureaucratic
  


18     process that doesn't help anybody.  It just gets
  


19     in the way.  And why that estate has to come
  


20     back to you and ask for you to do that permit is
  


21     ridiculous.
  


22                  I think what my -- Sally Ford
  


23     brought out about the NOI is the problem you
  


24     have is in a development, not all lots are built
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 1     on.  You're going to build the roads, you're
  


 2     going to put the stormwater in, you're going to
  


 3     get them approved, you're going to do the
  


 4     as-builts.
  


 5                  You spend hundreds of thousands of
  


 6     dollars on some larger developments, and the
  


 7     developer eventually is going to sell out to the
  


 8     HOA.  And the HOA isn't going to take over when
  


 9     there's 100 percent build-out.  So the HOAs,
  


10     ordinary citizens who don't understand this
  


11     process, are going to get stuck paying that NOI.
  


12     They're not going to understand what they have
  


13     to do.  And it's -- it's ridiculous to go
  


14     beyond.
  


15                  The land has all been developed,
  


16     and we're only going to go for one house at a
  


17     time.  I mean get a general permit, get a
  


18     sediment erosion control, stormwater has already
  


19     been fixed, and let people go.  Don't hold on to
  


20     them for 20 years.  Because 20 years from now
  


21     you might have a bunch of comments from those
  


22     HOAs.
  


23                  The general person in this
  


24     community doesn't understand that, and how these
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 1     regulations affect them.  And these are big,
  


 2     major issues that our representatives are going
  


 3     to have to deal with, and you're going to have
  


 4     to deal with some day.  And I don't see the
  


 5     benefit.  Is it all about health, safety,
  


 6     welfare of the general public?  How does holding
  


 7     onto the NOI help them?  How does making a
  


 8     permit personal help the health, safety, welfare
  


 9     of the public?
  


10                  These are specific issues, and I
  


11     know there's many others, but that's all I have
  


12     to say to you tonight.
  


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


14     Mr. Ford.  Next I have Ron Gray.
  


15                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Good evening.
  


16     I'm the new -- tomorrow I will be sworn in as a
  


17     Representative here for the State of Delaware.
  


18     I'm very, very proud to be doing that, and I'll
  


19     be representing all of the citizens in my
  


20     district, and much of that is in the natural
  


21     resource area.
  


22                  We have the Inland Bays, the little
  


23     Assawoman Bay, my area, and up to Indian River
  


24     Bay as well, to the inlet.  I think because the
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 1     bridge washed out, I only -- I don't have to
  


 2     worry about that on the north side, that's
  


 3     another representative's side than me, so I want
  


 4     to make sure that doesn't happen.
  


 5                  Running for office, regulation has
  


 6     always been a bad word for me, really.  And it's
  


 7     what I ran on, the platform.  The point I really
  


 8     want to make is, I just feel like DNREC needs to
  


 9     be more responsive in looking at it from the
  


10     perspective of the end user.  Not only what Tom
  


11     and Sally were talking about from the technical
  


12     person, but regulations in general.
  


13                  I would like to see them being more
  


14     of the citizens and the technical folks that are
  


15     putting together the plans, to let them try to
  


16     work with you closely, instead of requiring them
  


17     to do things, let them partner with you to come
  


18     up with even better ways to improve the
  


19     environment and make it a better place.
  


20                  And I feel that the regulations
  


21     typically become onerous, and I think that they
  


22     have been put in place because a few folks in
  


23     our community took advantage of it, or polluted,
  


24     and we go -- the pendulum has swung, so that the
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 1     regulations have become very onerous in many
  


 2     cases.
  


 3                  And I would like to see more of a
  


 4     partnership, and not "regulation" should be a
  


 5     bad word.  We should all share with that, that
  


 6     we're trying to protect the environment for the
  


 7     jewel we have in our Inland Bays, and to
  


 8     maintain that.
  


 9                  So, you're in a very difficult
  


10     position.  On the new -- my first reaction when
  


11     I heard that we were looking at regs that were
  


12     three years old was, well, what about the ones
  


13     that have gone into place in the last three
  


14     years?  But you have to start somewhere.  So, I
  


15     salute Governor Markell for taking an effort to
  


16     look at the regulations, even though he's
  


17     starting it at the three-year point.
  


18                  But going forward, I feel like we
  


19     should -- we should try to work together, and
  


20     let -- and build a volunteer or support base
  


21     that all our natural resources, we want to
  


22     maintain those, and make them a better place,
  


23     and have volunteer support, and the community in
  


24     general want to work with DNREC, and not have it
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 1     as being told to do things, as much.
  


 2                  So, that, in a nutshell, is really
  


 3     what I wanted to say.  So, I totally respect
  


 4     you, Dave.  I think you're in a tough position,
  


 5     because most of the times, people are looking at
  


 6     you as the bad guy, or DNREC as the bad guy.
  


 7     And I think that needs to change.  Thank you for
  


 8     letting me speak for a moment, and I look
  


 9     forward to working with you over the next couple
  


10     years.
  


11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you
  


12     for your comments, Representative.
  


13                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Still
  


14     Representative Elect.
  


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Close
  


16     enough for me.  Next I have Bob and Renee
  


17     Coleman.  Is that right?
  


18                  MR. COLEMAN:  I'm Bob Coleman.
  


19     I'll be speaking for both of us, I guess.  I've
  


20     been a property owner for close to 30 years now,
  


21     in various parts of Sussex County.  And I guess
  


22     I have to say that in general, I believe that
  


23     the people in this state and county are very
  


24     concerned about water and air quality, and
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 1     they're very anxious to have those sort of
  


 2     things improved.
  


 3                  And 20, 25 years ago, I saw a lot
  


 4     of very significant improvements that were
  


 5     beneficial.  They made good sense.  But I do
  


 6     have to also say, over the last decade or so, it
  


 7     seems as though the regulations we're seeing
  


 8     come through are almost regulations for the sake
  


 9     of making a regulation, and they're not really
  


10     making any significant improvement in the
  


11     environment.  All they're doing is exerting more
  


12     and more control over infinitesimal limits, in
  


13     some cases, and a desire to control every
  


14     specific detail, down to the most minute thing.
  


15                  If the Governor's really serious
  


16     about making these things work more smoothly and
  


17     having less negative impact, I think you need to
  


18     take a look at that, not only on existing
  


19     regulations, but also on these new ones that are
  


20     being discussed.
  


21                  Now, as far as the new septic
  


22     regulations, I do have some comments on that,
  


23     also.  I understand that was a separate issue,
  


24     but it really ties into this, I think, as far as
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 1     the impact of regulations on the area.
  


 2                  These new regulations, because of
  


 3     their tight controls, especially on nitrogens, I
  


 4     think, are going to impose a severe financial
  


 5     hardship to anyone holding a present property
  


 6     that may need repairs, or new property about to
  


 7     be built.  And in a time when the state and
  


 8     county are in such desperate need of things to
  


 9     help growth and help people survive, it just
  


10     seems totally wrong to be clamping down on
  


11     something, unless there's a true benefit to be
  


12     had.
  


13                  Now, aside from the need for
  


14     putting in new systems, perhaps if you have to
  


15     replace them, there's, as someone else mentioned
  


16     earlier, this need for inspection costs, if you
  


17     happen to be unfortunate enough to need one of
  


18     these systems.  And not just the inspection
  


19     costs, but along with it goes a mandate that
  


20     regardless of individual property rights, an
  


21     inspector will have free access to your property
  


22     any time he wants, and you cannot deny access.
  


23     Now to me, that is a severe overreach of the
  


24     government.
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 1                  And someone else also pointed out,
  


 2     the personal attachment of these permits.  To
  


 3     me, that just makes absolutely no sense at all.
  


 4     You're regulating runoff water from a piece of
  


 5     land.  Why does it get tied to the individual?
  


 6     That is nothing but a burdensome aspect to
  


 7     anybody, whether they're selling, passing it on
  


 8     to heirs, or whatever.  It's a real burden.
  


 9                  And I also, as a professional
  


10     engineer, I have to raise a lot of questions
  


11     about some of these new regulations in terms of
  


12     their specific limits and how they're to be
  


13     implemented.  For example, many of these water
  


14     control limits that are going on right now are a
  


15     result, I understand, of follow-on from the EPA.
  


16     But once in a while the State needs to stand up
  


17     and get a backbone and say, hey, EPA, this
  


18     doesn't make any sense.
  


19                  We're now looking at nitrogen level
  


20     limits for runoff water that are half the
  


21     allowable limits of drinking water.  Does that
  


22     make any sense to anybody?  I mean we're trying
  


23     to put water runoff into areas that's more pure
  


24     than the drinking water that a lot of people







39


  


 1     drink.
  


 2                  You know, I don't know if this
  


 3     falls under that area that the Governor was
  


 4     talking about in reviewing regulations, as far
  


 5     as burdens on business, but somebody needs to
  


 6     step back and take a look and say, is there any
  


 7     practical sense to some of these regulations.
  


 8                  We're asking for huge expenses of
  


 9     money here for infinitesimal amounts of
  


10     difference, in the nitrogen content, just to use
  


11     one example.  And it's not even clear right now
  


12     whether those limits are achievable.
  


13                  So, with that, enough said.  I hope
  


14     somebody puts some common sense into this.
  


15     Thank you.
  


16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


17     Mr. Coleman.  Let me just respond to one point
  


18     that you raised on the language that's in the
  


19     septic regulations, and that is having to do
  


20     with property access.  We simply replicated
  


21     language that's preexisting in State law.  And
  


22     our interpretation of that, for as long as I've
  


23     been around, which is considerable, is that we
  


24     do not come onto a property for a septic
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 1     inspection without first contacting the owner
  


 2     and seeking permission.
  


 3                  If, in the event we believe there
  


 4     is a public health threat that demands our
  


 5     immediate action, we can move more swiftly.  But
  


 6     I would hope that people recognize that we've
  


 7     exercised that authority with a great deal of
  


 8     respect over the years, and we plan to continue
  


 9     to do that.  But thank you for your comments.
  


10                  Next I have Bill Moyer.
  


11                  MR. MOYER:  Good evening.  My name
  


12     is Bill Moyer.  I am president of the Inland
  


13     Bays Foundation.  And let me say, before I start
  


14     my formal remarks, that the Inland Bays
  


15     Foundation has no objection to the
  


16     simplification, or making regulations more user
  


17     friendly.  We think that there are ways that
  


18     that can be done without removing the protection
  


19     of the environment that they were intended for.
  


20                  That said, let me read in my formal
  


21     comments.  As I said, I am president of the
  


22     Inland Bays Foundation, which is dedicated to
  


23     improving the environmental condition of our
  


24     polluted Inland Bays and their surrounding
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 1     watershed.
  


 2                  Decades of effort by DNREC to
  


 3     restore the bays to their once swimmable and
  


 4     fishable state have met with some success, but
  


 5     real progress has been slowed by resistance from
  


 6     local organizations and improper land use
  


 7     decisions made by Sussex County.
  


 8                  In the mid 1990s, I was a member of
  


 9     the then-Governor's Task Force on Inland Bays,
  


10     and I've served as an expert witness before the
  


11     Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission and
  


12     Sussex County Council for Development, that was
  


13     not in compliance with Sussex County's land use
  


14     plan.
  


15                  I was born and raised in Sussex
  


16     County.  Although the Inland Bays Foundation
  


17     agrees with the intent of Executive Order 36, we
  


18     are concerned with some of the language that it
  


19     contains.  Specifically, the careful read of the
  


20     Order would lead one to believe that
  


21     environmental regulations are a deterrent to a
  


22     viable economy and to economic growth.  This is
  


23     not true.
  


24                  Study after study has shown that
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 1     protecting our environment creates jobs, and in
  


 2     the case of Sussex County, ensures that people
  


 3     will continue to live, vacation, and recreate
  


 4     here.
  


 5                  I have four documents that I would
  


 6     like to introduce into the record of this
  


 7     hearing.  The first is a report by the
  


 8     Chesapeake Bay Foundation, titled "Debunking The
  


 9     'Job Killer' Myth:  How Pollution Limits
  


10     Encourage Jobs in the Chesapeake Bay Region."The
  


11     report shows that there had been a 43 percent
  


12     increase in the number of environmental industry
  


13     jobs in Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Virginia
  


14     over the last three decades.
  


15                  In a ground-breaking article in The
  


16     Scientific American more than 20 years ago, a
  


17     noted Harvard University Business School
  


18     economist concluded that, quote, "Strict
  


19     environmental regulations do not inevitably
  


20     hinder competitive advantages against viable.
  


21     Indeed, they all enhance it."
  


22                   The report concludes, quote,
  


23     "Clean water also will mean more fish, crabs,
  


24     and oysters, which translate to more work and
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 1     thus, fishermen, processors, packers,
  


 2     restaurateurs and people in the tourism-related
  


 3     industries.  If history is any guide,
  


 4     environmental regulations will once again
  


 5     nourish God's creation."
  


 6                  My second document is a report
  


 7     published on November 8, 2012, by the Public
  


 8     News Service.  It also concludes, "Here in this
  


 9     report, document after document, research after
  


10     research finding, show that especially in times
  


11     when the economy is slowing down, environmental
  


12     protection stimulates that economy and creates
  


13     jobs."
  


14                  There are those groups in Sussex
  


15     County that would have us believe that positive
  


16     growth means growth without unnecessary
  


17     government interference, and without unnecessary
  


18     environmental regulations.  If they had their
  


19     way, development would occur anywhere, with
  


20     little oversight.  As I have stated, if this
  


21     occurs in Sussex County, this philosophy will
  


22     lead to uncontrolled, unsupportable growth, and
  


23     a deterioration of the quality of life in Sussex
  


24     County.
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 1                  This has happened and continues to
  


 2     happen around the country, with the ultimate
  


 3     decline in property values and economic
  


 4     hardships.  It's time that we start learning
  


 5     from our past mistakes.
  


 6                  Whereas, quote, "Number 7 of
  


 7     Executive Order 36 indicates a misunderstanding
  


 8     of the economics of environmental protection, in
  


 9     that it states it is the intent of this Order
  


10     to," quote, "reduce impediments to economic
  


11     growth," close quote, "caused by regulations
  


12     that may be reduced or streamlined."
  


13                  The Executive Order calls for,
  


14     quote, "meaningful public input into the
  


15     regulatory reform process."  I would encourage
  


16     DNREC to give little consideration to any
  


17     comments received at these public hearings that
  


18     do not contain specific analyses of the adverse
  


19     economic impact of the regulation that anyone or
  


20     any group is requesting to be changed or
  


21     limited.
  


22                  It would be irresponsible for DNREC
  


23     to make any changes without sufficient data on
  


24     which to base its decision.  Simply stating that
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 1     the regulation is bad or is not needed is
  


 2     inadequate.
  


 3                  For example, I'm introducing a
  


 4     document showing suggested changes by a group
  


 5     advocating positive growth in Sussex County.  It
  


 6     requests the elimination of the nitrogen removal
  


 7     standard for small septic systems, removal of
  


 8     the 30-day property transfer requirement from
  


 9     all septic permits, and the permit transfer
  


10     requirement for dock permits.  There is
  


11     absolutely no supporting documentation on how
  


12     these changes are adversely affecting the
  


13     economy or are hindering growth.
  


14                  Also, why would such a request be
  


15     made when water quality data clearly show that
  


16     the Inland Bays are overloaded with nitrogen,
  


17     leading to algae blooms and subsequent fish
  


18     kills.  The nitrogen discharged into the
  


19     groundwater eventually finds its ways into the
  


20     bays, as studies by the Delaware Geological
  


21     Survey have shown.
  


22                  These pro-growth organizations have
  


23     stated that the Inland Bays are, quote,
  


24     "cleaning themselves up," close quote, and that
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 1     growth with fewer restrictions will lead to a
  


 2     better quality of life for Sussex County
  


 3     residents and visitors.
  


 4                  Yet no facts or data has ever been
  


 5     presented by these groups to substantiate the
  


 6     supposed statement of fact.  These statements
  


 7     are made for self-serving interests of those
  


 8     that benefit financially from unrestricted and
  


 9     irresponsible growth.
  


10                  I am sure that you will hear
  


11     similar claims tonight and at the other
  


12     scheduled hearings in Kent and New Castle
  


13     County.  Again, I implore DNREC to consider only
  


14     those changes that can show a conclusive benefit
  


15     to the environment and to the economy of each
  


16     county and the state of Delaware.  This is
  


17     clearly the intent of Executive Order 36.
  


18                  Finally, I would ask that DNREC
  


19     reinstate the collection of subaqueous lands
  


20     fees for structures constructed on public
  


21     subaqueous lands that are generating revenue.
  


22     This was generated by House Bill 360 of the
  


23     General Assembly and adopted by DNREC on June
  


24     30, 1991.  Failure to collect these fees is
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 1     allowing private parties to build structures on
  


 2     State land, charge for the use of the
  


 3     structures, and pay no fee to the State for the
  


 4     use of State land.
  


 5                  This would be similar to allowing
  


 6     someone to build a restaurant or concession in a
  


 7     State park and not charge a fee.  Failure to
  


 8     collect these fees for many years has resulted
  


 9     in the loss of millions of dollars in revenue
  


10     that could be used to offset the cost for
  


11     environmental protection in Delaware.
  


12                  I am attaching a copy of this
  


13     document to my testimony.  Thank you for the
  


14     opportunity to comment.
  


15                  THE DEPUTY SECRETARY:  Thank you,
  


16     Mr. Moyer.  Next I have Scott Evans.
  


17                  MR. EVANS:  Tonight what I'm coming
  


18     here for is kind of like a third go around.  I'm
  


19     here for the soil evaluation for private
  


20     individual lots and developments.  There is a
  


21     five-year on there; after five years you have to
  


22     go back and get your lots reevaluated for your
  


23     soil samples.
  


24                  I'm going through that now.  We
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 1     already had it done, which I bought a
  


 2     development, and in the meantime, while I bought
  


 3     it, probably after a year, probably when I had
  


 4     four years left, that at the end of that time,
  


 5     right now, we're having to go back and get all
  


 6     the lots done over again.  So we're paying
  


 7     double to get lots done, because of the five
  


 8     years.
  


 9                  In talking with -- as a matter of
  


10     fact, Joe Duke, and some of the others, you
  


11     know, he was the one that said he doesn't agree
  


12     with it.  Soil doesn't change if anything
  


13     doesn't move.  If you have 50 years, that's one
  


14     thing.  But five years.
  


15                  And so, this is about my third go
  


16     around.  The first time, Representative Hocker
  


17     spoke to you a while back and said something to
  


18     you about seeing if something could be done.  In
  


19     the meantime, I spoke again in Dover during one
  


20     of these hearings that you had and I haven't
  


21     heard anything.
  


22                  Now, if it's been changed, I
  


23     haven't heard.  So that's why I'm here tonight,
  


24     to voice my opinion again.  Because this is not
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 1     right.  I mean five years.  Look, I'm 63 years
  


 2     old.  Five years don't take long to roll around.
  


 3     It's getting less all the time as I get older.
  


 4                  So you know, it needs to be --
  


 5     something needs to be done, because now we're
  


 6     paying -- I just got one today for you guys
  


 7     right in the mail, that we just had done on
  


 8     another lot.  So, I mean we're paying double,
  


 9     and that's not right.  I mean nothing changes.
  


10     It doesn't go.
  


11                  I think it needs to be extended out
  


12     a little bit longer than -- than five years,
  


13     because it used to be there wasn't no time.  Now
  


14     you got five years.  Five years isn't very long.
  


15     I mean it rolls around in a hurry.
  


16                  I know there's probably -- there's
  


17     a time there -- I guess you can go back, I may
  


18     be wrong -- I think before the five years is up,
  


19     and you can get reevaluated, but I didn't -- I
  


20     wasn't aware of that fact.
  


21                  I'm a builder, contractor/owner.
  


22     But places I've done, I've never ran into this
  


23     before.  I had 38 lots.  Now we're down, because
  


24     the economy is down.  I mean I got 30 some lots.
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 1     You take that times 4 or $500, after you've
  


 2     already spent it, you're doubling your money.
  


 3                  So I think something needs to be
  


 4     reconsidered in the time limit, to extend it, or
  


 5     at least take a little consideration.  Because
  


 6     now we're just paying double for what we paid,
  


 7     because now we're starting to sell a few lots
  


 8     and we're having to pay this out.
  


 9                  So, I just wish you could take into
  


10     consideration of extending that, making it
  


11     longer, or whether something -- what can be
  


12     done, or does legislation have to be placed in,
  


13     if it has to change.
  


14                  I met with Senator Hocker, but you
  


15     know, can they do something?  Representative
  


16     Gray is here.  I don't know what can be done,
  


17     whether it be legislative, or extend it, or
  


18     whatever.  But it's not fair, especially someone
  


19     to -- you know, now-a-days young folks are
  


20     trying to get something, some reason somebody
  


21     gives them something, it's been done, all of a
  


22     sudden now they got to pull another $400 out, 5,
  


23     whatever it is, to get something done.
  


24                  So I don't know if there anything
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 1     has been done, or has it been talked about or
  


 2     what.
  


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The issue
  


 4     that you raise is, I think you previously
  


 5     mentioned that you had made some comments on the
  


 6     record for the proposal for the on-site
  


 7     wastewater regulations.  Is that what I
  


 8     understood you to say?
  


 9                  MR. EVANS:  Correct.  In other
  


10     words, we've got to go back, and you have to
  


11     start right from the beginning again.
  


12                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.
  


13                  MR. EVANS:  Because it's already
  


14     been done -- I mean it's already done.  The soil
  


15     samples is done.  It's all -- you know, it's
  


16     still there.  So now we got to do the same exact
  


17     thing they done five years ago.
  


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.
  


19     So, nothing has changed as of yet.  Those
  


20     regulations are still under review, we're
  


21     reviewing public comment, including your comment
  


22     about the extension of that.  So, I can't
  


23     pre-judge the outcome of that, but we have
  


24     received those comments, and they're under
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 1     consideration at this point.
  


 2                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.
  


 3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  But I will
  


 4     say two points, I guess.  One is I don't believe
  


 5     that legislation is required, necessarily.  I
  


 6     think this is a regulatory issue.  And I would
  


 7     also say I think it is true, and you probably
  


 8     know more than I, that if you at any point
  


 9     during that five-year period were to record
  


10     those lots, then that -- you know, you've taken
  


11     care of it at that point.  You don't need to go
  


12     back and get another soil test.  I believe
  


13     that's correct.  But you may have to --
  


14                  MR. EVANS:  You are correct about
  


15     that.  But here's my problem.  The problem is
  


16     that that house, or whatever, once you get that
  


17     recorded, you have to take and put down there
  


18     exactly what the house is going to be, exactly
  


19     where the sewer system is going to be placed.
  


20                  Now, should you get the home and
  


21     somebody wants their lot -- the house on the
  


22     other side of the lot -- which they can do
  


23     that -- you've already told them where they're
  


24     going to put the house.  They have no say-so
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 1     where it may be.  They may want to place it
  


 2     somewheres else other than where you want, and
  


 3     it's still eligible to be placed on that piece
  


 4     of property.
  


 5                  But if you go back and think, a
  


 6     little common sense says you still have the same
  


 7     situation.  You haven't built on it, you haven't
  


 8     done anything.  You still have the same
  


 9     situation, whether it's been five years or ten
  


10     years, and you don't go back.  You still have
  


11     the same situation.  That soil hasn't changed.
  


12     Nothing has changed.  The only thing is this
  


13     play on words to do something to have it
  


14     recorded.  Because it says this is where it's
  


15     going.
  


16                  So, you know, it's -- it hasn't
  


17     changed.  Nothing has changed, I mean as far as
  


18     that goes.  It's just all you done is put it on
  


19     a piece of paper to make it look good.  So --
  


20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.
  


21                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.
  


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.
  


23     Next I have Larry Mayo.
  


24                  MR. MAYO:  Thank you for having
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 1     this meeting, and I would like to commend the
  


 2     Governor for the one thing that I think he's
  


 3     done right, which is looking to simplify some
  


 4     regulations.
  


 5                  Let me talk to you a little bit
  


 6     about my experience with regulations.  And not
  


 7     all of them are DNREC's, but some of them are.
  


 8     I inherited three lots with two mobile homes on
  


 9     them.  Those mobile homes were put on in the
  


10     '60s and '70s.  Okay?  That is my net worth.  I
  


11     make approximately $30,000 a year, and that's
  


12     pretty much what it takes for me to live.  So I
  


13     decided since this was my net worth, and this
  


14     was going to be my retirement plan, that I would
  


15     take those two mobile homes, and since I'm a
  


16     contractor, build houses and sell the houses,
  


17     so -- to get myself a retirement fund.
  


18                  Well, I inherited them in 2006.  At
  


19     that time, that made my net worth about
  


20     $300,000.  The lots.  Thanks to banking
  


21     regulations, the only thing I could borrow money
  


22     to do was build a house.  Thanks to DNREC
  


23     regulations, I couldn't build a house unless I
  


24     put new septic systems in both lots.
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 1                  Well, the amount of money I could
  


 2     borrow on my limited income would not allow for
  


 3     that.  So I converted one of them into a class C
  


 4     in order to sell it for enough to be able to fix
  


 5     up the other one.
  


 6                  Well, thanks to the Government
  


 7     intrusion in the housing market, that HAS now
  


 8     been on the market for three years, and is now
  


 9     worth what I owe.  So, even if it sells, I'll
  


10     just be one lot short of what I started.  This
  


11     is how regulations hurt regular people.
  


12                  Now, as far as EPA regulations,
  


13     I've been studying this document for the last
  


14     three years.  I've taken two college courses on
  


15     it.  There is no place in this document, which
  


16     is the Constitution of the United States, that
  


17     gives the Federal government the authority to
  


18     regulate my land or your land.
  


19                  So, the EPA does not have to be
  


20     listened to by the State.  Okay?  Get them to
  


21     show you where in the Constitution they have the
  


22     authority to tell you what water can run off
  


23     your land.  It's not in there.  Believe me.
  


24     I'll read it over and over and over again.
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 1                  To our State legislators that are
  


 2     out here, I'd like to see you guys grow a large
  


 3     set of cajones and start taking advantage of the
  


 4     Tenth Amendment to the Constitution.  Because
  


 5     you guys should have more power over me than
  


 6     President Obama and the Congress and the Senate.
  


 7     And certainly more than the United Nations and
  


 8     their agenda 21.
  


 9                  I thank you for your public
  


10     service.  I hope you take this to heart.  Most
  


11     of the regulations implemented over the last ten
  


12     years have done a lot to hurt the small guy.
  


13     You can't burn leaves, the trash company won't
  


14     take them.  I don't know what you're supposed to
  


15     do with them.  I just let them lay on my land
  


16     and rot.
  


17                  Thank you.
  


18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


19     Mr. Mayo.  Next I have Rich Collins.
  


20                  MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, Dave.  I
  


21     thank the Department for being here tonight, and
  


22     I'm sure you understand no comments are
  


23     personal, certainly not from me.  I'm trying to
  


24     get to the heart of this Executive Order 36, the
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 1     whole point of it.
  


 2                  Back in 2008, we had something
  


 3     happen in the economy.  I think most of us know
  


 4     about it.  It wasn't good.  I think DNREC knows
  


 5     about it, because I know your budget has shrunk,
  


 6     and I believe you lost some employees due to
  


 7     some of that, correct?
  


 8                  All right.  So, people in -- out in
  


 9     constituent land are in the same position.  My
  


10     understanding is that underemployment, if you
  


11     have unemployment and underemployment, we're
  


12     somewhere -- these are different numbers, but
  


13     maybe 18, 19 percent.  Very, very high rate of
  


14     unemployment for young people, and some forecast
  


15     that it could be getting much worse.
  


16                  I have an economic report here,
  


17     it's actually a subscription I pay for, talks
  


18     about the demographic hurricane coming towards
  


19     us, with folks aging, and the incredible burden
  


20     we're going to face paying for Social Security
  


21     and Medicare.
  


22                  In short, there is a Federal
  


23     government sponsored study that I've found, and
  


24     you can find any number of them, that basically
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 1     indicates we're probably looking at, if we don't
  


 2     do exactly the right things, a declining
  


 3     standard of living.  For a long time now.
  


 4                  And so, I'm hoping that the whole
  


 5     concept of Executive Order 36 is to realize that
  


 6     Delaware has to compete with other states and
  


 7     other countries.  Otherwise, we're going to have
  


 8     a decline.  And as I think has been demonstrated
  


 9     here on more than one occasion tonight, there
  


10     are certain things that are costing people more
  


11     money, in my opinion, than probably needs to be
  


12     spent.
  


13                  I wanted to address the EPA real
  


14     quickly, before I forget.  I know that you are
  


15     under tremendous pressure from the EPA.  But I
  


16     go to about as many DNREC meetings as anybody
  


17     who's not a professional, you know, doing
  


18     business with you on a daily basis.  I don't
  


19     really hear much transparency in terms of what
  


20     you really do have to deal with.
  


21                  Now, I know Attorney General
  


22     Cuccinelli in Virginia, the EPA told Virginia
  


23     that they had to pay -- I think it was billions
  


24     of dollars, to prevent stormwater runoff.  He







59


  


 1     sued.  He, through the Virginia Department of
  


 2     Transportation and Fairfax County, I believe.
  


 3     And the Supreme Court of the United States just
  


 4     ruled that they were right, and that EPA had no
  


 5     authority to regulate water flow through the
  


 6     Clean Water Act, water runoff.
  


 7                  And so, I believe that's going to
  


 8     go to the heart of Delaware's pending stormwater
  


 9     regulations.  I -- I sincerely hope -- I'm
  


10     frustrated in that when I go to a meeting that's
  


11     a joint meeting with EPA and DNREC, and Delaware
  


12     citizens, that I feel some of your employees
  


13     feel like they're more beholden to the EPA than
  


14     they are to their citizens that pay their
  


15     salaries.  Now I hope I'm wrong on that, but
  


16     that's the impression I get sometimes.  And I
  


17     just really -- I hope they're on our side first.
  


18                  Also, let me make one comment about
  


19     the thing about being on property without
  


20     warrants.  I'm the one that publicized that, as
  


21     much as anyone.  I did do my best, every time I
  


22     said it, I think, to make it clear that it is
  


23     State law.  What I see is different this time is
  


24     that in this new septic regulation, it's obvious
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 1     the Department is very anxious to force people
  


 2     to have a type of system that performs so poorly
  


 3     that it has to be inspected twice a year.
  


 4                  And I think it's obvious, based on
  


 5     that and other things, that they expect a lot of
  


 6     breakdowns.  And I believe it's obvious that
  


 7     they're expecting to have to take action more
  


 8     than in the past.
  


 9                  And I would also say that I get
  


10     great discomfort reading those new septic
  


11     regulations.  And in fact, I put together a
  


12     little paragraph describing what someone selling
  


13     our home would have to explain to their buyer,
  


14     you know, in the form of disclosure.  It almost
  


15     looks like some aspects of those regulations are
  


16     designed to prevent -- or discourage freedom
  


17     using their rural properties.
  


18                  And so, it's not so much the words
  


19     which, as you point out, are identical to what's
  


20     in State law.  It's why are they being, for the
  


21     first time, put into regulation, in conjunction
  


22     with the whole big picture look of how these
  


23     regulations look?
  


24                  Now, I think probably more
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 1     important than the particulars of a lot of
  


 2     regulations is the process.  You know,
  


 3     businesses need three things.  They need to know
  


 4     what the rules are, they need to know roughly
  


 5     how long it's going to take to get through the
  


 6     process, and they have to know that if they
  


 7     actually follow the rules, that at the end of
  


 8     the process they probably will get the prize.
  


 9                  We've had some testimony here from
  


10     folks tonight making it clear that they don't
  


11     feel that the process is clear and defined.
  


12     Furthermore, there is no doubt in my mind that
  


13     DNREC is making some fundamental mistakes in
  


14     application of State law.
  


15                  The main one, let's talk about
  


16     these 30-day requirements to transfer a permit.
  


17     I see two reasons why that's not legal.  Number
  


18     one, there is a -- there has been a very deep
  


19     precedent set by the Delaware Supreme Court that
  


20     DNREC regulations cannot override State law.
  


21     And a lawsuit that was settled recently made
  


22     very clear that that's the case.  And there is
  


23     an entire title of State law that has to do with
  


24     property transfers, I think it's Title 25, but
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 1     it's right there, whatever it is.
  


 2                  Well, there isn't one word of DNREC
  


 3     having any sort of veto power over that process
  


 4     whatsoever in State law.  Nor, when you read
  


 5     DNREC's operating authority, is there any hint
  


 6     that they would have control in any way of a
  


 7     real estate settlement process.  So on that
  


 8     basis, I'm pretty confident it's not a legal
  


 9     thing to do.
  


10                  The other reason, though, however,
  


11     is more fundamental, even.  Because regulations
  


12     are created through something called the
  


13     Administrative Procedures Act.  It's a State
  


14     law, Title 29, Chapter 101.  First of all, I
  


15     want to read the definition of a regulation.
  


16     Regulation.  Means "Any statement of law,
  


17     procedure, policy, right, requirement, or
  


18     prohibition formulated and promulgated by an
  


19     agency as a rule or standard or as a guide for
  


20     the decision of the cases there -- thereafter by
  


21     it or by any other agency, authority, or court."
  


22                  Now, the point is, anything you do,
  


23     anything that affects a citizen, forces them to
  


24     do something in a legal manner, is defined as a
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 1     regulation.  So, how do regulations get created?
  


 2     If you look under -- bear with me.  Too many
  


 3     pages.  Oh, shoot.  I don't see it.  Here's what
  


 4     it says, I know what it says.  You have to
  


 5     publish the regulation in the State Register,
  


 6     State Register of Regulations, you have to hold
  


 7     a public hearing, and then the Secretary has to
  


 8     formally adopt the regulation.  Those three
  


 9     things have to happen.
  


10                  I checked the existing septic
  


11     regulations.  I do not -- oh.  And by the way,
  


12     this language of being 30 days prior to
  


13     settlement, written permission from DNREC,
  


14     that's being put on septic permits right now.  I
  


15     just spoke to another gentleman today.  He
  


16     looked at his septic regulation -- permit that
  


17     he just got recently.  I said I'll bet you're
  


18     going to find that language on it.  Look for it.
  


19     He didn't know anything about it, even though
  


20     the guy is pretty sophisticated.
  


21                  He looks around and says, oh, here
  


22     it is.  Last item.  He read it, word for word.
  


23     That's never been approved in a regulation
  


24     legally.
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 1                  I would go so far as to say this:
  


 2     If a person walks into any State agency and they
  


 3     are told we don't do it that way anymore, and if
  


 4     they cannot point to a regulation approved by
  


 5     their Secretary, they've broken State law.
  


 6     Folks, you should be able to find the rules
  


 7     before you go into any given agency, and you
  


 8     should know -- I'm telling you, you can ask them
  


 9     for site-specific concerns, of course, but you
  


10     should in a general sense know exactly what's
  


11     going to be required of you if you look it up,
  


12     and right now you don't.
  


13                  So, I think that's really
  


14     fundamental.  That -- I believe that also
  


15     applies to the boat dock that were brought up.
  


16     That does not have that 30-day requirement, but
  


17     it does make that business personal.  So, I
  


18     would ask -- I would urge DNREC to look at these
  


19     things, make sure that they're following the
  


20     rules they have to follow.
  


21                  Finally I'll say this:  Sometimes I
  


22     wish DNREC would be more forthcoming with the
  


23     data they have available to them.  A few years
  


24     ago I was in your office in Dover, and one of







65


  


 1     their employees handed me a USGS publication,
  


 2     and at the time, we happened to be engaged
  


 3     pretty heavily in another regulation.  I won't
  


 4     get specific about it.  Well, the USGS -- U.S.
  


 5     Geological Survey made it pretty clear that what
  


 6     DNREC had been saying was the source of the
  


 7     pollution problem was not the problem.  In fact,
  


 8     it overwhelmingly made that case.  And so, I
  


 9     simply pointed it out to the folks involved, and
  


10     you could see that it was -- that report
  


11     suddenly became radioactive.
  


12                  This concept that septic systems
  


13     are like the worst thing that can happen to
  


14     anything, polluting the Inland Bays, folks, in
  


15     my opinion, based on reading quite a few
  


16     technical documents, is not backed up by fact.
  


17     And I believe there are many other things that
  


18     could be done that could have far more positive
  


19     impact on the environment than just forcing
  


20     people to spend 20, 25,000.  I have a quote from
  


21     five years ago on a septic system, 20 -- almost
  


22     $22,000.  And I want to point out that in the
  


23     rural areas, many of the folks that are required
  


24     to spend this kind of money are some of the
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 1     folks who can least afford it.
  


 2                  And I would also say, given the
  


 3     state of the economy and the outlook for the
  


 4     future, the concept that DNREC is going to give
  


 5     everybody money that can't afford it is a little
  


 6     shaky, too.  At the very time when you're laying
  


 7     off people because you don't have enough money,
  


 8     where did that idea come that we just find a
  


 9     whole bunch of other money and fork it out to
  


10     people, just so they can put a whole bunch of
  


11     money into the septic system that's going to
  


12     break down, and that over a long period of time
  


13     is going to show a virtually unmeasurable
  


14     difference in what's being done right now?
  


15                  So, to conclude, attitude,
  


16     attitude.  I'm hoping that everybody in this
  


17     State government understands the world has
  


18     changed.  We are either going to -- and you
  


19     know, this is the other discouraging thing.  I'm
  


20     not aware of one single regulation in this
  


21     State -- maybe it's happened, but I don't know
  


22     of it -- that specifically somebody says, you
  


23     know what?  People can't afford this anymore.
  


24     Let's find a cheaper way.  Even though we are
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 1     all dramatically poorer.
  


 2                  I mean we had one man mention his
  


 3     financial situation.  I can tell you right now
  


 4     the real estate that I own has declined, and I'm
  


 5     just a homeowner.  You know, I've got a house
  


 6     and a couple rental houses.  I would guarantee
  


 7     you my property values have declined by 3 or
  


 8     $400,000, along with my net worth.  That's
  


 9     happened to virtually everybody in Delaware.
  


10                  So, why isn't our State government
  


11     approaching this problem with that mindset; that
  


12     we all need to pull in our belt and figure how
  


13     to be successful going forward.  Thank you.
  


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


15     Mr. Collins.  Next I have John Burton.
  


16                  MR. NEWLIN:  Thank you for calling
  


17     on me.  I got a little different concept than
  


18     what's going on tonight.  In fact -- I'm getting
  


19     to an age myself, I'm going to put my glasses
  


20     on.  As a member of one of the boards of the
  


21     State of Delaware, we were notified that maybe
  


22     we should attend these hearings, in case
  


23     something comes before us that would have some
  


24     effect on it.
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 1                  As a member of the Delaware
  


 2     Industrial Control Board, I received
  


 3     notification from the Governor's office
  


 4     regarding this public hearing, and would like to
  


 5     present the following ideals, ideas, for
  


 6     consideration.
  


 7                  As present owner of 160 acres of
  


 8     land on the western side of Rehoboth Bay, the
  


 9     east side of this property runs approximately
  


10     2000 feet of the waters of Rehoboth Bay, known
  


11     as John S. and Samuel J. Burton Farm Preserve.
  


12                  I observed the erosion problems
  


13     that affected the property over the last ten
  


14     years.  I'm sure many other property owners also
  


15     have the same concerns.  One of my main concerns
  


16     is the lack of funding to DNREC and the Federal
  


17     government on lands owned by private individuals
  


18     and reserved dynasties.  I feel that this
  


19     funding program should be reviewed and be
  


20     brought up to date regarding the high cost
  


21     incurred by land owners.
  


22                  My second concern is the flow of
  


23     water coming into Rehoboth Bay never being
  


24     restricted in any way.  The dredging on many
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 1     dead-end lagoons and long prongs of the
  


 2     waterways in Rehoboth Bay have been an
  


 3     environmental issue, which I feel should be
  


 4     reviewed.
  


 5                  The lack of dredging, in my
  


 6     opinion, is causing the areas that are available
  


 7     for the influx of the water to be much smaller,
  


 8     and we are still receiving the same or more
  


 9     amounts of water from the ocean and other
  


10     tributaries from the Delaware Bay.  Example,
  


11     very simple.  Take a 12-ounce cup of coffee, put
  


12     2 two ounces of sand and mud, and you're going
  


13     to get 10 ounces of coffee in it.
  


14                  I believe the dredging program
  


15     should have some type of committee review, or we
  


16     should involve an environmental study of the
  


17     possibilities of restricting the flow of water
  


18     into Rehoboth Bay.  It seems to me that if we
  


19     cut or slow 10 to 20 percent of the intake of
  


20     the water coming into the bay in a seven-hour
  


21     period, it would help to control the level of
  


22     the flooding of the water.
  


23                  As a property owner, I've spent
  


24     thousands and thousands of dollars on shoreline
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 1     erosion control.  I wish to say that I am not
  


 2     criticizing DNREC.  In fact, I have a very good
  


 3     working relationship with the agency, in trying
  


 4     to protect the shoreline.  However, it is hard
  


 5     to continue to do environmental work such as
  


 6     erosion control without some assistance from the
  


 7     State or Federal government, as a private
  


 8     reserve owner -- preserve.
  


 9                  Thank you for the opportunity to
  


10     share my concerns regarding Executive Order 36.
  


11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


12     Mr. Burton.
  


13                  MR. BURTON:  And I would like to
  


14     leave a copy with you.
  


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Great.
  


16     Thank you.  Next I have Dave Jacobs.
  


17                  MR. JACOBSON:  Unless we can
  


18     discuss ethanol and the gas, that kind of thing,
  


19     I might as well pass.  Is that open for
  


20     discussion?  We got a Federal -- we have a
  


21     legislator here.
  


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You know,
  


23     ethanol is a Federal issue.  It's not a State
  


24     issue, from a regulatory point of view.  I'm
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 1     happy to talk with you afterwards, if that's
  


 2     okay.
  


 3                  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  Well --
  


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Or if you
  


 5     can -- we're almost wrapping it up, so go ahead.
  


 6                  MR. JACOBS:  I'll just take a
  


 7     minute of your time.  We have a State
  


 8     Representative, they did bring up Congress and
  


 9     the Constitution and all of that.
  


10                  I buy gas here in Millsboro, and
  


11     it's got 10 percent ethanol.  And that's
  


12     regulated because Philadelphia has a pollution
  


13     problem.  We're all paying through the nose
  


14     here.  When I go to another state, like ten
  


15     miles away to Pittsville, Maryland, the gas
  


16     there has less than 10 percent ethanol.  It's
  


17     whatever Maryland dictates.  And I get like 50,
  


18     52 miles a gallon on my motorcycle.  With
  


19     Delaware gas I'm getting about 48.
  


20                  Now that's a motorcycle.  So now
  


21     transcribe that to your SUVs, and how much
  


22     you're putting into your gas tanks, and et
  


23     cetera.  It's a Federal issue, but America and
  


24     the Federal systems got to start with the little







72


  


 1     individual citizen.  So, I'm here.
  


 2                  The EPA has some influence.  It
  


 3     doesn't come down -- maybe it goes up from your
  


 4     end, you speak to Federal EPA people.  And
  


 5     Mr. Representative, there it is.  I may not even
  


 6     be in your district, but I'm sure if you have a
  


 7     constituency that lives in Delaware, they
  


 8     probably would like to get a better performance
  


 9     out of the car.  We're talking about the water
  


10     and boating and fishing.  I know the boats are
  


11     lined up at the gas stations in Maryland,
  


12     because the ethanol screws up the gas, screws up
  


13     the gas tanks in boats.  So, anyone that can
  


14     alleviate and help these problems, that would be
  


15     great.
  


16                  The other thing I noticed, what the
  


17     EPA, or maybe DNREC, when I moved down here in
  


18     '96, this place was full of chicken farms.  A
  


19     lot of people, chicken farms, a lot of people
  


20     working.  And they say it's the economy.
  


21                  They came down with rules.  My
  


22     neighbor had four chicken houses, and it was
  


23     bustling, every six weeks, new chickens coming
  


24     in, more chickens going out.
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 1                  And then suddenly, what happened?
  


 2     He said, well, they've got some new regulations,
  


 3     I've got to put like $200,000 worth of something
  


 4     to fix it up, because perhaps of some runoff or
  


 5     whatever it was.
  


 6                  And they -- chicken farms have all
  


 7     dried up.  You don't have to drive very far from
  


 8     this location here to see the chicken farms that
  


 9     have dried up.  The small farmer has -- who
  


10     couldn't afford a couple hundred thousand
  


11     dollars to fix it up, they've gone into
  


12     retirement, or whatever.
  


13                  Now, I -- I'm going to say it had
  


14     to have been regulations, because I used to eat
  


15     as much in 1969 -- '96, when I came here, and I
  


16     don't think people have stopped eating.  So,
  


17     where are they getting their chickens from?  You
  


18     can go to Maryland and get chickens, or other
  


19     states.  But I know Delaware's chicken output
  


20     must be a lot less.
  


21                  And whatever the EPA, DNREC can do
  


22     to improve that, and maybe drop a lot of
  


23     regulations.  Apparently some of them aren't --
  


24     they aren't coming out the way they were
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 1     described, to be bad for the environment.  I
  


 2     don't know.  But I live next to a chicken farm.
  


 3     My water's fine.  It was fine before, it's fine
  


 4     now.  You know.
  


 5                  Thank you for your time, and I hope
  


 6     I wasn't too far off the track.  Thank you very
  


 7     much.
  


 8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


 9     Mr. Jacobs.  Next I have Stephanie Herron.
  


10                  MS. HERRON:  My name is Stephanie
  


11     Herron.  I'm with the Delaware chapter of the
  


12     Sierra Club, and we have some comments to offer,
  


13     but I will have some more formal comments
  


14     written or at a later hearing.
  


15                  I would first like to say that we
  


16     completely agree and echo everything that
  


17     Mr. Moyer and the Inland Bay Foundation said
  


18     about environmental regulations not being bad
  


19     for jobs.
  


20                  And I also have something to say.
  


21     The Delaware chapter of the Sierra Club has been
  


22     monitoring the DNREC and State public meeting
  


23     web calendars in an effort to notify our members
  


24     of the times and locations of the DNREC
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 1     regulation review hearings under Executive Order
  


 2     36.  We could find no notice on either site of
  


 3     this or the following two public hearings until
  


 4     today, January 7th, 2013.  And we find it
  


 5     extremely troublesome that such an important
  


 6     meeting as this would be held with less than 24
  


 7     hours notice to the residents of Sussex County
  


 8     who are not on the DNREC mailing list, who went
  


 9     out on the e-mail list.
  


10                  In order to remedy this series
  


11     oversight, we request that the public comment
  


12     period be extended from March 1, 2013, as the
  


13     end, to April 1, 2013.  Thank you.
  


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


15     Ms. Herron.  Next I have Henry Glowiak as a
  


16     maybe.  Are you a yes or are you a no,
  


17     Mr. Glowiak, if you're still with us?  Sorry if
  


18     I've pronounced that -- done an injustice to
  


19     that.  No?  Not with us.  Okay.
  


20                  Sam Wilson.  Okay.  He may be in
  


21     the lobby.  So, somebody's going to go see if
  


22     Sam wants to --
  


23                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  How are you
  


24     doing?
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 1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  How are
  


 2     you, sir.
  


 3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  I don't believe
  


 4     I put my name on to speak, but I do have one
  


 5     comment.  I believe that the -- that any
  


 6     regulation that any agency, I don't care who it
  


 7     is, Natural Resources or DelDOT, whoever, that's
  


 8     put regulations upon the public, the general
  


 9     public, that this regulation, you've come up
  


10     with the ideas before it can be finally
  


11     approved, it must go to the General Assembly.
  


12                  They are the ones who make it, and
  


13     they should be the ones responsible for every
  


14     regulation.  And if they're not doing the job
  


15     right, the general public has to know about
  


16     this, and they have the right to vote them out.
  


17     If bureaucrats continue to make regulations, all
  


18     we can do is we can fuss.  You can't really be
  


19     replaced, or neither can anyone else.
  


20                  So, my recommendation is, let's put
  


21     this -- these regulations back in to the people
  


22     that should be responsible.  Those are the
  


23     legislators.  And let them tell you at the final
  


24     that it's improved or not approved.
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 1                  If it's important enough to levy
  


 2     fines and regulations, it's important enough for
  


 3     them to vote on.
  


 4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you
  


 5     Councilman Wilson.  The last thing I have signed
  


 6     up, and we'll go back out and see if anybody has
  


 7     any final thoughts that they want to share, or
  


 8     if folks have been here and decided that they
  


 9     would like to share something with us.
  


10     Mr. Cramer.
  


11                  MR. CRAMER:  I believe I'm signed
  


12     in.
  


13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You are.
  


14                  MR. CRAMER:  Okay.
  


15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I have a
  


16     note that said you wanted to have the last word,
  


17     and it turned out you were last on the list,
  


18     so --
  


19                  MR. CRAMER:  Well, it didn't really
  


20     matter.  I just didn't want to be the first one.
  


21     I wanted to see what the others had to say
  


22     first.  My name is Dan Cramer.  Can you actually
  


23     hear me, or do you need me to get closer to the
  


24     mike?







78


  


 1                  Well, I'll tell you what.  How do
  


 2     you not start a business?  DNREC.  That's how
  


 3     you don't start a business.  A couple years
  


 4     ago -- it had to have been more than three years
  


 5     ago, because my face got messed up, so it had to
  


 6     be more than three years ago when I was in a
  


 7     meeting and I said you know how you solve this
  


 8     problem.  I wanted to get into business for this
  


 9     particular problem, and it would have helped the
  


10     environment.
  


11                  But then I was told, oh, you can't
  


12     do that without a permit from DNREC, because it
  


13     has a diesel engine on it.  So in order to do
  


14     this, in order for me to pollute the air, I had
  


15     to kiss DNREC.  And that's one person, people,
  


16     or whatever, I'm not going to kiss.
  


17                  So therefore, the business is not
  


18     going to start.  And it would have.  The machine
  


19     itself costs about $250,000.  Another building
  


20     would have had to have been put up, and trucks
  


21     bought.  Would have been about a half a million
  


22     dollars.  And in fact, five guys would have had
  


23     jobs.
  


24                  But do you think I'm going to
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 1     invest $500,000 and they're going to tell me
  


 2     when I can start the motor, when I have to shut
  


 3     it off?  And if you don't believe so, go watch
  


 4     the advertising in the fine print, generally on
  


 5     a Sunday in The News Journal.  And you'll see
  


 6     where somebody wants to use a diesel engine, and
  


 7     they'll say, oh, so many pounds of X, so many
  


 8     pounds of Y, and so many pounds of Z is going to
  


 9     be put out.  And this is regulated, and you will
  


10     not be permitted to put out more.
  


11                  And I'll tell you what actually
  


12     happened.  This is a true story.  Delaware
  


13     Electric put a diesel engine to their plant, to
  


14     their headquarters.  Wanting to use it as a
  


15     backup when electric went off and they needed
  


16     more electric.  They were flat-out told, don't
  


17     start that engine.  Now, did they change
  


18     anything since then?  Don't know.  Don't really
  


19     care.
  


20                  The whole thing is a bunch of crap,
  


21     because that little bit of pollution that I
  


22     wanted to put out, I would have offset it by
  


23     reducing the pollution of what I was going to
  


24     remove.  But I'm not going to -- I'd rather take
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 1     that $500,000 and just stick it in a bank, get
  


 2     that 1 percent.  I'd be way ahead of the game.
  


 3                  And now that's going to talk a
  


 4     little bit about septic tanks.  These same
  


 5     septic tanks that they want to now bring in
  


 6     here, 15 years ago they wouldn't even approve
  


 7     them.  Why not?  Because they said they didn't
  


 8     work.
  


 9                  When the fact of the matter was, in
  


10     Ohio they were being used and the water was not
  


11     putting to the ground.  It was actually put
  


12     right along the driveway and that, and the
  


13     longer roads.  And I said how in the world can
  


14     you do that?  The health department approved it.
  


15     That's how good the water was.
  


16                  And by the way, all these Inland
  


17     Bay people here that are so hepped up, the best
  


18     thing you guys could do in the Inland Bays area,
  


19     move out of there.  Because then that pollution
  


20     won't be there, because you're the ones
  


21     polluting it.  Thank you.
  


22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


23     Mr. Cramer.  I don't have any other folks signed
  


24     up to speak.  Is there anyone who would like to
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 1     speak who hasn't?  Is there anyone who would
  


 2     like to speak again?
  


 3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  Me.  I got one
  


 4     comment.  I don't need to come up there, but --
  


 5     Sam Wilson.  I'd like to make one quick comment.
  


 6     Sulfur has been removed from fuel oil, diesel
  


 7     fuel, and a lot of money's been spent, a lot of
  


 8     regulations.  At this point in time, farmers are
  


 9     buying sulfur to put on their farms.  We're just
  


10     actually wasting people's money to do -- or take
  


11     away sulfur out of fuel.  And it's only got
  


12     worse since now we've taken sulfur out of fuel.
  


13     Before, we did get some natural sulfur, things
  


14     like that, that would come back on the soil.
  


15     But now we're short on sulfur.
  


16                  So, it's just a comment.  Let us
  


17     know what -- how some things -- the EPA has
  


18     screwed up a lot of things, and it's cost us a
  


19     lot of money, and it doesn't amount to a hill of
  


20     beans, and that made things worse.  Thank you.
  


21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.
  


22     Mr. Moyer.
  


23                  MR. MOYER:  Again, president of the
  


24     Inland Bays Foundation.  I would like to remind
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 1     the commenters and DNREC that Executive Order 36
  


 2     was very specific on what regulations are going
  


 3     to be reviewed, and those are regulations that
  


 4     are older than three years.  And much of the
  


 5     testimony tonight has been on regulations that
  


 6     have been proposed within the last three years.
  


 7                  So, I would request that the
  


 8     Department stick with the requirements of the
  


 9     Executive Order, and/or get clarification as to
  


10     whether or not it's going to look at regulations
  


11     that have been adopted after that three-year
  


12     limit, and would urge them to stick with the
  


13     intent of Executive Order 36.  Thank you.
  


14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


15     Mr. Moyer.  Mr. Wheatley.
  


16                  MR. WHEATLEY:  My name is Bob
  


17     Wheatley, and I would ask that you would allow
  


18     common sense to prevail, and respect the
  


19     comments of every person here who bothered to
  


20     give up their time to show up, whether it was a
  


21     regulation three years old, one year old, or a
  


22     regulation yet to be promulgated.
  


23                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,
  


24     sir.  Seeing no other hands, I wanted to take a
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 1     moment to thank all of you for coming, and
  


 2     either sharing your thoughts or coming to
  


 3     listen.  I appreciate the respect with which you
  


 4     delivered your comments, the thought that you've
  


 5     provided behind those.
  


 6                  And I would just say this:  I also
  


 7     heard a number of issues that are examples that
  


 8     people brought to the microphone.  There is a
  


 9     larger regulatory context behind most of them,
  


10     but if you're -- I would encourage you, if
  


11     you're having issues, and maybe you've tried and
  


12     this didn't work for you, but you know, working
  


13     with the agency, as Representative Gray
  


14     mentioned earlier, to try and solve issues and
  


15     navigate through some of these regulatory
  


16     hurdles, you know, we do a pretty good job if we
  


17     are given the opportunity.
  


18                  We don't always get it right, and I
  


19     understand that, but I would just encourage you
  


20     all to reach out to the agency and let us know
  


21     what your challenges are.  We might be able to
  


22     help you.  Not to say that there isn't a
  


23     regulatory issue behind that, but you know, we
  


24     spend a lot of time working with constituents
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 1     and the regulated community to try and both be
  


 2     protective and responsible and reasonable.
  


 3                  So with that I will stop, and
  


 4     again, thank you all.  And remember, we have
  


 5     additional hearings.  Right now the public
  


 6     comment period is open until March 1.
  


 7     Ms. Herron, your request will be taken under
  


 8     advisement.
  


 9                  So, thank you all again.
  


10                  (Hearing concluded at 7:55 p.m.)
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          1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, good



          2     evening, and thank you all for coming out



          3     tonight.  My name is David Small, I'm the Deputy



          4     Secretary for the Delaware Department of Natural



          5     Resources and Environmental Control, and we're



          6     here tonight, really, to listen to you all.



          7                  If you'll indulge me for a few



          8     minutes, let me give you a little bit of



          9     background.  If you're here, you obviously know



         10     a little something about the purpose for this



         11     evening.  In June, Governor Markell signed an



         12     Executive Order directing all of the Cabinet



         13     agencies to take a look at their regulations and



         14     see if there was a way to reduce the burden on



         15     individuals in the business community here in



         16     the state of Delaware.



         17                  There's been a lot of interest over



         18     the years in this topic.  There was some



         19     legislative interest in this topic last -- last



         20     year.  And so, as a result, the Governor signed



         21     the Executive Order.  It's available online.



         22     I'm not sure if we have copies here with us, but



         23     we can certainly get you copies if you haven't



         24     been able to take a look.
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          1                  So, beginning in the fall, there



          2     were agencies that went through a very similar



          3     process to this, and they are in the process of



          4     looking at public comments and reviewing their



          5     own regulations.



          6                  And I have to tell you, and you all



          7     probably know it, DNREC certainly is a very



          8     diverse agency, and we touch a lot of different



          9     functions and activities.  And so, we are in the



         10     midst of reviewing these regulations, all of



         11     these regulations ourselves.  And we're trying



         12     to do this with an eye towards maintaining



         13     environmental standards.



         14                  And the reason I say that is a



         15     number of our programs are delegated to us from



         16     Federal agencies; notably, EPA, as you might



         17     expect, in the areas of, particularly, of air,



         18     waste, hazardous waste, and water.  And so, in



         19     order to -- excuse me -- maintain those



         20     programs, we have to maintain regulations that



         21     are adapted at the local level, but adopt



         22     Federal standards.



         23                  And so, one of the things we have



         24     done, and are continuing to do, is look at not
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          1     so much those standards, necessarily, but maybe



          2     how we meet those standards; looking for



          3     flexibility in doing that, and looking at some



          4     processes.



          5                  And I can tell you that, you know,



          6     over the years, we've engaged a number of



          7     techniques to try to be more efficient in our



          8     permitting process and reduce turnaround times



          9     for folks that are waiting on permits.  Some



         10     programs have really pushed this issue and done



         11     very well.  In our air program, for example, and



         12     some of our water programs.  You know, we are



         13     down to about 50 percent turnaround times and



         14     waiting times from where we were a number of



         15     years ago.



         16                  So, but this process really is



         17     important to hear from you all.  And we're here



         18     tonight, we will be in Kent County next Monday



         19     evening at Delaware State University.  And we



         20     can give you the details, Martin Luther King



         21     Center there.  And then on the 22nd of this



         22     month, we will be, at the same time, 6 p.m., and



         23     it's a Tuesday evening, we will be at the Carvel



         24     Building in Wilmington, in the auditorium up on
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          1     the mezzanine level.



          2                  And beyond that, if you -- you



          3     know, this process isn't closed tonight.  And if



          4     you think that you forgot to say something and



          5     you get home, please feel free to send us



          6     comments.  We're accepting written comments



          7     until March 1.  And at that point, then, we will



          8     take everything that we've gotten from our



          9     public hearings, from the written comments that



         10     we've received, and you can -- you can submit



         11     those in writing or you can submit them



         12     electronically online from our website.



         13                  And that, in combination with our



         14     own review, we'll be developing a report, as I



         15     mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the



         16     Governor, with recommended changes on a number



         17     of regulatory fronts.



         18                  And we've been thinking about



         19     those.  We have -- you know, we've been looking



         20     at our Coastal Zone regs, for example.  We see



         21     some unevenness there.  In Sussex County, in the



         22     wetlands and subaqueous lands permit, again, not



         23     so much the standards that we have, but maybe in



         24     creating some efficiencies, and maybe a little
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          1     bit more certainty in those programs.



          2                  So, you know, again, we're



          3     interested in hearing from you on those and any



          4     of a number of other subjects.  Let me just



          5     mention, you know, we have a diverse agency.  We



          6     have our Division of Energy and Climate that



          7     administers regulations on our Green Energy



          8     Fund, for example.  This is a program that if



          9     you are a Delmarva Power customer, for example,



         10     you can apply for it and receive funding for



         11     installation of renewables.



         12                  We have our Division of Air, which



         13     is responsible for monitoring our state's air



         14     quality and regulating any of the number of



         15     sources.  It's been a very aggressive and



         16     effective program, and quite honestly, we think



         17     we need some help from EPA to help us with some



         18     of the states to the west of us, for a level



         19     playing field.  But that certainly is a very



         20     large volume of regulations that touch a lot of



         21     different sources of air emissions.



         22                  Our Division of Waste and Hazardous



         23     Substances regulates solid waste, it regulates



         24     hazardous waste.  Things, if you're in the waste
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          1     hauling business, for example, you need a permit



          2     from us for transportation of that material.  If



          3     you handle hazardous waste or if you store it or



          4     if you dispose of it, for example, you need some



          5     oversight from the Department.



          6                  We also are responsible for



          7     cleaning up legacy contamination sites.



          8     Superfund sites are the worst ones.  Those are



          9     established by EPA, and the State, since 1990,



         10     has had a program to oversee the cleanup of



         11     sites that aren't quite as contaminated, but



         12     still need to be addressed in order to minimize



         13     impacts on public health and the environment.



         14                  We have our Division of Water,



         15     which oversees the discharge of wastewater in



         16     any of a manner of functions.  That could be a



         17     discharge into surface water, such as rivers,



         18     streams, or bays, and also, septic systems.



         19     Some of you may have that on your mind this



         20     evening, I know we've just gone through a



         21     process recently.  As well as spray irrigation,



         22     there are a number of sites that are operated by



         23     facilities that are operated by the County, as



         24     well as municipalities and the private sector,
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          1     private wastewater utilities, that -- that



          2     operate spray irrigation facilities.  Those two



          3     are subject to regulation oversight and



          4     permitting by the agency.



          5                  Wells, if any of you have



          6     individual wells on your property, either for



          7     residential purposes or for business purposes,



          8     we oversee the design, construction, and



          9     installation of those wells, along -- and I



         10     mentioned septic systems earlier.



         11                  The Division of Fish and Wildlife,



         12     I don't know if any of you are anglers or



         13     hunters, or otherwise interested in habitat and



         14     wildlife and fisheries, but there is a body of



         15     regulation, as you might well expect, that comes



         16     with managing those natural resources.  And you



         17     know, we have advisory councils in the agency



         18     that we work very closely with on development of



         19     those regulations that may mean size and creel



         20     limits for Weakfish and any of a number of other



         21     species, but those are regulatory actions that



         22     the agency takes routinely, as well.



         23                  Our Division of Parks has



         24     regulations in place to oversee its park
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          1     activities.  So, you get a sense.  Division of



          2     Watershed Stewardship, for example, stormwater



          3     requirements.  There was legislation passed in



          4     1990 overseeing stormwater, getting a better



          5     handle on the impacts, potentially, to our



          6     ground and surface waters from surface -- from



          7     stormwater.  And that program's been in place,



          8     in Sussex County the program is delegated to the



          9     Sussex Conservation District for stormwater



         10     management and oversight of plans.



         11                  But that division is also



         12     responsible for oversight of construction on our



         13     beachfront.  The Beach Act passed probably back



         14     in the '90s, as well, maybe a little earlier



         15     than that.  It regulates the type and placement



         16     of construction along the beachfront to make



         17     sure that we're preserving our dune system,



         18     which, as we found this past fall with Hurricane



         19     Sandy, is a very, very important natural



         20     resource for us to manage.



         21                  I think that's -- you know, that's



         22     just a quick, quick snapshot of all of our --



         23     you know, of our divisions.  We have a lot of



         24     touch points with all of you.  We're interested
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          1     in hearing from all of you, either -- you know,



          2     in whatever format that is most comfortable for



          3     you.



          4                  I will tell you that this evening



          5     we do have a stenographer here who is providing



          6     a transcript for us, so we'll be able to capture



          7     your comments verbatim.  And so, what I'm going



          8     to do is -- and I should also state, say, we



          9     have a number of staff here this evening, that,



         10     you know, if we need to answer some questions,



         11     we can try and do that.



         12                  But this is really, again, we're



         13     here to listen.  You know, and if we need to



         14     respond we will, but we want to get your



         15     feedback and your comments.



         16                  And so, with that, I will say that



         17     I have a list of folks who have signed in and



         18     indicated that they would like to speak.  And



         19     what I will do is ask you to come down, and



         20     maybe I'll step over to this mike, because most



         21     of the folks are sitting over here.  But we have



         22     folks sitting in the back, and what I'd ask you



         23     to do, if that's okay, is to come down to the



         24     front.  We have some wireless mikes, but they
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          1     don't seem to be working this evening.



          2                  So in fairness to everybody, so



          3     that everyone can hear and that our stenographer



          4     can be sure to accurately record your comments,



          5     I'd ask you to come down and provide some



          6     feedback, if that's okay.



          7                  Let me just take a quick look to



          8     see if there's any other notes that I need to



          9     share with you before I start with our list of



         10     sign-ins.  I think that's enough of me talking.



         11                  So, I'm going to go to the list



         12     that we received as people signed in.  And I



         13     will apologize in advance if I don't get your



         14     name correct.  But it looks to me like the first



         15     name that I have is Carol Zander.  Am I right?



         16     Ms. Zander, if you could come down, please.



         17                  MS. ZANDER:  Good evening.  I was



         18     hoping not to be the first, but I came this



         19     evening because I understood from the radio and



         20     from some things I had read that DNREC is



         21     planning to impose new septic regulations on



         22     anybody who's within 1000 feet of the



         23     waterfront.  Of any waterfront, along any body



         24     of water.  Can you tell me, is that true?  And
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          1     what those new regulations are going to be that



          2     we're going to have to deal with.  I mean is it



          3     as draconian as I've heard?



          4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Is that



          5     your -- is that it?  Can I come over to the



          6     mike?



          7                  MS. ZANDER:  Yeah, can I -- can I



          8     ask questions when you get finished, if



          9     necessary?



         10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.  Let



         11     me -- so, we have gone through a public hearing



         12     process twice now on the proposed changes to our



         13     on-site wastewater regulations.  And so, the



         14     public record is closed on that specific



         15     regulation.  We're happy to hear comments on



         16     those this evening, as well.



         17                  I believe, specifically to your



         18     question, what the regulation proposes is that



         19     if you have to completely replace your existing



         20     system, or if you're building -- putting in a



         21     new system and you are within 1000 feet of the



         22     Nanticoke River, the tidal portions, only the



         23     tidal portions of the Nanticoke River or Broad



         24     Creek, then under those conditions, when these
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          1     regulations would be promulgated -- and they



          2     have not yet been promulgated -- then you could



          3     be required to install what we're calling an



          4     enhanced nutrient removal system, okay?



          5                  MS. ZANDER:  Uh-huh.



          6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Now, I



          7     will also tell you that we have gotten a large



          8     body of public comment on this.  We are



          9     reviewing that.  We've had, you know, the



         10     General Assembly has expressed some opinions



         11     about this, as well.  So, we're taking a look at



         12     that.



         13                  It may be that we make some further



         14     changes to those regulations.  And if we do,



         15     there will be additional opportunity for public



         16     comment, when that happens.



         17                  MS. ZANDER:  So they're not



         18     affecting us right here in this area, as of now?



         19                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, we



         20     have existing regulations in place now for --



         21     that dictate the -- you know, how septic systems



         22     are installed, managed, et cetera.  These would



         23     be an update to those regulations.  But they are



         24     not in effect, what we have proposed and what

                                                                 14







          1     you mentioned about the 1000 feet is not in



          2     effect right now.  It is in effect in the tidal



          3     waters around the Inland Bays.  But again, it's



          4     1000 feet within tidal waters of the Inland Bays



          5     watershed.



          6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Does that cover



          7     what I -- do you want me to --



          8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Yes,



          9     please.



         10                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  What I've heard



         11     is that we would be required, if we live within



         12     1000 feet of a body of water, say the Indian



         13     River, okay, that we would be required to be



         14     having two inspections a year at our cost for



         15     our septic system.  Is that one of the things



         16     that, you know, I'm looking forward to?



         17                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  So, what



         18     the proposed regulation would do, and I'm



         19     looking at Jim Cassidy.  Jim is our manager in



         20     our Georgetown office for the on-site branch.



         21     What would be required, if you put in one of



         22     those enhanced systems, then you would need



         23     inspections twice a year.



         24                  MS. ZANDER:  Oh, okay.
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          1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And part



          2     of the reason for that is that the



          3     manufacturer's warranty, I believe, requires



          4     inspections, at least for the first two years,



          5     twice a year.



          6                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  So there's



          7     nothing that's affecting the existing homeowners



          8     at this particular time?



          9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than



         10     our --



         11                  MS. ZANDER:  Other than what's



         12     already --



         13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than



         14     what's already in place.



         15                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.



         16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Mr. Jim



         17     Baxter.  Mr. Baxter?



         18                  MR. BAXTER:  As you probably know,



         19     we take the sludge, from the last pickup to now,



         20     and what I don't understand is that we have



         21     two -- we have two places on Toccopola Farms



         22     where you've had a -- what I call a mound



         23     system.  It's right on the line with us, as



         24     farming.  But yet, when we have to get the
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          1     permit, or the company does that we do it for,



          2     we have to get a permit from you folks to put



          3     the sludge on, and we have to be 30 foot from



          4     the property line.  I don't hardly understand



          5     why.



          6                  And maybe you can't give me an



          7     answer, either, but to me, it looks a little bit



          8     asinine to be able to put a heap of sludge, no



          9     medication, no nothing, onto -- next to our



         10     property line.  I can show it to you any time



         11     you want to come out there.  And I don't



         12     understand why it is a 30-foot from the property



         13     line, we can only -- we have to -- we can only



         14     start that far away to put the sludge on.  It's



         15     been treated and okayed, but none of those mound



         16     systems have ever been treated, as far as I



         17     know.  Okay?



         18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.



         19     The next name I have is Dave -- Jaeger?  Is that



         20     right?



         21                  MR. JACOBSON:  Jacobs.  I'm sorry.



         22     Do we have another Dave Jacobs?



         23                  MR. JAEGER:  It's Jaeger.



         24                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  What's
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          1     your last name?



          2                  MR. JAEGER:  Jaeger.  J-a-e-g-e-r,



          3     that's correct.  I'll make this short.  My name



          4     is David Jaeger, and I live in Selbyville.



          5     While I support the Governor's desire to



          6     simplify DNREC's regulations, I am concerned



          7     that this might lead to a weakening of controls



          8     on the amount of pollution on our air, land, and



          9     water, particularly around our Inland Bays.



         10     These bays are the jewel of Sussex County, and



         11     indeed, the whole state, but they are repeatedly



         12     threatened by overdevelopment.



         13                  And one of the main protectors of



         14     the Inland Bays watershed is DNREC.  They are



         15     charged with sustaining this prize for future



         16     generations, at the same time allowing for



         17     reasonable development.  That's a tough job, and



         18     I don't envy them this responsibility, but it's



         19     one that we all must support and respect.



         20                  I am particularly concerned about



         21     Sussex County, now that the economy is picking



         22     up again and the building boom is likely to



         23     resume to accommodate the baby boomers looking



         24     to retire to lower slower Delaware.  But the
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          1     very qualities that attract folks are at risk



          2     from overdevelopment and pollution, such as



          3     septic tanks and ill-conceived wastewater



          4     systems.  We need scientific and fact-based



          5     controls that only DNREC can provide to preserve



          6     this God-given gift of nature for future



          7     generations.  Thank you.



          8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



          9     Mr. Jaeger.  Next I have Floyd Morton.



         10                  MR. MORTON:  Thank you for giving



         11     me this time to speak.  You had mentioned there



         12     was actually going to be changes in regulations



         13     for anglers, and that's going to be through, I



         14     believe, the Delaware Bayshore Initiative



         15     program?



         16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, I



         17     think I was talking about regulations maybe in



         18     size and creel limits as examples of the type of



         19     diverse regulatory oversight that we're charged



         20     with.



         21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  And --



         22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I wasn't



         23     here to propose anything specific.



         24                  MR. MORTON:  I understand.  But do
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          1     you have any specific that you're going to be



          2     changing?



          3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I can tell



          4     you this:  There are, it seems to me, always



          5     changes that are pending in the world of



          6     fisheries management.  Mostly because we are



          7     responsible for maintaining compliance with



          8     somewhere around 17 fishery management plans



          9     that are coastwide.



         10                  As you well know, fish move through



         11     waters.  They don't just stay stationary.  So we



         12     have to work with other states to manage those,



         13     and there are a number of agency organizations,



         14     multistate organizations that work



         15     collaboratively most of the times to try to



         16     manage those stocks.



         17                  So there is the chance that over



         18     the course of the coming year, that there will



         19     be some type of regulatory change proposed in



         20     order to maintain compliance with those, but I



         21     can't sit here and cite exactly what those are.



         22                  MR. MORTON:  I mean isn't this a



         23     public comment, where we can get our comments to



         24     how we feel about something?
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          1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.



          2                  MR. MORTON:  That's what I'm



          3     saying, is this is open for something like that,



          4     correct?



          5                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.



          6                  MR. MORTON:  But you don't have any



          7     kind of regulations or anything like that that



          8     we can say, hey, we're for this, or you know,



          9     what -- it's almost like writing a blank check.



         10                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.  So



         11     you know, the more specific that your comments



         12     can be -- and I'll say this to everyone -- about



         13     individual regulations, if there's a particular



         14     species, or -- you know, it can be open, but the



         15     things that will be most helpful to us are



         16     comments that are as specific as you can be.



         17                  That's not to say that we're not



         18     here to listen to whatever you have to say, but



         19     you know, I think those things will be



         20     particularly constructive.  So with that, would



         21     you go ahead, please.



         22                  MR. MORTON:  I saw this morning,



         23     and the Delaware Bayshore Initiative was



         24     actually mentioned during this.  Is there
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          1     something that's actually going on with the



          2     Delaware Bayshore Initiative that pertains to



          3     this meeting tonight?



          4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The



          5     Delaware Bayshore Initiative is not a regulatory



          6     initiative.  It is, really, the notion behind



          7     that, very quickly, is to really bring in some



          8     of, you know, non-regulatory programs working



          9     more collaboratively together to conserve



         10     habitat in the bayshore, protect lands, keep,



         11     you know, working lands working and in private



         12     hands.



         13                  MR. MORTON:  Uh-huh.



         14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And you



         15     know, restore habitat where possible, and create



         16     low impact recreational and economic development



         17     opportunities through -- through tourism.  As



         18     you know, there are, you know, a lot of that



         19     kind of activity going on along the bayshore,



         20     and we would like to enhance those efforts.



         21                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  As of right



         22     now, do you have anything pending that pertains



         23     to the Delaware Bayshore Initiative that you



         24     could speak about tonight?

                                                                 22







          1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Not in a



          2     regulatory context, no.



          3                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.



          4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  This



          5     meeting is about regulations.  The bayshore is



          6     not a regulatory initiative.



          7                  MR. MORTON:  That's all I've got.



          8     Thank you.



          9                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.



         10     I believe it's Sally Ford?



         11                  MS. FORD:  I'm a surveyor, and I --



         12     my interaction with DNREC is basically doing



         13     stormwater management.  And my one comment in



         14     general is that I believed these hearings were



         15     to discuss regulations that were in effect three



         16     years ago.  And yet, there were supposed to be



         17     new regulations in effect as of January 1.



         18                  So, my comment is, why am I



         19     addressing old regulations, when there's



         20     supposed to be new ones?



         21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The focus



         22     of the Executive Order was on regulations that



         23     had not been amended or opened, if you will, for



         24     a three-year period or more.
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          1                  MS. FORD:  Okay.



          2                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And the



          3     idea behind that being that there may be some



          4     regulations that hadn't gotten attention within



          5     the past three years, that needed to be updated.



          6                  So, that's the focus.  But it's not



          7     the exclusive intent of this process to



          8     remain -- you know, to address only those



          9     regulations.  So, you know, we're looking at it



         10     as an opportunity to go beyond that, if need be.



         11     But I think the body of our work and review will



         12     focus on those older regulations.



         13                  MS. FORD:  Can I comment on the new



         14     ones?



         15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Please, go



         16     ahead.



         17                  MS. FORD:  Okay.  My first comment,



         18     though, concerns -- it's relative to the old and



         19     to the new.



         20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.



         21                  MS. FORD:  And that's the notice of



         22     intent permit that people get when they're doing



         23     construction.  And I know it comes down from



         24     EPA, and my feedback has always been, well, EPA
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          1     makes us keep it active until the last bit of



          2     construction is done.  And I have several



          3     projects that it affects greatly, one being a



          4     commercial property where all utilities are in,



          5     all surfaces are paved, site is fully graded,



          6     all buildings are up except for one last



          7     building, a 3000 square foot building.



          8                  I have as-builts and approvals for



          9     everything that's been done.  And yet, I have to



         10     keep the NOI open, and DNREC won't issue me a



         11     final because they say the NOI has to stay open.



         12     Well, if this building doesn't get built for ten



         13     years, there's a fee involved, there's our fee



         14     for keeping us current with the -- with



         15     everything.



         16                  And I believe it should be allowed



         17     to terminate when the site is fully stabilized,



         18     all approvals for utilities, site improvements,



         19     are complete.  And if -- when they decide to



         20     build the last building, you have to get a



         21     general permit just for that 3000 square foot



         22     improvement, that should be acceptable.  Because



         23     the stormwater already took into consideration



         24     that building being there.
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          1                  I have -- another example would be



          2     your subdivision drawings, where you have a



          3     subdivision, and a lot remains vacant for 40



          4     years, because somebody in their 20s bought it



          5     hoping to build on it when they retired.  You're



          6     going to keep the developer liable with that NOI



          7     for 40 years until that last house gets built?



          8     That seems erroneous, or that doesn't seem fair.



          9                  And again, the site and the



         10     stormwater management was -- that building was



         11     taken into consideration, that there would be a



         12     house on that lot eventually.  To keep the NOI



         13     open and the stormwater permit open for that



         14     amount of time -- there should be a way to close



         15     a permit, reopen it if you need to, with the



         16     notion that we're only building what's already



         17     been approved, and it's less than the 5000



         18     square foot standard disturbance, where you can



         19     qualify for the general permit.



         20                  Along the same line, another little



         21     thing that really bothers me, in 2006 DNREC



         22     stated everybody was going to have to pay for



         23     the NOI annually, which is $195.  Not a big bill



         24     for the big developers, but for your littler
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          1     jobs, it can get to be a big bill.



          2                  And in the new regulations, they've



          3     inserted that letter into the technical



          4     documents, which I believe makes it now a



          5     regulation, that there will be that $195 every



          6     year.  But it can't close out.  There's no way



          7     of closing out the NOI until that last lot is



          8     built upon.



          9                  I just took for an example the NOIs



         10     that were still open, and I only went back to



         11     2005.  And I know NOIs go back to 2001.  And



         12     going back to just 2005, with the amount that



         13     are still open, you would be collecting $195,000



         14     a year, just annually, just to keep everybody's



         15     NOIs current.



         16                  So, I take insult to it, that it's



         17     a little bit more of a revenue generator than



         18     really do you need to charge that every year,



         19     when we can't physically close it out because



         20     you won't let us close it out.



         21                  A couple things in the new



         22     regulations -- and I'll probably do more in



         23     writing -- but they're treating wooded lots



         24     different than a cleared lot.  And I feel it's
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          1     unfair for somebody who wants to preserve trees,



          2     and therefore, hasn't cleared their lot, to be



          3     penalized now, when they go for their stormwater



          4     management or they go for their general permit,



          5     to have to go an additional step, versus the



          6     person who cleared their lot five years ago, and



          7     they can just get the general permit without



          8     question.



          9                  The other -- the other item, too,



         10     is the general permit, they were going to allow



         11     based on a percentage of impervious on the lot,



         12     and that discriminates against your smaller



         13     lots, because you'll reach that percentage of



         14     impervious a lot quicker than you will on a



         15     one-acre lot.  Therefore, you're penalizing the



         16     smaller lots, versus the larger lots, as far as



         17     the amount of work that they're going to have to



         18     hire my company to do.



         19                  And I also feel, in general, that



         20     most of what was approved in revisions back in



         21     2005 or 2004, when they were done previously,



         22     are just getting built today.  A lot of my



         23     projects are under those regulations and are



         24     just getting built, so you don't even know how
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          1     they work, and they're changing the regulations.



          2     So, do you have any comment?



          3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I don't.



          4     Thank you.  I appreciate your comments.



          5                  MS. FORD:  Okay.



          6                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Oh, boy.



          7     Don -- hmm.  Tom?



          8                  MR. FORD:  I think I'm after Sally.



          9     Tom Ford.  I have a very specific item.  Number



         10     one, Dave, I'd like to take issue, the whole



         11     point of this meeting is to simplify permitting



         12     and cost and expediate it, and during your



         13     introduction, you basically said DNREC is doing



         14     a great job and has simplified and expediated



         15     permitting.  And I've been in the field for 30



         16     years, and I'm telling you, it's getting more



         17     complicated every day, and it takes longer, and



         18     costs more.



         19                  And but specifically, I -- our



         20     company just got a dock rebuild and extension



         21     permit.  It took over a year to get it.  It took



         22     a lot of back and forth with DNREC.



         23                  I don't have a problem with that



         24     process.  What I do have a problem with is at
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          1     the end of the process, it's assigned personally



          2     to the applicant.  And unfortunately, this



          3     applicant died three weeks after the permit was



          4     approved and recorded, signed by Collin O'Mara,



          5     the whole deal.



          6                  So, the estate now has to go back



          7     to DNREC.  And I'm not saying DNREC's going to



          8     withhold that approval, but I find it -- why are



          9     we allowing a 20-year lease out on our



         10     subaqueous lands for a pier personally?  It



         11     should go with the land.



         12                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's



         13     right.



         14                  MR. FORD:  And DelDOT's doing that



         15     to entrance permits, and DNREC is doing that.



         16     And I find the banking community and development



         17     community can't live with those unknowns.  At



         18     any point, say a movie theater sells the movie



         19     theater, that DelDOT permit and any DNREC septic



         20     permit, or whatever, should flow with the land.



         21     Not be assigned personally.  Because it marks



         22     the land -- and the banking community is not



         23     aware of this, and the real estate community's



         24     not aware of this.  And it's a big major issue.
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          1                  And it needs to be fixed and



          2     addressed, and you need to determine why you



          3     need to do that.  Because you have the power to



          4     revoke that permit, from anybody who uses it.



          5     No matter who's the assigneds, who's the heirs,



          6     or who the rental unit of users, if they violate



          7     any issue of that permit, DNREC has that in



          8     there, too.



          9                  So why does that have to be



         10     assigned personally?  You know, that property's



         11     going to change hands in 20 years.  What



         12     property doesn't?  Very few.  The bulk of the



         13     properties exchange.



         14                  That needs to be fixed, and it



         15     needs to be fixed throughout the State.  And so,



         16     I just bring that up, because it's a very



         17     specific, and it's a very annoying bureaucratic



         18     process that doesn't help anybody.  It just gets



         19     in the way.  And why that estate has to come



         20     back to you and ask for you to do that permit is



         21     ridiculous.



         22                  I think what my -- Sally Ford



         23     brought out about the NOI is the problem you



         24     have is in a development, not all lots are built
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          1     on.  You're going to build the roads, you're



          2     going to put the stormwater in, you're going to



          3     get them approved, you're going to do the



          4     as-builts.



          5                  You spend hundreds of thousands of



          6     dollars on some larger developments, and the



          7     developer eventually is going to sell out to the



          8     HOA.  And the HOA isn't going to take over when



          9     there's 100 percent build-out.  So the HOAs,



         10     ordinary citizens who don't understand this



         11     process, are going to get stuck paying that NOI.



         12     They're not going to understand what they have



         13     to do.  And it's -- it's ridiculous to go



         14     beyond.



         15                  The land has all been developed,



         16     and we're only going to go for one house at a



         17     time.  I mean get a general permit, get a



         18     sediment erosion control, stormwater has already



         19     been fixed, and let people go.  Don't hold on to



         20     them for 20 years.  Because 20 years from now



         21     you might have a bunch of comments from those



         22     HOAs.



         23                  The general person in this



         24     community doesn't understand that, and how these
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          1     regulations affect them.  And these are big,



          2     major issues that our representatives are going



          3     to have to deal with, and you're going to have



          4     to deal with some day.  And I don't see the



          5     benefit.  Is it all about health, safety,



          6     welfare of the general public?  How does holding



          7     onto the NOI help them?  How does making a



          8     permit personal help the health, safety, welfare



          9     of the public?



         10                  These are specific issues, and I



         11     know there's many others, but that's all I have



         12     to say to you tonight.



         13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         14     Mr. Ford.  Next I have Ron Gray.



         15                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Good evening.



         16     I'm the new -- tomorrow I will be sworn in as a



         17     Representative here for the State of Delaware.



         18     I'm very, very proud to be doing that, and I'll



         19     be representing all of the citizens in my



         20     district, and much of that is in the natural



         21     resource area.



         22                  We have the Inland Bays, the little



         23     Assawoman Bay, my area, and up to Indian River



         24     Bay as well, to the inlet.  I think because the
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          1     bridge washed out, I only -- I don't have to



          2     worry about that on the north side, that's



          3     another representative's side than me, so I want



          4     to make sure that doesn't happen.



          5                  Running for office, regulation has



          6     always been a bad word for me, really.  And it's



          7     what I ran on, the platform.  The point I really



          8     want to make is, I just feel like DNREC needs to



          9     be more responsive in looking at it from the



         10     perspective of the end user.  Not only what Tom



         11     and Sally were talking about from the technical



         12     person, but regulations in general.



         13                  I would like to see them being more



         14     of the citizens and the technical folks that are



         15     putting together the plans, to let them try to



         16     work with you closely, instead of requiring them



         17     to do things, let them partner with you to come



         18     up with even better ways to improve the



         19     environment and make it a better place.



         20                  And I feel that the regulations



         21     typically become onerous, and I think that they



         22     have been put in place because a few folks in



         23     our community took advantage of it, or polluted,



         24     and we go -- the pendulum has swung, so that the
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          1     regulations have become very onerous in many



          2     cases.



          3                  And I would like to see more of a



          4     partnership, and not "regulation" should be a



          5     bad word.  We should all share with that, that



          6     we're trying to protect the environment for the



          7     jewel we have in our Inland Bays, and to



          8     maintain that.



          9                  So, you're in a very difficult



         10     position.  On the new -- my first reaction when



         11     I heard that we were looking at regs that were



         12     three years old was, well, what about the ones



         13     that have gone into place in the last three



         14     years?  But you have to start somewhere.  So, I



         15     salute Governor Markell for taking an effort to



         16     look at the regulations, even though he's



         17     starting it at the three-year point.



         18                  But going forward, I feel like we



         19     should -- we should try to work together, and



         20     let -- and build a volunteer or support base



         21     that all our natural resources, we want to



         22     maintain those, and make them a better place,



         23     and have volunteer support, and the community in



         24     general want to work with DNREC, and not have it
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          1     as being told to do things, as much.



          2                  So, that, in a nutshell, is really



          3     what I wanted to say.  So, I totally respect



          4     you, Dave.  I think you're in a tough position,



          5     because most of the times, people are looking at



          6     you as the bad guy, or DNREC as the bad guy.



          7     And I think that needs to change.  Thank you for



          8     letting me speak for a moment, and I look



          9     forward to working with you over the next couple



         10     years.



         11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you



         12     for your comments, Representative.



         13                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Still



         14     Representative Elect.



         15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Close



         16     enough for me.  Next I have Bob and Renee



         17     Coleman.  Is that right?



         18                  MR. COLEMAN:  I'm Bob Coleman.



         19     I'll be speaking for both of us, I guess.  I've



         20     been a property owner for close to 30 years now,



         21     in various parts of Sussex County.  And I guess



         22     I have to say that in general, I believe that



         23     the people in this state and county are very



         24     concerned about water and air quality, and
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          1     they're very anxious to have those sort of



          2     things improved.



          3                  And 20, 25 years ago, I saw a lot



          4     of very significant improvements that were



          5     beneficial.  They made good sense.  But I do



          6     have to also say, over the last decade or so, it



          7     seems as though the regulations we're seeing



          8     come through are almost regulations for the sake



          9     of making a regulation, and they're not really



         10     making any significant improvement in the



         11     environment.  All they're doing is exerting more



         12     and more control over infinitesimal limits, in



         13     some cases, and a desire to control every



         14     specific detail, down to the most minute thing.



         15                  If the Governor's really serious



         16     about making these things work more smoothly and



         17     having less negative impact, I think you need to



         18     take a look at that, not only on existing



         19     regulations, but also on these new ones that are



         20     being discussed.



         21                  Now, as far as the new septic



         22     regulations, I do have some comments on that,



         23     also.  I understand that was a separate issue,



         24     but it really ties into this, I think, as far as
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          1     the impact of regulations on the area.



          2                  These new regulations, because of



          3     their tight controls, especially on nitrogens, I



          4     think, are going to impose a severe financial



          5     hardship to anyone holding a present property



          6     that may need repairs, or new property about to



          7     be built.  And in a time when the state and



          8     county are in such desperate need of things to



          9     help growth and help people survive, it just



         10     seems totally wrong to be clamping down on



         11     something, unless there's a true benefit to be



         12     had.



         13                  Now, aside from the need for



         14     putting in new systems, perhaps if you have to



         15     replace them, there's, as someone else mentioned



         16     earlier, this need for inspection costs, if you



         17     happen to be unfortunate enough to need one of



         18     these systems.  And not just the inspection



         19     costs, but along with it goes a mandate that



         20     regardless of individual property rights, an



         21     inspector will have free access to your property



         22     any time he wants, and you cannot deny access.



         23     Now to me, that is a severe overreach of the



         24     government.
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          1                  And someone else also pointed out,



          2     the personal attachment of these permits.  To



          3     me, that just makes absolutely no sense at all.



          4     You're regulating runoff water from a piece of



          5     land.  Why does it get tied to the individual?



          6     That is nothing but a burdensome aspect to



          7     anybody, whether they're selling, passing it on



          8     to heirs, or whatever.  It's a real burden.



          9                  And I also, as a professional



         10     engineer, I have to raise a lot of questions



         11     about some of these new regulations in terms of



         12     their specific limits and how they're to be



         13     implemented.  For example, many of these water



         14     control limits that are going on right now are a



         15     result, I understand, of follow-on from the EPA.



         16     But once in a while the State needs to stand up



         17     and get a backbone and say, hey, EPA, this



         18     doesn't make any sense.



         19                  We're now looking at nitrogen level



         20     limits for runoff water that are half the



         21     allowable limits of drinking water.  Does that



         22     make any sense to anybody?  I mean we're trying



         23     to put water runoff into areas that's more pure



         24     than the drinking water that a lot of people
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          1     drink.



          2                  You know, I don't know if this



          3     falls under that area that the Governor was



          4     talking about in reviewing regulations, as far



          5     as burdens on business, but somebody needs to



          6     step back and take a look and say, is there any



          7     practical sense to some of these regulations.



          8                  We're asking for huge expenses of



          9     money here for infinitesimal amounts of



         10     difference, in the nitrogen content, just to use



         11     one example.  And it's not even clear right now



         12     whether those limits are achievable.



         13                  So, with that, enough said.  I hope



         14     somebody puts some common sense into this.



         15     Thank you.



         16                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         17     Mr. Coleman.  Let me just respond to one point



         18     that you raised on the language that's in the



         19     septic regulations, and that is having to do



         20     with property access.  We simply replicated



         21     language that's preexisting in State law.  And



         22     our interpretation of that, for as long as I've



         23     been around, which is considerable, is that we



         24     do not come onto a property for a septic
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          1     inspection without first contacting the owner



          2     and seeking permission.



          3                  If, in the event we believe there



          4     is a public health threat that demands our



          5     immediate action, we can move more swiftly.  But



          6     I would hope that people recognize that we've



          7     exercised that authority with a great deal of



          8     respect over the years, and we plan to continue



          9     to do that.  But thank you for your comments.



         10                  Next I have Bill Moyer.



         11                  MR. MOYER:  Good evening.  My name



         12     is Bill Moyer.  I am president of the Inland



         13     Bays Foundation.  And let me say, before I start



         14     my formal remarks, that the Inland Bays



         15     Foundation has no objection to the



         16     simplification, or making regulations more user



         17     friendly.  We think that there are ways that



         18     that can be done without removing the protection



         19     of the environment that they were intended for.



         20                  That said, let me read in my formal



         21     comments.  As I said, I am president of the



         22     Inland Bays Foundation, which is dedicated to



         23     improving the environmental condition of our



         24     polluted Inland Bays and their surrounding
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          1     watershed.



          2                  Decades of effort by DNREC to



          3     restore the bays to their once swimmable and



          4     fishable state have met with some success, but



          5     real progress has been slowed by resistance from



          6     local organizations and improper land use



          7     decisions made by Sussex County.



          8                  In the mid 1990s, I was a member of



          9     the then-Governor's Task Force on Inland Bays,



         10     and I've served as an expert witness before the



         11     Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission and



         12     Sussex County Council for Development, that was



         13     not in compliance with Sussex County's land use



         14     plan.



         15                  I was born and raised in Sussex



         16     County.  Although the Inland Bays Foundation



         17     agrees with the intent of Executive Order 36, we



         18     are concerned with some of the language that it



         19     contains.  Specifically, the careful read of the



         20     Order would lead one to believe that



         21     environmental regulations are a deterrent to a



         22     viable economy and to economic growth.  This is



         23     not true.



         24                  Study after study has shown that
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          1     protecting our environment creates jobs, and in



          2     the case of Sussex County, ensures that people



          3     will continue to live, vacation, and recreate



          4     here.



          5                  I have four documents that I would



          6     like to introduce into the record of this



          7     hearing.  The first is a report by the



          8     Chesapeake Bay Foundation, titled "Debunking The



          9     'Job Killer' Myth:  How Pollution Limits



         10     Encourage Jobs in the Chesapeake Bay Region."The



         11     report shows that there had been a 43 percent



         12     increase in the number of environmental industry



         13     jobs in Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Virginia



         14     over the last three decades.



         15                  In a ground-breaking article in The



         16     Scientific American more than 20 years ago, a



         17     noted Harvard University Business School



         18     economist concluded that, quote, "Strict



         19     environmental regulations do not inevitably



         20     hinder competitive advantages against viable.



         21     Indeed, they all enhance it."



         22                   The report concludes, quote,



         23     "Clean water also will mean more fish, crabs,



         24     and oysters, which translate to more work and
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          1     thus, fishermen, processors, packers,



          2     restaurateurs and people in the tourism-related



          3     industries.  If history is any guide,



          4     environmental regulations will once again



          5     nourish God's creation."



          6                  My second document is a report



          7     published on November 8, 2012, by the Public



          8     News Service.  It also concludes, "Here in this



          9     report, document after document, research after



         10     research finding, show that especially in times



         11     when the economy is slowing down, environmental



         12     protection stimulates that economy and creates



         13     jobs."



         14                  There are those groups in Sussex



         15     County that would have us believe that positive



         16     growth means growth without unnecessary



         17     government interference, and without unnecessary



         18     environmental regulations.  If they had their



         19     way, development would occur anywhere, with



         20     little oversight.  As I have stated, if this



         21     occurs in Sussex County, this philosophy will



         22     lead to uncontrolled, unsupportable growth, and



         23     a deterioration of the quality of life in Sussex



         24     County.
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          1                  This has happened and continues to



          2     happen around the country, with the ultimate



          3     decline in property values and economic



          4     hardships.  It's time that we start learning



          5     from our past mistakes.



          6                  Whereas, quote, "Number 7 of



          7     Executive Order 36 indicates a misunderstanding



          8     of the economics of environmental protection, in



          9     that it states it is the intent of this Order



         10     to," quote, "reduce impediments to economic



         11     growth," close quote, "caused by regulations



         12     that may be reduced or streamlined."



         13                  The Executive Order calls for,



         14     quote, "meaningful public input into the



         15     regulatory reform process."  I would encourage



         16     DNREC to give little consideration to any



         17     comments received at these public hearings that



         18     do not contain specific analyses of the adverse



         19     economic impact of the regulation that anyone or



         20     any group is requesting to be changed or



         21     limited.



         22                  It would be irresponsible for DNREC



         23     to make any changes without sufficient data on



         24     which to base its decision.  Simply stating that
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          1     the regulation is bad or is not needed is



          2     inadequate.



          3                  For example, I'm introducing a



          4     document showing suggested changes by a group



          5     advocating positive growth in Sussex County.  It



          6     requests the elimination of the nitrogen removal



          7     standard for small septic systems, removal of



          8     the 30-day property transfer requirement from



          9     all septic permits, and the permit transfer



         10     requirement for dock permits.  There is



         11     absolutely no supporting documentation on how



         12     these changes are adversely affecting the



         13     economy or are hindering growth.



         14                  Also, why would such a request be



         15     made when water quality data clearly show that



         16     the Inland Bays are overloaded with nitrogen,



         17     leading to algae blooms and subsequent fish



         18     kills.  The nitrogen discharged into the



         19     groundwater eventually finds its ways into the



         20     bays, as studies by the Delaware Geological



         21     Survey have shown.



         22                  These pro-growth organizations have



         23     stated that the Inland Bays are, quote,



         24     "cleaning themselves up," close quote, and that

                                                                 46







          1     growth with fewer restrictions will lead to a



          2     better quality of life for Sussex County



          3     residents and visitors.



          4                  Yet no facts or data has ever been



          5     presented by these groups to substantiate the



          6     supposed statement of fact.  These statements



          7     are made for self-serving interests of those



          8     that benefit financially from unrestricted and



          9     irresponsible growth.



         10                  I am sure that you will hear



         11     similar claims tonight and at the other



         12     scheduled hearings in Kent and New Castle



         13     County.  Again, I implore DNREC to consider only



         14     those changes that can show a conclusive benefit



         15     to the environment and to the economy of each



         16     county and the state of Delaware.  This is



         17     clearly the intent of Executive Order 36.



         18                  Finally, I would ask that DNREC



         19     reinstate the collection of subaqueous lands



         20     fees for structures constructed on public



         21     subaqueous lands that are generating revenue.



         22     This was generated by House Bill 360 of the



         23     General Assembly and adopted by DNREC on June



         24     30, 1991.  Failure to collect these fees is
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          1     allowing private parties to build structures on



          2     State land, charge for the use of the



          3     structures, and pay no fee to the State for the



          4     use of State land.



          5                  This would be similar to allowing



          6     someone to build a restaurant or concession in a



          7     State park and not charge a fee.  Failure to



          8     collect these fees for many years has resulted



          9     in the loss of millions of dollars in revenue



         10     that could be used to offset the cost for



         11     environmental protection in Delaware.



         12                  I am attaching a copy of this



         13     document to my testimony.  Thank you for the



         14     opportunity to comment.



         15                  THE DEPUTY SECRETARY:  Thank you,



         16     Mr. Moyer.  Next I have Scott Evans.



         17                  MR. EVANS:  Tonight what I'm coming



         18     here for is kind of like a third go around.  I'm



         19     here for the soil evaluation for private



         20     individual lots and developments.  There is a



         21     five-year on there; after five years you have to



         22     go back and get your lots reevaluated for your



         23     soil samples.



         24                  I'm going through that now.  We
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          1     already had it done, which I bought a



          2     development, and in the meantime, while I bought



          3     it, probably after a year, probably when I had



          4     four years left, that at the end of that time,



          5     right now, we're having to go back and get all



          6     the lots done over again.  So we're paying



          7     double to get lots done, because of the five



          8     years.



          9                  In talking with -- as a matter of



         10     fact, Joe Duke, and some of the others, you



         11     know, he was the one that said he doesn't agree



         12     with it.  Soil doesn't change if anything



         13     doesn't move.  If you have 50 years, that's one



         14     thing.  But five years.



         15                  And so, this is about my third go



         16     around.  The first time, Representative Hocker



         17     spoke to you a while back and said something to



         18     you about seeing if something could be done.  In



         19     the meantime, I spoke again in Dover during one



         20     of these hearings that you had and I haven't



         21     heard anything.



         22                  Now, if it's been changed, I



         23     haven't heard.  So that's why I'm here tonight,



         24     to voice my opinion again.  Because this is not
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          1     right.  I mean five years.  Look, I'm 63 years



          2     old.  Five years don't take long to roll around.



          3     It's getting less all the time as I get older.



          4                  So you know, it needs to be --



          5     something needs to be done, because now we're



          6     paying -- I just got one today for you guys



          7     right in the mail, that we just had done on



          8     another lot.  So, I mean we're paying double,



          9     and that's not right.  I mean nothing changes.



         10     It doesn't go.



         11                  I think it needs to be extended out



         12     a little bit longer than -- than five years,



         13     because it used to be there wasn't no time.  Now



         14     you got five years.  Five years isn't very long.



         15     I mean it rolls around in a hurry.



         16                  I know there's probably -- there's



         17     a time there -- I guess you can go back, I may



         18     be wrong -- I think before the five years is up,



         19     and you can get reevaluated, but I didn't -- I



         20     wasn't aware of that fact.



         21                  I'm a builder, contractor/owner.



         22     But places I've done, I've never ran into this



         23     before.  I had 38 lots.  Now we're down, because



         24     the economy is down.  I mean I got 30 some lots.
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          1     You take that times 4 or $500, after you've



          2     already spent it, you're doubling your money.



          3                  So I think something needs to be



          4     reconsidered in the time limit, to extend it, or



          5     at least take a little consideration.  Because



          6     now we're just paying double for what we paid,



          7     because now we're starting to sell a few lots



          8     and we're having to pay this out.



          9                  So, I just wish you could take into



         10     consideration of extending that, making it



         11     longer, or whether something -- what can be



         12     done, or does legislation have to be placed in,



         13     if it has to change.



         14                  I met with Senator Hocker, but you



         15     know, can they do something?  Representative



         16     Gray is here.  I don't know what can be done,



         17     whether it be legislative, or extend it, or



         18     whatever.  But it's not fair, especially someone



         19     to -- you know, now-a-days young folks are



         20     trying to get something, some reason somebody



         21     gives them something, it's been done, all of a



         22     sudden now they got to pull another $400 out, 5,



         23     whatever it is, to get something done.



         24                  So I don't know if there anything
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          1     has been done, or has it been talked about or



          2     what.



          3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The issue



          4     that you raise is, I think you previously



          5     mentioned that you had made some comments on the



          6     record for the proposal for the on-site



          7     wastewater regulations.  Is that what I



          8     understood you to say?



          9                  MR. EVANS:  Correct.  In other



         10     words, we've got to go back, and you have to



         11     start right from the beginning again.



         12                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.



         13                  MR. EVANS:  Because it's already



         14     been done -- I mean it's already done.  The soil



         15     samples is done.  It's all -- you know, it's



         16     still there.  So now we got to do the same exact



         17     thing they done five years ago.



         18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.



         19     So, nothing has changed as of yet.  Those



         20     regulations are still under review, we're



         21     reviewing public comment, including your comment



         22     about the extension of that.  So, I can't



         23     pre-judge the outcome of that, but we have



         24     received those comments, and they're under
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          1     consideration at this point.



          2                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.



          3                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  But I will



          4     say two points, I guess.  One is I don't believe



          5     that legislation is required, necessarily.  I



          6     think this is a regulatory issue.  And I would



          7     also say I think it is true, and you probably



          8     know more than I, that if you at any point



          9     during that five-year period were to record



         10     those lots, then that -- you know, you've taken



         11     care of it at that point.  You don't need to go



         12     back and get another soil test.  I believe



         13     that's correct.  But you may have to --



         14                  MR. EVANS:  You are correct about



         15     that.  But here's my problem.  The problem is



         16     that that house, or whatever, once you get that



         17     recorded, you have to take and put down there



         18     exactly what the house is going to be, exactly



         19     where the sewer system is going to be placed.



         20                  Now, should you get the home and



         21     somebody wants their lot -- the house on the



         22     other side of the lot -- which they can do



         23     that -- you've already told them where they're



         24     going to put the house.  They have no say-so
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          1     where it may be.  They may want to place it



          2     somewheres else other than where you want, and



          3     it's still eligible to be placed on that piece



          4     of property.



          5                  But if you go back and think, a



          6     little common sense says you still have the same



          7     situation.  You haven't built on it, you haven't



          8     done anything.  You still have the same



          9     situation, whether it's been five years or ten



         10     years, and you don't go back.  You still have



         11     the same situation.  That soil hasn't changed.



         12     Nothing has changed.  The only thing is this



         13     play on words to do something to have it



         14     recorded.  Because it says this is where it's



         15     going.



         16                  So, you know, it's -- it hasn't



         17     changed.  Nothing has changed, I mean as far as



         18     that goes.  It's just all you done is put it on



         19     a piece of paper to make it look good.  So --



         20                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.



         21                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.



         22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.



         23     Next I have Larry Mayo.



         24                  MR. MAYO:  Thank you for having
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          1     this meeting, and I would like to commend the



          2     Governor for the one thing that I think he's



          3     done right, which is looking to simplify some



          4     regulations.



          5                  Let me talk to you a little bit



          6     about my experience with regulations.  And not



          7     all of them are DNREC's, but some of them are.



          8     I inherited three lots with two mobile homes on



          9     them.  Those mobile homes were put on in the



         10     '60s and '70s.  Okay?  That is my net worth.  I



         11     make approximately $30,000 a year, and that's



         12     pretty much what it takes for me to live.  So I



         13     decided since this was my net worth, and this



         14     was going to be my retirement plan, that I would



         15     take those two mobile homes, and since I'm a



         16     contractor, build houses and sell the houses,



         17     so -- to get myself a retirement fund.



         18                  Well, I inherited them in 2006.  At



         19     that time, that made my net worth about



         20     $300,000.  The lots.  Thanks to banking



         21     regulations, the only thing I could borrow money



         22     to do was build a house.  Thanks to DNREC



         23     regulations, I couldn't build a house unless I



         24     put new septic systems in both lots.
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          1                  Well, the amount of money I could



          2     borrow on my limited income would not allow for



          3     that.  So I converted one of them into a class C



          4     in order to sell it for enough to be able to fix



          5     up the other one.



          6                  Well, thanks to the Government



          7     intrusion in the housing market, that HAS now



          8     been on the market for three years, and is now



          9     worth what I owe.  So, even if it sells, I'll



         10     just be one lot short of what I started.  This



         11     is how regulations hurt regular people.



         12                  Now, as far as EPA regulations,



         13     I've been studying this document for the last



         14     three years.  I've taken two college courses on



         15     it.  There is no place in this document, which



         16     is the Constitution of the United States, that



         17     gives the Federal government the authority to



         18     regulate my land or your land.



         19                  So, the EPA does not have to be



         20     listened to by the State.  Okay?  Get them to



         21     show you where in the Constitution they have the



         22     authority to tell you what water can run off



         23     your land.  It's not in there.  Believe me.



         24     I'll read it over and over and over again.
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          1                  To our State legislators that are



          2     out here, I'd like to see you guys grow a large



          3     set of cajones and start taking advantage of the



          4     Tenth Amendment to the Constitution.  Because



          5     you guys should have more power over me than



          6     President Obama and the Congress and the Senate.



          7     And certainly more than the United Nations and



          8     their agenda 21.



          9                  I thank you for your public



         10     service.  I hope you take this to heart.  Most



         11     of the regulations implemented over the last ten



         12     years have done a lot to hurt the small guy.



         13     You can't burn leaves, the trash company won't



         14     take them.  I don't know what you're supposed to



         15     do with them.  I just let them lay on my land



         16     and rot.



         17                  Thank you.



         18                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         19     Mr. Mayo.  Next I have Rich Collins.



         20                  MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, Dave.  I



         21     thank the Department for being here tonight, and



         22     I'm sure you understand no comments are



         23     personal, certainly not from me.  I'm trying to



         24     get to the heart of this Executive Order 36, the

                                                                 57







          1     whole point of it.



          2                  Back in 2008, we had something



          3     happen in the economy.  I think most of us know



          4     about it.  It wasn't good.  I think DNREC knows



          5     about it, because I know your budget has shrunk,



          6     and I believe you lost some employees due to



          7     some of that, correct?



          8                  All right.  So, people in -- out in



          9     constituent land are in the same position.  My



         10     understanding is that underemployment, if you



         11     have unemployment and underemployment, we're



         12     somewhere -- these are different numbers, but



         13     maybe 18, 19 percent.  Very, very high rate of



         14     unemployment for young people, and some forecast



         15     that it could be getting much worse.



         16                  I have an economic report here,



         17     it's actually a subscription I pay for, talks



         18     about the demographic hurricane coming towards



         19     us, with folks aging, and the incredible burden



         20     we're going to face paying for Social Security



         21     and Medicare.



         22                  In short, there is a Federal



         23     government sponsored study that I've found, and



         24     you can find any number of them, that basically
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          1     indicates we're probably looking at, if we don't



          2     do exactly the right things, a declining



          3     standard of living.  For a long time now.



          4                  And so, I'm hoping that the whole



          5     concept of Executive Order 36 is to realize that



          6     Delaware has to compete with other states and



          7     other countries.  Otherwise, we're going to have



          8     a decline.  And as I think has been demonstrated



          9     here on more than one occasion tonight, there



         10     are certain things that are costing people more



         11     money, in my opinion, than probably needs to be



         12     spent.



         13                  I wanted to address the EPA real



         14     quickly, before I forget.  I know that you are



         15     under tremendous pressure from the EPA.  But I



         16     go to about as many DNREC meetings as anybody



         17     who's not a professional, you know, doing



         18     business with you on a daily basis.  I don't



         19     really hear much transparency in terms of what



         20     you really do have to deal with.



         21                  Now, I know Attorney General



         22     Cuccinelli in Virginia, the EPA told Virginia



         23     that they had to pay -- I think it was billions



         24     of dollars, to prevent stormwater runoff.  He
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          1     sued.  He, through the Virginia Department of



          2     Transportation and Fairfax County, I believe.



          3     And the Supreme Court of the United States just



          4     ruled that they were right, and that EPA had no



          5     authority to regulate water flow through the



          6     Clean Water Act, water runoff.



          7                  And so, I believe that's going to



          8     go to the heart of Delaware's pending stormwater



          9     regulations.  I -- I sincerely hope -- I'm



         10     frustrated in that when I go to a meeting that's



         11     a joint meeting with EPA and DNREC, and Delaware



         12     citizens, that I feel some of your employees



         13     feel like they're more beholden to the EPA than



         14     they are to their citizens that pay their



         15     salaries.  Now I hope I'm wrong on that, but



         16     that's the impression I get sometimes.  And I



         17     just really -- I hope they're on our side first.



         18                  Also, let me make one comment about



         19     the thing about being on property without



         20     warrants.  I'm the one that publicized that, as



         21     much as anyone.  I did do my best, every time I



         22     said it, I think, to make it clear that it is



         23     State law.  What I see is different this time is



         24     that in this new septic regulation, it's obvious
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          1     the Department is very anxious to force people



          2     to have a type of system that performs so poorly



          3     that it has to be inspected twice a year.



          4                  And I think it's obvious, based on



          5     that and other things, that they expect a lot of



          6     breakdowns.  And I believe it's obvious that



          7     they're expecting to have to take action more



          8     than in the past.



          9                  And I would also say that I get



         10     great discomfort reading those new septic



         11     regulations.  And in fact, I put together a



         12     little paragraph describing what someone selling



         13     our home would have to explain to their buyer,



         14     you know, in the form of disclosure.  It almost



         15     looks like some aspects of those regulations are



         16     designed to prevent -- or discourage freedom



         17     using their rural properties.



         18                  And so, it's not so much the words



         19     which, as you point out, are identical to what's



         20     in State law.  It's why are they being, for the



         21     first time, put into regulation, in conjunction



         22     with the whole big picture look of how these



         23     regulations look?



         24                  Now, I think probably more
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          1     important than the particulars of a lot of



          2     regulations is the process.  You know,



          3     businesses need three things.  They need to know



          4     what the rules are, they need to know roughly



          5     how long it's going to take to get through the



          6     process, and they have to know that if they



          7     actually follow the rules, that at the end of



          8     the process they probably will get the prize.



          9                  We've had some testimony here from



         10     folks tonight making it clear that they don't



         11     feel that the process is clear and defined.



         12     Furthermore, there is no doubt in my mind that



         13     DNREC is making some fundamental mistakes in



         14     application of State law.



         15                  The main one, let's talk about



         16     these 30-day requirements to transfer a permit.



         17     I see two reasons why that's not legal.  Number



         18     one, there is a -- there has been a very deep



         19     precedent set by the Delaware Supreme Court that



         20     DNREC regulations cannot override State law.



         21     And a lawsuit that was settled recently made



         22     very clear that that's the case.  And there is



         23     an entire title of State law that has to do with



         24     property transfers, I think it's Title 25, but
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          1     it's right there, whatever it is.



          2                  Well, there isn't one word of DNREC



          3     having any sort of veto power over that process



          4     whatsoever in State law.  Nor, when you read



          5     DNREC's operating authority, is there any hint



          6     that they would have control in any way of a



          7     real estate settlement process.  So on that



          8     basis, I'm pretty confident it's not a legal



          9     thing to do.



         10                  The other reason, though, however,



         11     is more fundamental, even.  Because regulations



         12     are created through something called the



         13     Administrative Procedures Act.  It's a State



         14     law, Title 29, Chapter 101.  First of all, I



         15     want to read the definition of a regulation.



         16     Regulation.  Means "Any statement of law,



         17     procedure, policy, right, requirement, or



         18     prohibition formulated and promulgated by an



         19     agency as a rule or standard or as a guide for



         20     the decision of the cases there -- thereafter by



         21     it or by any other agency, authority, or court."



         22                  Now, the point is, anything you do,



         23     anything that affects a citizen, forces them to



         24     do something in a legal manner, is defined as a
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          1     regulation.  So, how do regulations get created?



          2     If you look under -- bear with me.  Too many



          3     pages.  Oh, shoot.  I don't see it.  Here's what



          4     it says, I know what it says.  You have to



          5     publish the regulation in the State Register,



          6     State Register of Regulations, you have to hold



          7     a public hearing, and then the Secretary has to



          8     formally adopt the regulation.  Those three



          9     things have to happen.



         10                  I checked the existing septic



         11     regulations.  I do not -- oh.  And by the way,



         12     this language of being 30 days prior to



         13     settlement, written permission from DNREC,



         14     that's being put on septic permits right now.  I



         15     just spoke to another gentleman today.  He



         16     looked at his septic regulation -- permit that



         17     he just got recently.  I said I'll bet you're



         18     going to find that language on it.  Look for it.



         19     He didn't know anything about it, even though



         20     the guy is pretty sophisticated.



         21                  He looks around and says, oh, here



         22     it is.  Last item.  He read it, word for word.



         23     That's never been approved in a regulation



         24     legally.
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          1                  I would go so far as to say this:



          2     If a person walks into any State agency and they



          3     are told we don't do it that way anymore, and if



          4     they cannot point to a regulation approved by



          5     their Secretary, they've broken State law.



          6     Folks, you should be able to find the rules



          7     before you go into any given agency, and you



          8     should know -- I'm telling you, you can ask them



          9     for site-specific concerns, of course, but you



         10     should in a general sense know exactly what's



         11     going to be required of you if you look it up,



         12     and right now you don't.



         13                  So, I think that's really



         14     fundamental.  That -- I believe that also



         15     applies to the boat dock that were brought up.



         16     That does not have that 30-day requirement, but



         17     it does make that business personal.  So, I



         18     would ask -- I would urge DNREC to look at these



         19     things, make sure that they're following the



         20     rules they have to follow.



         21                  Finally I'll say this:  Sometimes I



         22     wish DNREC would be more forthcoming with the



         23     data they have available to them.  A few years



         24     ago I was in your office in Dover, and one of
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          1     their employees handed me a USGS publication,



          2     and at the time, we happened to be engaged



          3     pretty heavily in another regulation.  I won't



          4     get specific about it.  Well, the USGS -- U.S.



          5     Geological Survey made it pretty clear that what



          6     DNREC had been saying was the source of the



          7     pollution problem was not the problem.  In fact,



          8     it overwhelmingly made that case.  And so, I



          9     simply pointed it out to the folks involved, and



         10     you could see that it was -- that report



         11     suddenly became radioactive.



         12                  This concept that septic systems



         13     are like the worst thing that can happen to



         14     anything, polluting the Inland Bays, folks, in



         15     my opinion, based on reading quite a few



         16     technical documents, is not backed up by fact.



         17     And I believe there are many other things that



         18     could be done that could have far more positive



         19     impact on the environment than just forcing



         20     people to spend 20, 25,000.  I have a quote from



         21     five years ago on a septic system, 20 -- almost



         22     $22,000.  And I want to point out that in the



         23     rural areas, many of the folks that are required



         24     to spend this kind of money are some of the
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          1     folks who can least afford it.



          2                  And I would also say, given the



          3     state of the economy and the outlook for the



          4     future, the concept that DNREC is going to give



          5     everybody money that can't afford it is a little



          6     shaky, too.  At the very time when you're laying



          7     off people because you don't have enough money,



          8     where did that idea come that we just find a



          9     whole bunch of other money and fork it out to



         10     people, just so they can put a whole bunch of



         11     money into the septic system that's going to



         12     break down, and that over a long period of time



         13     is going to show a virtually unmeasurable



         14     difference in what's being done right now?



         15                  So, to conclude, attitude,



         16     attitude.  I'm hoping that everybody in this



         17     State government understands the world has



         18     changed.  We are either going to -- and you



         19     know, this is the other discouraging thing.  I'm



         20     not aware of one single regulation in this



         21     State -- maybe it's happened, but I don't know



         22     of it -- that specifically somebody says, you



         23     know what?  People can't afford this anymore.



         24     Let's find a cheaper way.  Even though we are
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          1     all dramatically poorer.



          2                  I mean we had one man mention his



          3     financial situation.  I can tell you right now



          4     the real estate that I own has declined, and I'm



          5     just a homeowner.  You know, I've got a house



          6     and a couple rental houses.  I would guarantee



          7     you my property values have declined by 3 or



          8     $400,000, along with my net worth.  That's



          9     happened to virtually everybody in Delaware.



         10                  So, why isn't our State government



         11     approaching this problem with that mindset; that



         12     we all need to pull in our belt and figure how



         13     to be successful going forward.  Thank you.



         14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         15     Mr. Collins.  Next I have John Burton.



         16                  MR. NEWLIN:  Thank you for calling



         17     on me.  I got a little different concept than



         18     what's going on tonight.  In fact -- I'm getting



         19     to an age myself, I'm going to put my glasses



         20     on.  As a member of one of the boards of the



         21     State of Delaware, we were notified that maybe



         22     we should attend these hearings, in case



         23     something comes before us that would have some



         24     effect on it.
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          1                  As a member of the Delaware



          2     Industrial Control Board, I received



          3     notification from the Governor's office



          4     regarding this public hearing, and would like to



          5     present the following ideals, ideas, for



          6     consideration.



          7                  As present owner of 160 acres of



          8     land on the western side of Rehoboth Bay, the



          9     east side of this property runs approximately



         10     2000 feet of the waters of Rehoboth Bay, known



         11     as John S. and Samuel J. Burton Farm Preserve.



         12                  I observed the erosion problems



         13     that affected the property over the last ten



         14     years.  I'm sure many other property owners also



         15     have the same concerns.  One of my main concerns



         16     is the lack of funding to DNREC and the Federal



         17     government on lands owned by private individuals



         18     and reserved dynasties.  I feel that this



         19     funding program should be reviewed and be



         20     brought up to date regarding the high cost



         21     incurred by land owners.



         22                  My second concern is the flow of



         23     water coming into Rehoboth Bay never being



         24     restricted in any way.  The dredging on many
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          1     dead-end lagoons and long prongs of the



          2     waterways in Rehoboth Bay have been an



          3     environmental issue, which I feel should be



          4     reviewed.



          5                  The lack of dredging, in my



          6     opinion, is causing the areas that are available



          7     for the influx of the water to be much smaller,



          8     and we are still receiving the same or more



          9     amounts of water from the ocean and other



         10     tributaries from the Delaware Bay.  Example,



         11     very simple.  Take a 12-ounce cup of coffee, put



         12     2 two ounces of sand and mud, and you're going



         13     to get 10 ounces of coffee in it.



         14                  I believe the dredging program



         15     should have some type of committee review, or we



         16     should involve an environmental study of the



         17     possibilities of restricting the flow of water



         18     into Rehoboth Bay.  It seems to me that if we



         19     cut or slow 10 to 20 percent of the intake of



         20     the water coming into the bay in a seven-hour



         21     period, it would help to control the level of



         22     the flooding of the water.



         23                  As a property owner, I've spent



         24     thousands and thousands of dollars on shoreline
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          1     erosion control.  I wish to say that I am not



          2     criticizing DNREC.  In fact, I have a very good



          3     working relationship with the agency, in trying



          4     to protect the shoreline.  However, it is hard



          5     to continue to do environmental work such as



          6     erosion control without some assistance from the



          7     State or Federal government, as a private



          8     reserve owner -- preserve.



          9                  Thank you for the opportunity to



         10     share my concerns regarding Executive Order 36.



         11                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         12     Mr. Burton.



         13                  MR. BURTON:  And I would like to



         14     leave a copy with you.



         15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Great.



         16     Thank you.  Next I have Dave Jacobs.



         17                  MR. JACOBSON:  Unless we can



         18     discuss ethanol and the gas, that kind of thing,



         19     I might as well pass.  Is that open for



         20     discussion?  We got a Federal -- we have a



         21     legislator here.



         22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You know,



         23     ethanol is a Federal issue.  It's not a State



         24     issue, from a regulatory point of view.  I'm
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          1     happy to talk with you afterwards, if that's



          2     okay.



          3                  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  Well --



          4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Or if you



          5     can -- we're almost wrapping it up, so go ahead.



          6                  MR. JACOBS:  I'll just take a



          7     minute of your time.  We have a State



          8     Representative, they did bring up Congress and



          9     the Constitution and all of that.



         10                  I buy gas here in Millsboro, and



         11     it's got 10 percent ethanol.  And that's



         12     regulated because Philadelphia has a pollution



         13     problem.  We're all paying through the nose



         14     here.  When I go to another state, like ten



         15     miles away to Pittsville, Maryland, the gas



         16     there has less than 10 percent ethanol.  It's



         17     whatever Maryland dictates.  And I get like 50,



         18     52 miles a gallon on my motorcycle.  With



         19     Delaware gas I'm getting about 48.



         20                  Now that's a motorcycle.  So now



         21     transcribe that to your SUVs, and how much



         22     you're putting into your gas tanks, and et



         23     cetera.  It's a Federal issue, but America and



         24     the Federal systems got to start with the little
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          1     individual citizen.  So, I'm here.



          2                  The EPA has some influence.  It



          3     doesn't come down -- maybe it goes up from your



          4     end, you speak to Federal EPA people.  And



          5     Mr. Representative, there it is.  I may not even



          6     be in your district, but I'm sure if you have a



          7     constituency that lives in Delaware, they



          8     probably would like to get a better performance



          9     out of the car.  We're talking about the water



         10     and boating and fishing.  I know the boats are



         11     lined up at the gas stations in Maryland,



         12     because the ethanol screws up the gas, screws up



         13     the gas tanks in boats.  So, anyone that can



         14     alleviate and help these problems, that would be



         15     great.



         16                  The other thing I noticed, what the



         17     EPA, or maybe DNREC, when I moved down here in



         18     '96, this place was full of chicken farms.  A



         19     lot of people, chicken farms, a lot of people



         20     working.  And they say it's the economy.



         21                  They came down with rules.  My



         22     neighbor had four chicken houses, and it was



         23     bustling, every six weeks, new chickens coming



         24     in, more chickens going out.
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          1                  And then suddenly, what happened?



          2     He said, well, they've got some new regulations,



          3     I've got to put like $200,000 worth of something



          4     to fix it up, because perhaps of some runoff or



          5     whatever it was.



          6                  And they -- chicken farms have all



          7     dried up.  You don't have to drive very far from



          8     this location here to see the chicken farms that



          9     have dried up.  The small farmer has -- who



         10     couldn't afford a couple hundred thousand



         11     dollars to fix it up, they've gone into



         12     retirement, or whatever.



         13                  Now, I -- I'm going to say it had



         14     to have been regulations, because I used to eat



         15     as much in 1969 -- '96, when I came here, and I



         16     don't think people have stopped eating.  So,



         17     where are they getting their chickens from?  You



         18     can go to Maryland and get chickens, or other



         19     states.  But I know Delaware's chicken output



         20     must be a lot less.



         21                  And whatever the EPA, DNREC can do



         22     to improve that, and maybe drop a lot of



         23     regulations.  Apparently some of them aren't --



         24     they aren't coming out the way they were
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          1     described, to be bad for the environment.  I



          2     don't know.  But I live next to a chicken farm.



          3     My water's fine.  It was fine before, it's fine



          4     now.  You know.



          5                  Thank you for your time, and I hope



          6     I wasn't too far off the track.  Thank you very



          7     much.



          8                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



          9     Mr. Jacobs.  Next I have Stephanie Herron.



         10                  MS. HERRON:  My name is Stephanie



         11     Herron.  I'm with the Delaware chapter of the



         12     Sierra Club, and we have some comments to offer,



         13     but I will have some more formal comments



         14     written or at a later hearing.



         15                  I would first like to say that we



         16     completely agree and echo everything that



         17     Mr. Moyer and the Inland Bay Foundation said



         18     about environmental regulations not being bad



         19     for jobs.



         20                  And I also have something to say.



         21     The Delaware chapter of the Sierra Club has been



         22     monitoring the DNREC and State public meeting



         23     web calendars in an effort to notify our members



         24     of the times and locations of the DNREC
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          1     regulation review hearings under Executive Order



          2     36.  We could find no notice on either site of



          3     this or the following two public hearings until



          4     today, January 7th, 2013.  And we find it



          5     extremely troublesome that such an important



          6     meeting as this would be held with less than 24



          7     hours notice to the residents of Sussex County



          8     who are not on the DNREC mailing list, who went



          9     out on the e-mail list.



         10                  In order to remedy this series



         11     oversight, we request that the public comment



         12     period be extended from March 1, 2013, as the



         13     end, to April 1, 2013.  Thank you.



         14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         15     Ms. Herron.  Next I have Henry Glowiak as a



         16     maybe.  Are you a yes or are you a no,



         17     Mr. Glowiak, if you're still with us?  Sorry if



         18     I've pronounced that -- done an injustice to



         19     that.  No?  Not with us.  Okay.



         20                  Sam Wilson.  Okay.  He may be in



         21     the lobby.  So, somebody's going to go see if



         22     Sam wants to --



         23                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  How are you



         24     doing?
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          1                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  How are



          2     you, sir.



          3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  I don't believe



          4     I put my name on to speak, but I do have one



          5     comment.  I believe that the -- that any



          6     regulation that any agency, I don't care who it



          7     is, Natural Resources or DelDOT, whoever, that's



          8     put regulations upon the public, the general



          9     public, that this regulation, you've come up



         10     with the ideas before it can be finally



         11     approved, it must go to the General Assembly.



         12                  They are the ones who make it, and



         13     they should be the ones responsible for every



         14     regulation.  And if they're not doing the job



         15     right, the general public has to know about



         16     this, and they have the right to vote them out.



         17     If bureaucrats continue to make regulations, all



         18     we can do is we can fuss.  You can't really be



         19     replaced, or neither can anyone else.



         20                  So, my recommendation is, let's put



         21     this -- these regulations back in to the people



         22     that should be responsible.  Those are the



         23     legislators.  And let them tell you at the final



         24     that it's improved or not approved.
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          1                  If it's important enough to levy



          2     fines and regulations, it's important enough for



          3     them to vote on.



          4                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you



          5     Councilman Wilson.  The last thing I have signed



          6     up, and we'll go back out and see if anybody has



          7     any final thoughts that they want to share, or



          8     if folks have been here and decided that they



          9     would like to share something with us.



         10     Mr. Cramer.



         11                  MR. CRAMER:  I believe I'm signed



         12     in.



         13                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You are.



         14                  MR. CRAMER:  Okay.



         15                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I have a



         16     note that said you wanted to have the last word,



         17     and it turned out you were last on the list,



         18     so --



         19                  MR. CRAMER:  Well, it didn't really



         20     matter.  I just didn't want to be the first one.



         21     I wanted to see what the others had to say



         22     first.  My name is Dan Cramer.  Can you actually



         23     hear me, or do you need me to get closer to the



         24     mike?
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          1                  Well, I'll tell you what.  How do



          2     you not start a business?  DNREC.  That's how



          3     you don't start a business.  A couple years



          4     ago -- it had to have been more than three years



          5     ago, because my face got messed up, so it had to



          6     be more than three years ago when I was in a



          7     meeting and I said you know how you solve this



          8     problem.  I wanted to get into business for this



          9     particular problem, and it would have helped the



         10     environment.



         11                  But then I was told, oh, you can't



         12     do that without a permit from DNREC, because it



         13     has a diesel engine on it.  So in order to do



         14     this, in order for me to pollute the air, I had



         15     to kiss DNREC.  And that's one person, people,



         16     or whatever, I'm not going to kiss.



         17                  So therefore, the business is not



         18     going to start.  And it would have.  The machine



         19     itself costs about $250,000.  Another building



         20     would have had to have been put up, and trucks



         21     bought.  Would have been about a half a million



         22     dollars.  And in fact, five guys would have had



         23     jobs.



         24                  But do you think I'm going to

                                                                 79







          1     invest $500,000 and they're going to tell me



          2     when I can start the motor, when I have to shut



          3     it off?  And if you don't believe so, go watch



          4     the advertising in the fine print, generally on



          5     a Sunday in The News Journal.  And you'll see



          6     where somebody wants to use a diesel engine, and



          7     they'll say, oh, so many pounds of X, so many



          8     pounds of Y, and so many pounds of Z is going to



          9     be put out.  And this is regulated, and you will



         10     not be permitted to put out more.



         11                  And I'll tell you what actually



         12     happened.  This is a true story.  Delaware



         13     Electric put a diesel engine to their plant, to



         14     their headquarters.  Wanting to use it as a



         15     backup when electric went off and they needed



         16     more electric.  They were flat-out told, don't



         17     start that engine.  Now, did they change



         18     anything since then?  Don't know.  Don't really



         19     care.



         20                  The whole thing is a bunch of crap,



         21     because that little bit of pollution that I



         22     wanted to put out, I would have offset it by



         23     reducing the pollution of what I was going to



         24     remove.  But I'm not going to -- I'd rather take
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          1     that $500,000 and just stick it in a bank, get



          2     that 1 percent.  I'd be way ahead of the game.



          3                  And now that's going to talk a



          4     little bit about septic tanks.  These same



          5     septic tanks that they want to now bring in



          6     here, 15 years ago they wouldn't even approve



          7     them.  Why not?  Because they said they didn't



          8     work.



          9                  When the fact of the matter was, in



         10     Ohio they were being used and the water was not



         11     putting to the ground.  It was actually put



         12     right along the driveway and that, and the



         13     longer roads.  And I said how in the world can



         14     you do that?  The health department approved it.



         15     That's how good the water was.



         16                  And by the way, all these Inland



         17     Bay people here that are so hepped up, the best



         18     thing you guys could do in the Inland Bays area,



         19     move out of there.  Because then that pollution



         20     won't be there, because you're the ones



         21     polluting it.  Thank you.



         22                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         23     Mr. Cramer.  I don't have any other folks signed



         24     up to speak.  Is there anyone who would like to
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          1     speak who hasn't?  Is there anyone who would



          2     like to speak again?



          3                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  Me.  I got one



          4     comment.  I don't need to come up there, but --



          5     Sam Wilson.  I'd like to make one quick comment.



          6     Sulfur has been removed from fuel oil, diesel



          7     fuel, and a lot of money's been spent, a lot of



          8     regulations.  At this point in time, farmers are



          9     buying sulfur to put on their farms.  We're just



         10     actually wasting people's money to do -- or take



         11     away sulfur out of fuel.  And it's only got



         12     worse since now we've taken sulfur out of fuel.



         13     Before, we did get some natural sulfur, things



         14     like that, that would come back on the soil.



         15     But now we're short on sulfur.



         16                  So, it's just a comment.  Let us



         17     know what -- how some things -- the EPA has



         18     screwed up a lot of things, and it's cost us a



         19     lot of money, and it doesn't amount to a hill of



         20     beans, and that made things worse.  Thank you.



         21                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.



         22     Mr. Moyer.



         23                  MR. MOYER:  Again, president of the



         24     Inland Bays Foundation.  I would like to remind
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          1     the commenters and DNREC that Executive Order 36



          2     was very specific on what regulations are going



          3     to be reviewed, and those are regulations that



          4     are older than three years.  And much of the



          5     testimony tonight has been on regulations that



          6     have been proposed within the last three years.



          7                  So, I would request that the



          8     Department stick with the requirements of the



          9     Executive Order, and/or get clarification as to



         10     whether or not it's going to look at regulations



         11     that have been adopted after that three-year



         12     limit, and would urge them to stick with the



         13     intent of Executive Order 36.  Thank you.



         14                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         15     Mr. Moyer.  Mr. Wheatley.



         16                  MR. WHEATLEY:  My name is Bob



         17     Wheatley, and I would ask that you would allow



         18     common sense to prevail, and respect the



         19     comments of every person here who bothered to



         20     give up their time to show up, whether it was a



         21     regulation three years old, one year old, or a



         22     regulation yet to be promulgated.



         23                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,



         24     sir.  Seeing no other hands, I wanted to take a
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          1     moment to thank all of you for coming, and



          2     either sharing your thoughts or coming to



          3     listen.  I appreciate the respect with which you



          4     delivered your comments, the thought that you've



          5     provided behind those.



          6                  And I would just say this:  I also



          7     heard a number of issues that are examples that



          8     people brought to the microphone.  There is a



          9     larger regulatory context behind most of them,



         10     but if you're -- I would encourage you, if



         11     you're having issues, and maybe you've tried and



         12     this didn't work for you, but you know, working



         13     with the agency, as Representative Gray



         14     mentioned earlier, to try and solve issues and



         15     navigate through some of these regulatory



         16     hurdles, you know, we do a pretty good job if we



         17     are given the opportunity.



         18                  We don't always get it right, and I



         19     understand that, but I would just encourage you



         20     all to reach out to the agency and let us know



         21     what your challenges are.  We might be able to



         22     help you.  Not to say that there isn't a



         23     regulatory issue behind that, but you know, we



         24     spend a lot of time working with constituents
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          1     and the regulated community to try and both be



          2     protective and responsible and reasonable.



          3                  So with that I will stop, and



          4     again, thank you all.  And remember, we have



          5     additional hearings.  Right now the public



          6     comment period is open until March 1.



          7     Ms. Herron, your request will be taken under



          8     advisement.



          9                  So, thank you all again.



         10                  (Hearing concluded at 7:55 p.m.)
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33=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, good

34=     evening, and thank you all for coming out

35=     tonight.  My name is David Small, I'm the Deputy

36=     Secretary for the Delaware Department of Natural

37=     Resources and Environmental Control, and we're

38=     here tonight, really, to listen to you all.

39=                  If you'll indulge me for a few

40=     minutes, let me give you a little bit of

41=     background.  If you're here, you obviously know

42=     a little something about the purpose for this

43=     evening.  In June, Governor Markell signed an

44=     Executive Order directing all of the Cabinet

45=     agencies to take a look at their regulations and

46=     see if there was a way to reduce the burden on

47=     individuals in the business community here in

48=     the state of Delaware.

49=                  There's been a lot of interest over

50=     the years in this topic.  There was some

51=     legislative interest in this topic last -- last

52=     year.  And so, as a result, the Governor signed

53=     the Executive Order.  It's available online.

54=     I'm not sure if we have copies here with us, but

55=     we can certainly get you copies if you haven't

56=     been able to take a look.
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57=                  So, beginning in the fall, there

58=     were agencies that went through a very similar

59=     process to this, and they are in the process of

60=     looking at public comments and reviewing their

61=     own regulations.

62=                  And I have to tell you, and you all

63=     probably know it, DNREC certainly is a very

64=     diverse agency, and we touch a lot of different

65=     functions and activities.  And so, we are in the

66=     midst of reviewing these regulations, all of

67=     these regulations ourselves.  And we're trying

68=     to do this with an eye towards maintaining

69=     environmental standards.

70=                  And the reason I say that is a

71=     number of our programs are delegated to us from

72=     Federal agencies; notably, EPA, as you might

73=     expect, in the areas of, particularly, of air,

74=     waste, hazardous waste, and water.  And so, in

75=     order to -- excuse me -- maintain those

76=     programs, we have to maintain regulations that

77=     are adapted at the local level, but adopt

78=     Federal standards.

79=                  And so, one of the things we have

80=     done, and are continuing to do, is look at not
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81=     so much those standards, necessarily, but maybe

82=     how we meet those standards; looking for

83=     flexibility in doing that, and looking at some

84=     processes.

85=                  And I can tell you that, you know,

86=     over the years, we've engaged a number of

87=     techniques to try to be more efficient in our

88=     permitting process and reduce turnaround times

89=     for folks that are waiting on permits.  Some

90=     programs have really pushed this issue and done

91=     very well.  In our air program, for example, and

92=     some of our water programs.  You know, we are

93=     down to about 50 percent turnaround times and

94=     waiting times from where we were a number of

95=     years ago.

96=                  So, but this process really is

97=     important to hear from you all.  And we're here

98=     tonight, we will be in Kent County next Monday

99=     evening at Delaware State University.  And we

100=     can give you the details, Martin Luther King

101=     Center there.  And then on the 22nd of this

102=     month, we will be, at the same time, 6 p.m., and

103=     it's a Tuesday evening, we will be at the Carvel

104=     Building in Wilmington, in the auditorium up on
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105=     the mezzanine level.

106=                  And beyond that, if you -- you

107=     know, this process isn't closed tonight.  And if

108=     you think that you forgot to say something and

109=     you get home, please feel free to send us

110=     comments.  We're accepting written comments

111=     until March 1.  And at that point, then, we will

112=     take everything that we've gotten from our

113=     public hearings, from the written comments that

114=     we've received, and you can -- you can submit

115=     those in writing or you can submit them

116=     electronically online from our website.

117=                  And that, in combination with our

118=     own review, we'll be developing a report, as I

119=     mentioned earlier, that will be submitted to the

120=     Governor, with recommended changes on a number

121=     of regulatory fronts.

122=                  And we've been thinking about

123=     those.  We have -- you know, we've been looking

124=     at our Coastal Zone regs, for example.  We see

125=     some unevenness there.  In Sussex County, in the

126=     wetlands and subaqueous lands permit, again, not

127=     so much the standards that we have, but maybe in

128=     creating some efficiencies, and maybe a little
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129=     bit more certainty in those programs.

130=                  So, you know, again, we're

131=     interested in hearing from you on those and any

132=     of a number of other subjects.  Let me just

133=     mention, you know, we have a diverse agency.  We

134=     have our Division of Energy and Climate that

135=     administers regulations on our Green Energy

136=     Fund, for example.  This is a program that if

137=     you are a Delmarva Power customer, for example,

138=     you can apply for it and receive funding for

139=     installation of renewables.

140=                  We have our Division of Air, which

141=     is responsible for monitoring our state's air

142=     quality and regulating any of the number of

143=     sources.  It's been a very aggressive and

144=     effective program, and quite honestly, we think

145=     we need some help from EPA to help us with some

146=     of the states to the west of us, for a level

147=     playing field.  But that certainly is a very

148=     large volume of regulations that touch a lot of

149=     different sources of air emissions.

150=                  Our Division of Waste and Hazardous

151=     Substances regulates solid waste, it regulates

152=     hazardous waste.  Things, if you're in the waste
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153=     hauling business, for example, you need a permit

154=     from us for transportation of that material.  If

155=     you handle hazardous waste or if you store it or

156=     if you dispose of it, for example, you need some

157=     oversight from the Department.

158=                  We also are responsible for

159=     cleaning up legacy contamination sites.

160=     Superfund sites are the worst ones.  Those are

161=     established by EPA, and the State, since 1990,

162=     has had a program to oversee the cleanup of

163=     sites that aren't quite as contaminated, but

164=     still need to be addressed in order to minimize

165=     impacts on public health and the environment.

166=                  We have our Division of Water,

167=     which oversees the discharge of wastewater in

168=     any of a manner of functions.  That could be a

169=     discharge into surface water, such as rivers,

170=     streams, or bays, and also, septic systems.

171=     Some of you may have that on your mind this

172=     evening, I know we've just gone through a

173=     process recently.  As well as spray irrigation,

174=     there are a number of sites that are operated by

175=     facilities that are operated by the County, as

176=     well as municipalities and the private sector,
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177=     private wastewater utilities, that -- that

178=     operate spray irrigation facilities.  Those two

179=     are subject to regulation oversight and

180=     permitting by the agency.

181=                  Wells, if any of you have

182=     individual wells on your property, either for

183=     residential purposes or for business purposes,

184=     we oversee the design, construction, and

185=     installation of those wells, along -- and I

186=     mentioned septic systems earlier.

187=                  The Division of Fish and Wildlife,

188=     I don't know if any of you are anglers or

189=     hunters, or otherwise interested in habitat and

190=     wildlife and fisheries, but there is a body of

191=     regulation, as you might well expect, that comes

192=     with managing those natural resources.  And you

193=     know, we have advisory councils in the agency

194=     that we work very closely with on development of

195=     those regulations that may mean size and creel

196=     limits for Weakfish and any of a number of other

197=     species, but those are regulatory actions that

198=     the agency takes routinely, as well.

199=                  Our Division of Parks has

200=     regulations in place to oversee its park
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201=     activities.  So, you get a sense.  Division of

202=     Watershed Stewardship, for example, stormwater

203=     requirements.  There was legislation passed in

204=     1990 overseeing stormwater, getting a better

205=     handle on the impacts, potentially, to our

206=     ground and surface waters from surface -- from

207=     stormwater.  And that program's been in place,

208=     in Sussex County the program is delegated to the

209=     Sussex Conservation District for stormwater

210=     management and oversight of plans.

211=                  But that division is also

212=     responsible for oversight of construction on our

213=     beachfront.  The Beach Act passed probably back

214=     in the '90s, as well, maybe a little earlier

215=     than that.  It regulates the type and placement

216=     of construction along the beachfront to make

217=     sure that we're preserving our dune system,

218=     which, as we found this past fall with Hurricane

219=     Sandy, is a very, very important natural

220=     resource for us to manage.

221=                  I think that's -- you know, that's

222=     just a quick, quick snapshot of all of our --

223=     you know, of our divisions.  We have a lot of

224=     touch points with all of you.  We're interested
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225=     in hearing from all of you, either -- you know,

226=     in whatever format that is most comfortable for

227=     you.

228=                  I will tell you that this evening

229=     we do have a stenographer here who is providing

230=     a transcript for us, so we'll be able to capture

231=     your comments verbatim.  And so, what I'm going

232=     to do is -- and I should also state, say, we

233=     have a number of staff here this evening, that,

234=     you know, if we need to answer some questions,

235=     we can try and do that.

236=                  But this is really, again, we're

237=     here to listen.  You know, and if we need to

238=     respond we will, but we want to get your

239=     feedback and your comments.

240=                  And so, with that, I will say that

241=     I have a list of folks who have signed in and

242=     indicated that they would like to speak.  And

243=     what I will do is ask you to come down, and

244=     maybe I'll step over to this mike, because most

245=     of the folks are sitting over here.  But we have

246=     folks sitting in the back, and what I'd ask you

247=     to do, if that's okay, is to come down to the

248=     front.  We have some wireless mikes, but they
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249=     don't seem to be working this evening.

250=                  So in fairness to everybody, so

251=     that everyone can hear and that our stenographer

252=     can be sure to accurately record your comments,

253=     I'd ask you to come down and provide some

254=     feedback, if that's okay.

255=                  Let me just take a quick look to

256=     see if there's any other notes that I need to

257=     share with you before I start with our list of

258=     sign-ins.  I think that's enough of me talking.

259=                  So, I'm going to go to the list

260=     that we received as people signed in.  And I

261=     will apologize in advance if I don't get your

262=     name correct.  But it looks to me like the first

263=     name that I have is Carol Zander.  Am I right?

264=     Ms. Zander, if you could come down, please.

265=                  MS. ZANDER:  Good evening.  I was

266=     hoping not to be the first, but I came this

267=     evening because I understood from the radio and

268=     from some things I had read that DNREC is

269=     planning to impose new septic regulations on

270=     anybody who's within 1000 feet of the

271=     waterfront.  Of any waterfront, along any body

272=     of water.  Can you tell me, is that true?  And
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273=     what those new regulations are going to be that

274=     we're going to have to deal with.  I mean is it

275=     as draconian as I've heard?

276=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Is that

277=     your -- is that it?  Can I come over to the

278=     mike?

279=                  MS. ZANDER:  Yeah, can I -- can I

280=     ask questions when you get finished, if

281=     necessary?

282=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.  Let

283=     me -- so, we have gone through a public hearing

284=     process twice now on the proposed changes to our

285=     on-site wastewater regulations.  And so, the

286=     public record is closed on that specific

287=     regulation.  We're happy to hear comments on

288=     those this evening, as well.

289=                  I believe, specifically to your

290=     question, what the regulation proposes is that

291=     if you have to completely replace your existing

292=     system, or if you're building -- putting in a

293=     new system and you are within 1000 feet of the

294=     Nanticoke River, the tidal portions, only the

295=     tidal portions of the Nanticoke River or Broad

296=     Creek, then under those conditions, when these
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297=     regulations would be promulgated -- and they

298=     have not yet been promulgated -- then you could

299=     be required to install what we're calling an

300=     enhanced nutrient removal system, okay?

301=                  MS. ZANDER:  Uh-huh.

302=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Now, I

303=     will also tell you that we have gotten a large

304=     body of public comment on this.  We are

305=     reviewing that.  We've had, you know, the

306=     General Assembly has expressed some opinions

307=     about this, as well.  So, we're taking a look at

308=     that.

309=                  It may be that we make some further

310=     changes to those regulations.  And if we do,

311=     there will be additional opportunity for public

312=     comment, when that happens.

313=                  MS. ZANDER:  So they're not

314=     affecting us right here in this area, as of now?

315=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, we

316=     have existing regulations in place now for --

317=     that dictate the -- you know, how septic systems

318=     are installed, managed, et cetera.  These would

319=     be an update to those regulations.  But they are

320=     not in effect, what we have proposed and what
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321=     you mentioned about the 1000 feet is not in

322=     effect right now.  It is in effect in the tidal

323=     waters around the Inland Bays.  But again, it's

324=     1000 feet within tidal waters of the Inland Bays

325=     watershed.

326=                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Does that cover

327=     what I -- do you want me to --

328=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Yes,

329=     please.

330=                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  What I've heard

331=     is that we would be required, if we live within

332=     1000 feet of a body of water, say the Indian

333=     River, okay, that we would be required to be

334=     having two inspections a year at our cost for

335=     our septic system.  Is that one of the things

336=     that, you know, I'm looking forward to?

337=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  So, what

338=     the proposed regulation would do, and I'm

339=     looking at Jim Cassidy.  Jim is our manager in

340=     our Georgetown office for the on-site branch.

341=     What would be required, if you put in one of

342=     those enhanced systems, then you would need

343=     inspections twice a year.

344=                  MS. ZANDER:  Oh, okay.
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345=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And part

346=     of the reason for that is that the

347=     manufacturer's warranty, I believe, requires

348=     inspections, at least for the first two years,

349=     twice a year.

350=                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  So there's

351=     nothing that's affecting the existing homeowners

352=     at this particular time?

353=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than

354=     our --

355=                  MS. ZANDER:  Other than what's

356=     already --

357=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Other than

358=     what's already in place.

359=                  MS. ZANDER:  Okay.  Thank you.

360=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Mr. Jim

361=     Baxter.  Mr. Baxter?

362=                  MR. BAXTER:  As you probably know,

363=     we take the sludge, from the last pickup to now,

364=     and what I don't understand is that we have

365=     two -- we have two places on Toccopola Farms

366=     where you've had a -- what I call a mound

367=     system.  It's right on the line with us, as

368=     farming.  But yet, when we have to get the
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369=     permit, or the company does that we do it for,

370=     we have to get a permit from you folks to put

371=     the sludge on, and we have to be 30 foot from

372=     the property line.  I don't hardly understand

373=     why.

374=                  And maybe you can't give me an

375=     answer, either, but to me, it looks a little bit

376=     asinine to be able to put a heap of sludge, no

377=     medication, no nothing, onto -- next to our

378=     property line.  I can show it to you any time

379=     you want to come out there.  And I don't

380=     understand why it is a 30-foot from the property

381=     line, we can only -- we have to -- we can only

382=     start that far away to put the sludge on.  It's

383=     been treated and okayed, but none of those mound

384=     systems have ever been treated, as far as I

385=     know.  Okay?

386=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.

387=     The next name I have is Dave -- Jaeger?  Is that

388=     right?

389=                  MR. JACOBSON:  Jacobs.  I'm sorry.

390=     Do we have another Dave Jacobs?

391=                  MR. JAEGER:  It's Jaeger.

392=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  What's
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393=     your last name?

394=                  MR. JAEGER:  Jaeger.  J-a-e-g-e-r,

395=     that's correct.  I'll make this short.  My name

396=     is David Jaeger, and I live in Selbyville.

397=     While I support the Governor's desire to

398=     simplify DNREC's regulations, I am concerned

399=     that this might lead to a weakening of controls

400=     on the amount of pollution on our air, land, and

401=     water, particularly around our Inland Bays.

402=     These bays are the jewel of Sussex County, and

403=     indeed, the whole state, but they are repeatedly

404=     threatened by overdevelopment.

405=                  And one of the main protectors of

406=     the Inland Bays watershed is DNREC.  They are

407=     charged with sustaining this prize for future

408=     generations, at the same time allowing for

409=     reasonable development.  That's a tough job, and

410=     I don't envy them this responsibility, but it's

411=     one that we all must support and respect.

412=                  I am particularly concerned about

413=     Sussex County, now that the economy is picking

414=     up again and the building boom is likely to

415=     resume to accommodate the baby boomers looking

416=     to retire to lower slower Delaware.  But the
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417=     very qualities that attract folks are at risk

418=     from overdevelopment and pollution, such as

419=     septic tanks and ill-conceived wastewater

420=     systems.  We need scientific and fact-based

421=     controls that only DNREC can provide to preserve

422=     this God-given gift of nature for future

423=     generations.  Thank you.

424=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

425=     Mr. Jaeger.  Next I have Floyd Morton.

426=                  MR. MORTON:  Thank you for giving

427=     me this time to speak.  You had mentioned there

428=     was actually going to be changes in regulations

429=     for anglers, and that's going to be through, I

430=     believe, the Delaware Bayshore Initiative

431=     program?

432=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Well, I

433=     think I was talking about regulations maybe in

434=     size and creel limits as examples of the type of

435=     diverse regulatory oversight that we're charged

436=     with.

437=                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  And --

438=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I wasn't

439=     here to propose anything specific.

440=                  MR. MORTON:  I understand.  But do
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441=     you have any specific that you're going to be

442=     changing?

443=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I can tell

444=     you this:  There are, it seems to me, always

445=     changes that are pending in the world of

446=     fisheries management.  Mostly because we are

447=     responsible for maintaining compliance with

448=     somewhere around 17 fishery management plans

449=     that are coastwide.

450=                  As you well know, fish move through

451=     waters.  They don't just stay stationary.  So we

452=     have to work with other states to manage those,

453=     and there are a number of agency organizations,

454=     multistate organizations that work

455=     collaboratively most of the times to try to

456=     manage those stocks.

457=                  So there is the chance that over

458=     the course of the coming year, that there will

459=     be some type of regulatory change proposed in

460=     order to maintain compliance with those, but I

461=     can't sit here and cite exactly what those are.

462=                  MR. MORTON:  I mean isn't this a

463=     public comment, where we can get our comments to

464=     how we feel about something?
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465=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.

466=                  MR. MORTON:  That's what I'm

467=     saying, is this is open for something like that,

468=     correct?

469=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Sure.

470=                  MR. MORTON:  But you don't have any

471=     kind of regulations or anything like that that

472=     we can say, hey, we're for this, or you know,

473=     what -- it's almost like writing a blank check.

474=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.  So

475=     you know, the more specific that your comments

476=     can be -- and I'll say this to everyone -- about

477=     individual regulations, if there's a particular

478=     species, or -- you know, it can be open, but the

479=     things that will be most helpful to us are

480=     comments that are as specific as you can be.

481=                  That's not to say that we're not

482=     here to listen to whatever you have to say, but

483=     you know, I think those things will be

484=     particularly constructive.  So with that, would

485=     you go ahead, please.

486=                  MR. MORTON:  I saw this morning,

487=     and the Delaware Bayshore Initiative was

488=     actually mentioned during this.  Is there
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489=     something that's actually going on with the

490=     Delaware Bayshore Initiative that pertains to

491=     this meeting tonight?

492=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The

493=     Delaware Bayshore Initiative is not a regulatory

494=     initiative.  It is, really, the notion behind

495=     that, very quickly, is to really bring in some

496=     of, you know, non-regulatory programs working

497=     more collaboratively together to conserve

498=     habitat in the bayshore, protect lands, keep,

499=     you know, working lands working and in private

500=     hands.

501=                  MR. MORTON:  Uh-huh.

502=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And you

503=     know, restore habitat where possible, and create

504=     low impact recreational and economic development

505=     opportunities through -- through tourism.  As

506=     you know, there are, you know, a lot of that

507=     kind of activity going on along the bayshore,

508=     and we would like to enhance those efforts.

509=                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.  As of right

510=     now, do you have anything pending that pertains

511=     to the Delaware Bayshore Initiative that you

512=     could speak about tonight?
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513=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Not in a

514=     regulatory context, no.

515=                  MR. MORTON:  Okay.

516=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  This

517=     meeting is about regulations.  The bayshore is

518=     not a regulatory initiative.

519=                  MR. MORTON:  That's all I've got.

520=     Thank you.

521=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.

522=     I believe it's Sally Ford?

523=                  MS. FORD:  I'm a surveyor, and I --

524=     my interaction with DNREC is basically doing

525=     stormwater management.  And my one comment in

526=     general is that I believed these hearings were

527=     to discuss regulations that were in effect three

528=     years ago.  And yet, there were supposed to be

529=     new regulations in effect as of January 1.

530=                  So, my comment is, why am I

531=     addressing old regulations, when there's

532=     supposed to be new ones?

533=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The focus

534=     of the Executive Order was on regulations that

535=     had not been amended or opened, if you will, for

536=     a three-year period or more.
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537=                  MS. FORD:  Okay.

538=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  And the

539=     idea behind that being that there may be some

540=     regulations that hadn't gotten attention within

541=     the past three years, that needed to be updated.

542=                  So, that's the focus.  But it's not

543=     the exclusive intent of this process to

544=     remain -- you know, to address only those

545=     regulations.  So, you know, we're looking at it

546=     as an opportunity to go beyond that, if need be.

547=     But I think the body of our work and review will

548=     focus on those older regulations.

549=                  MS. FORD:  Can I comment on the new

550=     ones?

551=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Please, go

552=     ahead.

553=                  MS. FORD:  Okay.  My first comment,

554=     though, concerns -- it's relative to the old and

555=     to the new.

556=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.

557=                  MS. FORD:  And that's the notice of

558=     intent permit that people get when they're doing

559=     construction.  And I know it comes down from

560=     EPA, and my feedback has always been, well, EPA
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561=     makes us keep it active until the last bit of

562=     construction is done.  And I have several

563=     projects that it affects greatly, one being a

564=     commercial property where all utilities are in,

565=     all surfaces are paved, site is fully graded,

566=     all buildings are up except for one last

567=     building, a 3000 square foot building.

568=                  I have as-builts and approvals for

569=     everything that's been done.  And yet, I have to

570=     keep the NOI open, and DNREC won't issue me a

571=     final because they say the NOI has to stay open.

572=     Well, if this building doesn't get built for ten

573=     years, there's a fee involved, there's our fee

574=     for keeping us current with the -- with

575=     everything.

576=                  And I believe it should be allowed

577=     to terminate when the site is fully stabilized,

578=     all approvals for utilities, site improvements,

579=     are complete.  And if -- when they decide to

580=     build the last building, you have to get a

581=     general permit just for that 3000 square foot

582=     improvement, that should be acceptable.  Because

583=     the stormwater already took into consideration

584=     that building being there.

fmt=pb

585=                  I have -- another example would be

586=     your subdivision drawings, where you have a

587=     subdivision, and a lot remains vacant for 40

588=     years, because somebody in their 20s bought it

589=     hoping to build on it when they retired.  You're

590=     going to keep the developer liable with that NOI

591=     for 40 years until that last house gets built?

592=     That seems erroneous, or that doesn't seem fair.

593=                  And again, the site and the

594=     stormwater management was -- that building was

595=     taken into consideration, that there would be a

596=     house on that lot eventually.  To keep the NOI

597=     open and the stormwater permit open for that

598=     amount of time -- there should be a way to close

599=     a permit, reopen it if you need to, with the

600=     notion that we're only building what's already

601=     been approved, and it's less than the 5000

602=     square foot standard disturbance, where you can

603=     qualify for the general permit.

604=                  Along the same line, another little

605=     thing that really bothers me, in 2006 DNREC

606=     stated everybody was going to have to pay for

607=     the NOI annually, which is $195.  Not a big bill

608=     for the big developers, but for your littler
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609=     jobs, it can get to be a big bill.

610=                  And in the new regulations, they've

611=     inserted that letter into the technical

612=     documents, which I believe makes it now a

613=     regulation, that there will be that $195 every

614=     year.  But it can't close out.  There's no way

615=     of closing out the NOI until that last lot is

616=     built upon.

617=                  I just took for an example the NOIs

618=     that were still open, and I only went back to

619=     2005.  And I know NOIs go back to 2001.  And

620=     going back to just 2005, with the amount that

621=     are still open, you would be collecting $195,000

622=     a year, just annually, just to keep everybody's

623=     NOIs current.

624=                  So, I take insult to it, that it's

625=     a little bit more of a revenue generator than

626=     really do you need to charge that every year,

627=     when we can't physically close it out because

628=     you won't let us close it out.

629=                  A couple things in the new

630=     regulations -- and I'll probably do more in

631=     writing -- but they're treating wooded lots

632=     different than a cleared lot.  And I feel it's
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633=     unfair for somebody who wants to preserve trees,

634=     and therefore, hasn't cleared their lot, to be

635=     penalized now, when they go for their stormwater

636=     management or they go for their general permit,

637=     to have to go an additional step, versus the

638=     person who cleared their lot five years ago, and

639=     they can just get the general permit without

640=     question.

641=                  The other -- the other item, too,

642=     is the general permit, they were going to allow

643=     based on a percentage of impervious on the lot,

644=     and that discriminates against your smaller

645=     lots, because you'll reach that percentage of

646=     impervious a lot quicker than you will on a

647=     one-acre lot.  Therefore, you're penalizing the

648=     smaller lots, versus the larger lots, as far as

649=     the amount of work that they're going to have to

650=     hire my company to do.

651=                  And I also feel, in general, that

652=     most of what was approved in revisions back in

653=     2005 or 2004, when they were done previously,

654=     are just getting built today.  A lot of my

655=     projects are under those regulations and are

656=     just getting built, so you don't even know how
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657=     they work, and they're changing the regulations.

658=     So, do you have any comment?

659=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I don't.

660=     Thank you.  I appreciate your comments.

661=                  MS. FORD:  Okay.

662=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Oh, boy.

663=     Don -- hmm.  Tom?

664=                  MR. FORD:  I think I'm after Sally.

665=     Tom Ford.  I have a very specific item.  Number

666=     one, Dave, I'd like to take issue, the whole

667=     point of this meeting is to simplify permitting

668=     and cost and expediate it, and during your

669=     introduction, you basically said DNREC is doing

670=     a great job and has simplified and expediated

671=     permitting.  And I've been in the field for 30

672=     years, and I'm telling you, it's getting more

673=     complicated every day, and it takes longer, and

674=     costs more.

675=                  And but specifically, I -- our

676=     company just got a dock rebuild and extension

677=     permit.  It took over a year to get it.  It took

678=     a lot of back and forth with DNREC.

679=                  I don't have a problem with that

680=     process.  What I do have a problem with is at
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681=     the end of the process, it's assigned personally

682=     to the applicant.  And unfortunately, this

683=     applicant died three weeks after the permit was

684=     approved and recorded, signed by Collin O'Mara,

685=     the whole deal.

686=                  So, the estate now has to go back

687=     to DNREC.  And I'm not saying DNREC's going to

688=     withhold that approval, but I find it -- why are

689=     we allowing a 20-year lease out on our

690=     subaqueous lands for a pier personally?  It

691=     should go with the land.

692=                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's

693=     right.

694=                  MR. FORD:  And DelDOT's doing that

695=     to entrance permits, and DNREC is doing that.

696=     And I find the banking community and development

697=     community can't live with those unknowns.  At

698=     any point, say a movie theater sells the movie

699=     theater, that DelDOT permit and any DNREC septic

700=     permit, or whatever, should flow with the land.

701=     Not be assigned personally.  Because it marks

702=     the land -- and the banking community is not

703=     aware of this, and the real estate community's

704=     not aware of this.  And it's a big major issue.
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705=                  And it needs to be fixed and

706=     addressed, and you need to determine why you

707=     need to do that.  Because you have the power to

708=     revoke that permit, from anybody who uses it.

709=     No matter who's the assigneds, who's the heirs,

710=     or who the rental unit of users, if they violate

711=     any issue of that permit, DNREC has that in

712=     there, too.

713=                  So why does that have to be

714=     assigned personally?  You know, that property's

715=     going to change hands in 20 years.  What

716=     property doesn't?  Very few.  The bulk of the

717=     properties exchange.

718=                  That needs to be fixed, and it

719=     needs to be fixed throughout the State.  And so,

720=     I just bring that up, because it's a very

721=     specific, and it's a very annoying bureaucratic

722=     process that doesn't help anybody.  It just gets

723=     in the way.  And why that estate has to come

724=     back to you and ask for you to do that permit is

725=     ridiculous.

726=                  I think what my -- Sally Ford

727=     brought out about the NOI is the problem you

728=     have is in a development, not all lots are built
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729=     on.  You're going to build the roads, you're

730=     going to put the stormwater in, you're going to

731=     get them approved, you're going to do the

732=     as-builts.

733=                  You spend hundreds of thousands of

734=     dollars on some larger developments, and the

735=     developer eventually is going to sell out to the

736=     HOA.  And the HOA isn't going to take over when

737=     there's 100 percent build-out.  So the HOAs,

738=     ordinary citizens who don't understand this

739=     process, are going to get stuck paying that NOI.

740=     They're not going to understand what they have

741=     to do.  And it's -- it's ridiculous to go

742=     beyond.

743=                  The land has all been developed,

744=     and we're only going to go for one house at a

745=     time.  I mean get a general permit, get a

746=     sediment erosion control, stormwater has already

747=     been fixed, and let people go.  Don't hold on to

748=     them for 20 years.  Because 20 years from now

749=     you might have a bunch of comments from those

750=     HOAs.

751=                  The general person in this

752=     community doesn't understand that, and how these
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753=     regulations affect them.  And these are big,

754=     major issues that our representatives are going

755=     to have to deal with, and you're going to have

756=     to deal with some day.  And I don't see the

757=     benefit.  Is it all about health, safety,

758=     welfare of the general public?  How does holding

759=     onto the NOI help them?  How does making a

760=     permit personal help the health, safety, welfare

761=     of the public?

762=                  These are specific issues, and I

763=     know there's many others, but that's all I have

764=     to say to you tonight.

765=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

766=     Mr. Ford.  Next I have Ron Gray.

767=                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Good evening.

768=     I'm the new -- tomorrow I will be sworn in as a

769=     Representative here for the State of Delaware.

770=     I'm very, very proud to be doing that, and I'll

771=     be representing all of the citizens in my

772=     district, and much of that is in the natural

773=     resource area.

774=                  We have the Inland Bays, the little

775=     Assawoman Bay, my area, and up to Indian River

776=     Bay as well, to the inlet.  I think because the
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777=     bridge washed out, I only -- I don't have to

778=     worry about that on the north side, that's

779=     another representative's side than me, so I want

780=     to make sure that doesn't happen.

781=                  Running for office, regulation has

782=     always been a bad word for me, really.  And it's

783=     what I ran on, the platform.  The point I really

784=     want to make is, I just feel like DNREC needs to

785=     be more responsive in looking at it from the

786=     perspective of the end user.  Not only what Tom

787=     and Sally were talking about from the technical

788=     person, but regulations in general.

789=                  I would like to see them being more

790=     of the citizens and the technical folks that are

791=     putting together the plans, to let them try to

792=     work with you closely, instead of requiring them

793=     to do things, let them partner with you to come

794=     up with even better ways to improve the

795=     environment and make it a better place.

796=                  And I feel that the regulations

797=     typically become onerous, and I think that they

798=     have been put in place because a few folks in

799=     our community took advantage of it, or polluted,

800=     and we go -- the pendulum has swung, so that the
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801=     regulations have become very onerous in many

802=     cases.

803=                  And I would like to see more of a

804=     partnership, and not "regulation" should be a

805=     bad word.  We should all share with that, that

806=     we're trying to protect the environment for the

807=     jewel we have in our Inland Bays, and to

808=     maintain that.

809=                  So, you're in a very difficult

810=     position.  On the new -- my first reaction when

811=     I heard that we were looking at regs that were

812=     three years old was, well, what about the ones

813=     that have gone into place in the last three

814=     years?  But you have to start somewhere.  So, I

815=     salute Governor Markell for taking an effort to

816=     look at the regulations, even though he's

817=     starting it at the three-year point.

818=                  But going forward, I feel like we

819=     should -- we should try to work together, and

820=     let -- and build a volunteer or support base

821=     that all our natural resources, we want to

822=     maintain those, and make them a better place,

823=     and have volunteer support, and the community in

824=     general want to work with DNREC, and not have it
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825=     as being told to do things, as much.

826=                  So, that, in a nutshell, is really

827=     what I wanted to say.  So, I totally respect

828=     you, Dave.  I think you're in a tough position,

829=     because most of the times, people are looking at

830=     you as the bad guy, or DNREC as the bad guy.

831=     And I think that needs to change.  Thank you for

832=     letting me speak for a moment, and I look

833=     forward to working with you over the next couple

834=     years.

835=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you

836=     for your comments, Representative.

837=                  REPRESENTATIVE GRAY:  Still

838=     Representative Elect.

839=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Close

840=     enough for me.  Next I have Bob and Renee

841=     Coleman.  Is that right?

842=                  MR. COLEMAN:  I'm Bob Coleman.

843=     I'll be speaking for both of us, I guess.  I've

844=     been a property owner for close to 30 years now,

845=     in various parts of Sussex County.  And I guess

846=     I have to say that in general, I believe that

847=     the people in this state and county are very

848=     concerned about water and air quality, and
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849=     they're very anxious to have those sort of

850=     things improved.

851=                  And 20, 25 years ago, I saw a lot

852=     of very significant improvements that were

853=     beneficial.  They made good sense.  But I do

854=     have to also say, over the last decade or so, it

855=     seems as though the regulations we're seeing

856=     come through are almost regulations for the sake

857=     of making a regulation, and they're not really

858=     making any significant improvement in the

859=     environment.  All they're doing is exerting more

860=     and more control over infinitesimal limits, in

861=     some cases, and a desire to control every

862=     specific detail, down to the most minute thing.

863=                  If the Governor's really serious

864=     about making these things work more smoothly and

865=     having less negative impact, I think you need to

866=     take a look at that, not only on existing

867=     regulations, but also on these new ones that are

868=     being discussed.

869=                  Now, as far as the new septic

870=     regulations, I do have some comments on that,

871=     also.  I understand that was a separate issue,

872=     but it really ties into this, I think, as far as
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873=     the impact of regulations on the area.

874=                  These new regulations, because of

875=     their tight controls, especially on nitrogens, I

876=     think, are going to impose a severe financial

877=     hardship to anyone holding a present property

878=     that may need repairs, or new property about to

879=     be built.  And in a time when the state and

880=     county are in such desperate need of things to

881=     help growth and help people survive, it just

882=     seems totally wrong to be clamping down on

883=     something, unless there's a true benefit to be

884=     had.

885=                  Now, aside from the need for

886=     putting in new systems, perhaps if you have to

887=     replace them, there's, as someone else mentioned

888=     earlier, this need for inspection costs, if you

889=     happen to be unfortunate enough to need one of

890=     these systems.  And not just the inspection

891=     costs, but along with it goes a mandate that

892=     regardless of individual property rights, an

893=     inspector will have free access to your property

894=     any time he wants, and you cannot deny access.

895=     Now to me, that is a severe overreach of the

896=     government.
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897=                  And someone else also pointed out,

898=     the personal attachment of these permits.  To

899=     me, that just makes absolutely no sense at all.

900=     You're regulating runoff water from a piece of

901=     land.  Why does it get tied to the individual?

902=     That is nothing but a burdensome aspect to

903=     anybody, whether they're selling, passing it on

904=     to heirs, or whatever.  It's a real burden.

905=                  And I also, as a professional

906=     engineer, I have to raise a lot of questions

907=     about some of these new regulations in terms of

908=     their specific limits and how they're to be

909=     implemented.  For example, many of these water

910=     control limits that are going on right now are a

911=     result, I understand, of follow-on from the EPA.

912=     But once in a while the State needs to stand up

913=     and get a backbone and say, hey, EPA, this

914=     doesn't make any sense.

915=                  We're now looking at nitrogen level

916=     limits for runoff water that are half the

917=     allowable limits of drinking water.  Does that

918=     make any sense to anybody?  I mean we're trying

919=     to put water runoff into areas that's more pure

920=     than the drinking water that a lot of people
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921=     drink.

922=                  You know, I don't know if this

923=     falls under that area that the Governor was

924=     talking about in reviewing regulations, as far

925=     as burdens on business, but somebody needs to

926=     step back and take a look and say, is there any

927=     practical sense to some of these regulations.

928=                  We're asking for huge expenses of

929=     money here for infinitesimal amounts of

930=     difference, in the nitrogen content, just to use

931=     one example.  And it's not even clear right now

932=     whether those limits are achievable.

933=                  So, with that, enough said.  I hope

934=     somebody puts some common sense into this.

935=     Thank you.

936=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

937=     Mr. Coleman.  Let me just respond to one point

938=     that you raised on the language that's in the

939=     septic regulations, and that is having to do

940=     with property access.  We simply replicated

941=     language that's preexisting in State law.  And

942=     our interpretation of that, for as long as I've

943=     been around, which is considerable, is that we

944=     do not come onto a property for a septic
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945=     inspection without first contacting the owner

946=     and seeking permission.

947=                  If, in the event we believe there

948=     is a public health threat that demands our

949=     immediate action, we can move more swiftly.  But

950=     I would hope that people recognize that we've

951=     exercised that authority with a great deal of

952=     respect over the years, and we plan to continue

953=     to do that.  But thank you for your comments.

954=                  Next I have Bill Moyer.

955=                  MR. MOYER:  Good evening.  My name

956=     is Bill Moyer.  I am president of the Inland

957=     Bays Foundation.  And let me say, before I start

958=     my formal remarks, that the Inland Bays

959=     Foundation has no objection to the

960=     simplification, or making regulations more user

961=     friendly.  We think that there are ways that

962=     that can be done without removing the protection

963=     of the environment that they were intended for.

964=                  That said, let me read in my formal

965=     comments.  As I said, I am president of the

966=     Inland Bays Foundation, which is dedicated to

967=     improving the environmental condition of our

968=     polluted Inland Bays and their surrounding
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969=     watershed.

970=                  Decades of effort by DNREC to

971=     restore the bays to their once swimmable and

972=     fishable state have met with some success, but

973=     real progress has been slowed by resistance from

974=     local organizations and improper land use

975=     decisions made by Sussex County.

976=                  In the mid 1990s, I was a member of

977=     the then-Governor's Task Force on Inland Bays,

978=     and I've served as an expert witness before the

979=     Sussex County Planning and Zoning Commission and

980=     Sussex County Council for Development, that was

981=     not in compliance with Sussex County's land use

982=     plan.

983=                  I was born and raised in Sussex

984=     County.  Although the Inland Bays Foundation

985=     agrees with the intent of Executive Order 36, we

986=     are concerned with some of the language that it

987=     contains.  Specifically, the careful read of the

988=     Order would lead one to believe that

989=     environmental regulations are a deterrent to a

990=     viable economy and to economic growth.  This is

991=     not true.

992=                  Study after study has shown that
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993=     protecting our environment creates jobs, and in

994=     the case of Sussex County, ensures that people

995=     will continue to live, vacation, and recreate

996=     here.

997=                  I have four documents that I would

998=     like to introduce into the record of this

999=     hearing.  The first is a report by the

1000=     Chesapeake Bay Foundation, titled "Debunking The

1001=     'Job Killer' Myth:  How Pollution Limits

1002=     Encourage Jobs in the Chesapeake Bay Region."The

1003=     report shows that there had been a 43 percent

1004=     increase in the number of environmental industry

1005=     jobs in Pennsylvania, Maryland, and Virginia

1006=     over the last three decades.

1007=                  In a ground-breaking article in The

1008=     Scientific American more than 20 years ago, a

1009=     noted Harvard University Business School

1010=     economist concluded that, quote, "Strict

1011=     environmental regulations do not inevitably

1012=     hinder competitive advantages against viable.

1013=     Indeed, they all enhance it."

1014=                   The report concludes, quote,

1015=     "Clean water also will mean more fish, crabs,

1016=     and oysters, which translate to more work and
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1017=     thus, fishermen, processors, packers,

1018=     restaurateurs and people in the tourism-related

1019=     industries.  If history is any guide,

1020=     environmental regulations will once again

1021=     nourish God's creation."

1022=                  My second document is a report

1023=     published on November 8, 2012, by the Public

1024=     News Service.  It also concludes, "Here in this

1025=     report, document after document, research after

1026=     research finding, show that especially in times

1027=     when the economy is slowing down, environmental

1028=     protection stimulates that economy and creates

1029=     jobs."

1030=                  There are those groups in Sussex

1031=     County that would have us believe that positive

1032=     growth means growth without unnecessary

1033=     government interference, and without unnecessary

1034=     environmental regulations.  If they had their

1035=     way, development would occur anywhere, with

1036=     little oversight.  As I have stated, if this

1037=     occurs in Sussex County, this philosophy will

1038=     lead to uncontrolled, unsupportable growth, and

1039=     a deterioration of the quality of life in Sussex

1040=     County.
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1041=                  This has happened and continues to

1042=     happen around the country, with the ultimate

1043=     decline in property values and economic

1044=     hardships.  It's time that we start learning

1045=     from our past mistakes.

1046=                  Whereas, quote, "Number 7 of

1047=     Executive Order 36 indicates a misunderstanding

1048=     of the economics of environmental protection, in

1049=     that it states it is the intent of this Order

1050=     to," quote, "reduce impediments to economic

1051=     growth," close quote, "caused by regulations

1052=     that may be reduced or streamlined."

1053=                  The Executive Order calls for,

1054=     quote, "meaningful public input into the

1055=     regulatory reform process."  I would encourage

1056=     DNREC to give little consideration to any

1057=     comments received at these public hearings that

1058=     do not contain specific analyses of the adverse

1059=     economic impact of the regulation that anyone or

1060=     any group is requesting to be changed or

1061=     limited.

1062=                  It would be irresponsible for DNREC

1063=     to make any changes without sufficient data on

1064=     which to base its decision.  Simply stating that
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1065=     the regulation is bad or is not needed is

1066=     inadequate.

1067=                  For example, I'm introducing a

1068=     document showing suggested changes by a group

1069=     advocating positive growth in Sussex County.  It

1070=     requests the elimination of the nitrogen removal

1071=     standard for small septic systems, removal of

1072=     the 30-day property transfer requirement from

1073=     all septic permits, and the permit transfer

1074=     requirement for dock permits.  There is

1075=     absolutely no supporting documentation on how

1076=     these changes are adversely affecting the

1077=     economy or are hindering growth.

1078=                  Also, why would such a request be

1079=     made when water quality data clearly show that

1080=     the Inland Bays are overloaded with nitrogen,

1081=     leading to algae blooms and subsequent fish

1082=     kills.  The nitrogen discharged into the

1083=     groundwater eventually finds its ways into the

1084=     bays, as studies by the Delaware Geological

1085=     Survey have shown.

1086=                  These pro-growth organizations have

1087=     stated that the Inland Bays are, quote,

1088=     "cleaning themselves up," close quote, and that
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1089=     growth with fewer restrictions will lead to a

1090=     better quality of life for Sussex County

1091=     residents and visitors.

1092=                  Yet no facts or data has ever been

1093=     presented by these groups to substantiate the

1094=     supposed statement of fact.  These statements

1095=     are made for self-serving interests of those

1096=     that benefit financially from unrestricted and

1097=     irresponsible growth.

1098=                  I am sure that you will hear

1099=     similar claims tonight and at the other

1100=     scheduled hearings in Kent and New Castle

1101=     County.  Again, I implore DNREC to consider only

1102=     those changes that can show a conclusive benefit

1103=     to the environment and to the economy of each

1104=     county and the state of Delaware.  This is

1105=     clearly the intent of Executive Order 36.

1106=                  Finally, I would ask that DNREC

1107=     reinstate the collection of subaqueous lands

1108=     fees for structures constructed on public

1109=     subaqueous lands that are generating revenue.

1110=     This was generated by House Bill 360 of the

1111=     General Assembly and adopted by DNREC on June

1112=     30, 1991.  Failure to collect these fees is
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1113=     allowing private parties to build structures on

1114=     State land, charge for the use of the

1115=     structures, and pay no fee to the State for the

1116=     use of State land.

1117=                  This would be similar to allowing

1118=     someone to build a restaurant or concession in a

1119=     State park and not charge a fee.  Failure to

1120=     collect these fees for many years has resulted

1121=     in the loss of millions of dollars in revenue

1122=     that could be used to offset the cost for

1123=     environmental protection in Delaware.

1124=                  I am attaching a copy of this

1125=     document to my testimony.  Thank you for the

1126=     opportunity to comment.

1127=                  THE DEPUTY SECRETARY:  Thank you,

1128=     Mr. Moyer.  Next I have Scott Evans.

1129=                  MR. EVANS:  Tonight what I'm coming

1130=     here for is kind of like a third go around.  I'm

1131=     here for the soil evaluation for private

1132=     individual lots and developments.  There is a

1133=     five-year on there; after five years you have to

1134=     go back and get your lots reevaluated for your

1135=     soil samples.

1136=                  I'm going through that now.  We
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1137=     already had it done, which I bought a

1138=     development, and in the meantime, while I bought

1139=     it, probably after a year, probably when I had

1140=     four years left, that at the end of that time,

1141=     right now, we're having to go back and get all

1142=     the lots done over again.  So we're paying

1143=     double to get lots done, because of the five

1144=     years.

1145=                  In talking with -- as a matter of

1146=     fact, Joe Duke, and some of the others, you

1147=     know, he was the one that said he doesn't agree

1148=     with it.  Soil doesn't change if anything

1149=     doesn't move.  If you have 50 years, that's one

1150=     thing.  But five years.

1151=                  And so, this is about my third go

1152=     around.  The first time, Representative Hocker

1153=     spoke to you a while back and said something to

1154=     you about seeing if something could be done.  In

1155=     the meantime, I spoke again in Dover during one

1156=     of these hearings that you had and I haven't

1157=     heard anything.

1158=                  Now, if it's been changed, I

1159=     haven't heard.  So that's why I'm here tonight,

1160=     to voice my opinion again.  Because this is not

fmt=pb

1161=     right.  I mean five years.  Look, I'm 63 years

1162=     old.  Five years don't take long to roll around.

1163=     It's getting less all the time as I get older.

1164=                  So you know, it needs to be --

1165=     something needs to be done, because now we're

1166=     paying -- I just got one today for you guys

1167=     right in the mail, that we just had done on

1168=     another lot.  So, I mean we're paying double,

1169=     and that's not right.  I mean nothing changes.

1170=     It doesn't go.

1171=                  I think it needs to be extended out

1172=     a little bit longer than -- than five years,

1173=     because it used to be there wasn't no time.  Now

1174=     you got five years.  Five years isn't very long.

1175=     I mean it rolls around in a hurry.

1176=                  I know there's probably -- there's

1177=     a time there -- I guess you can go back, I may

1178=     be wrong -- I think before the five years is up,

1179=     and you can get reevaluated, but I didn't -- I

1180=     wasn't aware of that fact.

1181=                  I'm a builder, contractor/owner.

1182=     But places I've done, I've never ran into this

1183=     before.  I had 38 lots.  Now we're down, because

1184=     the economy is down.  I mean I got 30 some lots.
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1185=     You take that times 4 or $500, after you've

1186=     already spent it, you're doubling your money.

1187=                  So I think something needs to be

1188=     reconsidered in the time limit, to extend it, or

1189=     at least take a little consideration.  Because

1190=     now we're just paying double for what we paid,

1191=     because now we're starting to sell a few lots

1192=     and we're having to pay this out.

1193=                  So, I just wish you could take into

1194=     consideration of extending that, making it

1195=     longer, or whether something -- what can be

1196=     done, or does legislation have to be placed in,

1197=     if it has to change.

1198=                  I met with Senator Hocker, but you

1199=     know, can they do something?  Representative

1200=     Gray is here.  I don't know what can be done,

1201=     whether it be legislative, or extend it, or

1202=     whatever.  But it's not fair, especially someone

1203=     to -- you know, now-a-days young folks are

1204=     trying to get something, some reason somebody

1205=     gives them something, it's been done, all of a

1206=     sudden now they got to pull another $400 out, 5,

1207=     whatever it is, to get something done.

1208=                  So I don't know if there anything
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1209=     has been done, or has it been talked about or

1210=     what.

1211=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  The issue

1212=     that you raise is, I think you previously

1213=     mentioned that you had made some comments on the

1214=     record for the proposal for the on-site

1215=     wastewater regulations.  Is that what I

1216=     understood you to say?

1217=                  MR. EVANS:  Correct.  In other

1218=     words, we've got to go back, and you have to

1219=     start right from the beginning again.

1220=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.

1221=                  MR. EVANS:  Because it's already

1222=     been done -- I mean it's already done.  The soil

1223=     samples is done.  It's all -- you know, it's

1224=     still there.  So now we got to do the same exact

1225=     thing they done five years ago.

1226=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Right.

1227=     So, nothing has changed as of yet.  Those

1228=     regulations are still under review, we're

1229=     reviewing public comment, including your comment

1230=     about the extension of that.  So, I can't

1231=     pre-judge the outcome of that, but we have

1232=     received those comments, and they're under
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1233=     consideration at this point.

1234=                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.

1235=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  But I will

1236=     say two points, I guess.  One is I don't believe

1237=     that legislation is required, necessarily.  I

1238=     think this is a regulatory issue.  And I would

1239=     also say I think it is true, and you probably

1240=     know more than I, that if you at any point

1241=     during that five-year period were to record

1242=     those lots, then that -- you know, you've taken

1243=     care of it at that point.  You don't need to go

1244=     back and get another soil test.  I believe

1245=     that's correct.  But you may have to --

1246=                  MR. EVANS:  You are correct about

1247=     that.  But here's my problem.  The problem is

1248=     that that house, or whatever, once you get that

1249=     recorded, you have to take and put down there

1250=     exactly what the house is going to be, exactly

1251=     where the sewer system is going to be placed.

1252=                  Now, should you get the home and

1253=     somebody wants their lot -- the house on the

1254=     other side of the lot -- which they can do

1255=     that -- you've already told them where they're

1256=     going to put the house.  They have no say-so
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1257=     where it may be.  They may want to place it

1258=     somewheres else other than where you want, and

1259=     it's still eligible to be placed on that piece

1260=     of property.

1261=                  But if you go back and think, a

1262=     little common sense says you still have the same

1263=     situation.  You haven't built on it, you haven't

1264=     done anything.  You still have the same

1265=     situation, whether it's been five years or ten

1266=     years, and you don't go back.  You still have

1267=     the same situation.  That soil hasn't changed.

1268=     Nothing has changed.  The only thing is this

1269=     play on words to do something to have it

1270=     recorded.  Because it says this is where it's

1271=     going.

1272=                  So, you know, it's -- it hasn't

1273=     changed.  Nothing has changed, I mean as far as

1274=     that goes.  It's just all you done is put it on

1275=     a piece of paper to make it look good.  So --

1276=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Okay.

1277=                  MR. EVANS:  Thank you.

1278=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.

1279=     Next I have Larry Mayo.

1280=                  MR. MAYO:  Thank you for having
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1281=     this meeting, and I would like to commend the

1282=     Governor for the one thing that I think he's

1283=     done right, which is looking to simplify some

1284=     regulations.

1285=                  Let me talk to you a little bit

1286=     about my experience with regulations.  And not

1287=     all of them are DNREC's, but some of them are.

1288=     I inherited three lots with two mobile homes on

1289=     them.  Those mobile homes were put on in the

1290=     '60s and '70s.  Okay?  That is my net worth.  I

1291=     make approximately $30,000 a year, and that's

1292=     pretty much what it takes for me to live.  So I

1293=     decided since this was my net worth, and this

1294=     was going to be my retirement plan, that I would

1295=     take those two mobile homes, and since I'm a

1296=     contractor, build houses and sell the houses,

1297=     so -- to get myself a retirement fund.

1298=                  Well, I inherited them in 2006.  At

1299=     that time, that made my net worth about

1300=     $300,000.  The lots.  Thanks to banking

1301=     regulations, the only thing I could borrow money

1302=     to do was build a house.  Thanks to DNREC

1303=     regulations, I couldn't build a house unless I

1304=     put new septic systems in both lots.
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1305=                  Well, the amount of money I could

1306=     borrow on my limited income would not allow for

1307=     that.  So I converted one of them into a class C

1308=     in order to sell it for enough to be able to fix

1309=     up the other one.

1310=                  Well, thanks to the Government

1311=     intrusion in the housing market, that HAS now

1312=     been on the market for three years, and is now

1313=     worth what I owe.  So, even if it sells, I'll

1314=     just be one lot short of what I started.  This

1315=     is how regulations hurt regular people.

1316=                  Now, as far as EPA regulations,

1317=     I've been studying this document for the last

1318=     three years.  I've taken two college courses on

1319=     it.  There is no place in this document, which

1320=     is the Constitution of the United States, that

1321=     gives the Federal government the authority to

1322=     regulate my land or your land.

1323=                  So, the EPA does not have to be

1324=     listened to by the State.  Okay?  Get them to

1325=     show you where in the Constitution they have the

1326=     authority to tell you what water can run off

1327=     your land.  It's not in there.  Believe me.

1328=     I'll read it over and over and over again.
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1329=                  To our State legislators that are

1330=     out here, I'd like to see you guys grow a large

1331=     set of cajones and start taking advantage of the

1332=     Tenth Amendment to the Constitution.  Because

1333=     you guys should have more power over me than

1334=     President Obama and the Congress and the Senate.

1335=     And certainly more than the United Nations and

1336=     their agenda 21.

1337=                  I thank you for your public

1338=     service.  I hope you take this to heart.  Most

1339=     of the regulations implemented over the last ten

1340=     years have done a lot to hurt the small guy.

1341=     You can't burn leaves, the trash company won't

1342=     take them.  I don't know what you're supposed to

1343=     do with them.  I just let them lay on my land

1344=     and rot.

1345=                  Thank you.

1346=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1347=     Mr. Mayo.  Next I have Rich Collins.

1348=                  MR. COLLINS:  Thank you, Dave.  I

1349=     thank the Department for being here tonight, and

1350=     I'm sure you understand no comments are

1351=     personal, certainly not from me.  I'm trying to

1352=     get to the heart of this Executive Order 36, the
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1353=     whole point of it.

1354=                  Back in 2008, we had something

1355=     happen in the economy.  I think most of us know

1356=     about it.  It wasn't good.  I think DNREC knows

1357=     about it, because I know your budget has shrunk,

1358=     and I believe you lost some employees due to

1359=     some of that, correct?

1360=                  All right.  So, people in -- out in

1361=     constituent land are in the same position.  My

1362=     understanding is that underemployment, if you

1363=     have unemployment and underemployment, we're

1364=     somewhere -- these are different numbers, but

1365=     maybe 18, 19 percent.  Very, very high rate of

1366=     unemployment for young people, and some forecast

1367=     that it could be getting much worse.

1368=                  I have an economic report here,

1369=     it's actually a subscription I pay for, talks

1370=     about the demographic hurricane coming towards

1371=     us, with folks aging, and the incredible burden

1372=     we're going to face paying for Social Security

1373=     and Medicare.

1374=                  In short, there is a Federal

1375=     government sponsored study that I've found, and

1376=     you can find any number of them, that basically
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1377=     indicates we're probably looking at, if we don't

1378=     do exactly the right things, a declining

1379=     standard of living.  For a long time now.

1380=                  And so, I'm hoping that the whole

1381=     concept of Executive Order 36 is to realize that

1382=     Delaware has to compete with other states and

1383=     other countries.  Otherwise, we're going to have

1384=     a decline.  And as I think has been demonstrated

1385=     here on more than one occasion tonight, there

1386=     are certain things that are costing people more

1387=     money, in my opinion, than probably needs to be

1388=     spent.

1389=                  I wanted to address the EPA real

1390=     quickly, before I forget.  I know that you are

1391=     under tremendous pressure from the EPA.  But I

1392=     go to about as many DNREC meetings as anybody

1393=     who's not a professional, you know, doing

1394=     business with you on a daily basis.  I don't

1395=     really hear much transparency in terms of what

1396=     you really do have to deal with.

1397=                  Now, I know Attorney General

1398=     Cuccinelli in Virginia, the EPA told Virginia

1399=     that they had to pay -- I think it was billions

1400=     of dollars, to prevent stormwater runoff.  He
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1401=     sued.  He, through the Virginia Department of

1402=     Transportation and Fairfax County, I believe.

1403=     And the Supreme Court of the United States just

1404=     ruled that they were right, and that EPA had no

1405=     authority to regulate water flow through the

1406=     Clean Water Act, water runoff.

1407=                  And so, I believe that's going to

1408=     go to the heart of Delaware's pending stormwater

1409=     regulations.  I -- I sincerely hope -- I'm

1410=     frustrated in that when I go to a meeting that's

1411=     a joint meeting with EPA and DNREC, and Delaware

1412=     citizens, that I feel some of your employees

1413=     feel like they're more beholden to the EPA than

1414=     they are to their citizens that pay their

1415=     salaries.  Now I hope I'm wrong on that, but

1416=     that's the impression I get sometimes.  And I

1417=     just really -- I hope they're on our side first.

1418=                  Also, let me make one comment about

1419=     the thing about being on property without

1420=     warrants.  I'm the one that publicized that, as

1421=     much as anyone.  I did do my best, every time I

1422=     said it, I think, to make it clear that it is

1423=     State law.  What I see is different this time is

1424=     that in this new septic regulation, it's obvious
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1425=     the Department is very anxious to force people

1426=     to have a type of system that performs so poorly

1427=     that it has to be inspected twice a year.

1428=                  And I think it's obvious, based on

1429=     that and other things, that they expect a lot of

1430=     breakdowns.  And I believe it's obvious that

1431=     they're expecting to have to take action more

1432=     than in the past.

1433=                  And I would also say that I get

1434=     great discomfort reading those new septic

1435=     regulations.  And in fact, I put together a

1436=     little paragraph describing what someone selling

1437=     our home would have to explain to their buyer,

1438=     you know, in the form of disclosure.  It almost

1439=     looks like some aspects of those regulations are

1440=     designed to prevent -- or discourage freedom

1441=     using their rural properties.

1442=                  And so, it's not so much the words

1443=     which, as you point out, are identical to what's

1444=     in State law.  It's why are they being, for the

1445=     first time, put into regulation, in conjunction

1446=     with the whole big picture look of how these

1447=     regulations look?

1448=                  Now, I think probably more
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1449=     important than the particulars of a lot of

1450=     regulations is the process.  You know,

1451=     businesses need three things.  They need to know

1452=     what the rules are, they need to know roughly

1453=     how long it's going to take to get through the

1454=     process, and they have to know that if they

1455=     actually follow the rules, that at the end of

1456=     the process they probably will get the prize.

1457=                  We've had some testimony here from

1458=     folks tonight making it clear that they don't

1459=     feel that the process is clear and defined.

1460=     Furthermore, there is no doubt in my mind that

1461=     DNREC is making some fundamental mistakes in

1462=     application of State law.

1463=                  The main one, let's talk about

1464=     these 30-day requirements to transfer a permit.

1465=     I see two reasons why that's not legal.  Number

1466=     one, there is a -- there has been a very deep

1467=     precedent set by the Delaware Supreme Court that

1468=     DNREC regulations cannot override State law.

1469=     And a lawsuit that was settled recently made

1470=     very clear that that's the case.  And there is

1471=     an entire title of State law that has to do with

1472=     property transfers, I think it's Title 25, but
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1473=     it's right there, whatever it is.

1474=                  Well, there isn't one word of DNREC

1475=     having any sort of veto power over that process

1476=     whatsoever in State law.  Nor, when you read

1477=     DNREC's operating authority, is there any hint

1478=     that they would have control in any way of a

1479=     real estate settlement process.  So on that

1480=     basis, I'm pretty confident it's not a legal

1481=     thing to do.

1482=                  The other reason, though, however,

1483=     is more fundamental, even.  Because regulations

1484=     are created through something called the

1485=     Administrative Procedures Act.  It's a State

1486=     law, Title 29, Chapter 101.  First of all, I

1487=     want to read the definition of a regulation.

1488=     Regulation.  Means "Any statement of law,

1489=     procedure, policy, right, requirement, or

1490=     prohibition formulated and promulgated by an

1491=     agency as a rule or standard or as a guide for

1492=     the decision of the cases there -- thereafter by

1493=     it or by any other agency, authority, or court."

1494=                  Now, the point is, anything you do,

1495=     anything that affects a citizen, forces them to

1496=     do something in a legal manner, is defined as a
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1497=     regulation.  So, how do regulations get created?

1498=     If you look under -- bear with me.  Too many

1499=     pages.  Oh, shoot.  I don't see it.  Here's what

1500=     it says, I know what it says.  You have to

1501=     publish the regulation in the State Register,

1502=     State Register of Regulations, you have to hold

1503=     a public hearing, and then the Secretary has to

1504=     formally adopt the regulation.  Those three

1505=     things have to happen.

1506=                  I checked the existing septic

1507=     regulations.  I do not -- oh.  And by the way,

1508=     this language of being 30 days prior to

1509=     settlement, written permission from DNREC,

1510=     that's being put on septic permits right now.  I

1511=     just spoke to another gentleman today.  He

1512=     looked at his septic regulation -- permit that

1513=     he just got recently.  I said I'll bet you're

1514=     going to find that language on it.  Look for it.

1515=     He didn't know anything about it, even though

1516=     the guy is pretty sophisticated.

1517=                  He looks around and says, oh, here

1518=     it is.  Last item.  He read it, word for word.

1519=     That's never been approved in a regulation

1520=     legally.

fmt=pb

1521=                  I would go so far as to say this:

1522=     If a person walks into any State agency and they

1523=     are told we don't do it that way anymore, and if

1524=     they cannot point to a regulation approved by

1525=     their Secretary, they've broken State law.

1526=     Folks, you should be able to find the rules

1527=     before you go into any given agency, and you

1528=     should know -- I'm telling you, you can ask them

1529=     for site-specific concerns, of course, but you

1530=     should in a general sense know exactly what's

1531=     going to be required of you if you look it up,

1532=     and right now you don't.

1533=                  So, I think that's really

1534=     fundamental.  That -- I believe that also

1535=     applies to the boat dock that were brought up.

1536=     That does not have that 30-day requirement, but

1537=     it does make that business personal.  So, I

1538=     would ask -- I would urge DNREC to look at these

1539=     things, make sure that they're following the

1540=     rules they have to follow.

1541=                  Finally I'll say this:  Sometimes I

1542=     wish DNREC would be more forthcoming with the

1543=     data they have available to them.  A few years

1544=     ago I was in your office in Dover, and one of
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1545=     their employees handed me a USGS publication,

1546=     and at the time, we happened to be engaged

1547=     pretty heavily in another regulation.  I won't

1548=     get specific about it.  Well, the USGS -- U.S.

1549=     Geological Survey made it pretty clear that what

1550=     DNREC had been saying was the source of the

1551=     pollution problem was not the problem.  In fact,

1552=     it overwhelmingly made that case.  And so, I

1553=     simply pointed it out to the folks involved, and

1554=     you could see that it was -- that report

1555=     suddenly became radioactive.

1556=                  This concept that septic systems

1557=     are like the worst thing that can happen to

1558=     anything, polluting the Inland Bays, folks, in

1559=     my opinion, based on reading quite a few

1560=     technical documents, is not backed up by fact.

1561=     And I believe there are many other things that

1562=     could be done that could have far more positive

1563=     impact on the environment than just forcing

1564=     people to spend 20, 25,000.  I have a quote from

1565=     five years ago on a septic system, 20 -- almost

1566=     $22,000.  And I want to point out that in the

1567=     rural areas, many of the folks that are required

1568=     to spend this kind of money are some of the
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1569=     folks who can least afford it.

1570=                  And I would also say, given the

1571=     state of the economy and the outlook for the

1572=     future, the concept that DNREC is going to give

1573=     everybody money that can't afford it is a little

1574=     shaky, too.  At the very time when you're laying

1575=     off people because you don't have enough money,

1576=     where did that idea come that we just find a

1577=     whole bunch of other money and fork it out to

1578=     people, just so they can put a whole bunch of

1579=     money into the septic system that's going to

1580=     break down, and that over a long period of time

1581=     is going to show a virtually unmeasurable

1582=     difference in what's being done right now?

1583=                  So, to conclude, attitude,

1584=     attitude.  I'm hoping that everybody in this

1585=     State government understands the world has

1586=     changed.  We are either going to -- and you

1587=     know, this is the other discouraging thing.  I'm

1588=     not aware of one single regulation in this

1589=     State -- maybe it's happened, but I don't know

1590=     of it -- that specifically somebody says, you

1591=     know what?  People can't afford this anymore.

1592=     Let's find a cheaper way.  Even though we are
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1593=     all dramatically poorer.

1594=                  I mean we had one man mention his

1595=     financial situation.  I can tell you right now

1596=     the real estate that I own has declined, and I'm

1597=     just a homeowner.  You know, I've got a house

1598=     and a couple rental houses.  I would guarantee

1599=     you my property values have declined by 3 or

1600=     $400,000, along with my net worth.  That's

1601=     happened to virtually everybody in Delaware.

1602=                  So, why isn't our State government

1603=     approaching this problem with that mindset; that

1604=     we all need to pull in our belt and figure how

1605=     to be successful going forward.  Thank you.

1606=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1607=     Mr. Collins.  Next I have John Burton.

1608=                  MR. NEWLIN:  Thank you for calling

1609=     on me.  I got a little different concept than

1610=     what's going on tonight.  In fact -- I'm getting

1611=     to an age myself, I'm going to put my glasses

1612=     on.  As a member of one of the boards of the

1613=     State of Delaware, we were notified that maybe

1614=     we should attend these hearings, in case

1615=     something comes before us that would have some

1616=     effect on it.
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1617=                  As a member of the Delaware

1618=     Industrial Control Board, I received

1619=     notification from the Governor's office

1620=     regarding this public hearing, and would like to

1621=     present the following ideals, ideas, for

1622=     consideration.

1623=                  As present owner of 160 acres of

1624=     land on the western side of Rehoboth Bay, the

1625=     east side of this property runs approximately

1626=     2000 feet of the waters of Rehoboth Bay, known

1627=     as John S. and Samuel J. Burton Farm Preserve.

1628=                  I observed the erosion problems

1629=     that affected the property over the last ten

1630=     years.  I'm sure many other property owners also

1631=     have the same concerns.  One of my main concerns

1632=     is the lack of funding to DNREC and the Federal

1633=     government on lands owned by private individuals

1634=     and reserved dynasties.  I feel that this

1635=     funding program should be reviewed and be

1636=     brought up to date regarding the high cost

1637=     incurred by land owners.

1638=                  My second concern is the flow of

1639=     water coming into Rehoboth Bay never being

1640=     restricted in any way.  The dredging on many
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1641=     dead-end lagoons and long prongs of the

1642=     waterways in Rehoboth Bay have been an

1643=     environmental issue, which I feel should be

1644=     reviewed.

1645=                  The lack of dredging, in my

1646=     opinion, is causing the areas that are available

1647=     for the influx of the water to be much smaller,

1648=     and we are still receiving the same or more

1649=     amounts of water from the ocean and other

1650=     tributaries from the Delaware Bay.  Example,

1651=     very simple.  Take a 12-ounce cup of coffee, put

1652=     2 two ounces of sand and mud, and you're going

1653=     to get 10 ounces of coffee in it.

1654=                  I believe the dredging program

1655=     should have some type of committee review, or we

1656=     should involve an environmental study of the

1657=     possibilities of restricting the flow of water

1658=     into Rehoboth Bay.  It seems to me that if we

1659=     cut or slow 10 to 20 percent of the intake of

1660=     the water coming into the bay in a seven-hour

1661=     period, it would help to control the level of

1662=     the flooding of the water.

1663=                  As a property owner, I've spent

1664=     thousands and thousands of dollars on shoreline
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1665=     erosion control.  I wish to say that I am not

1666=     criticizing DNREC.  In fact, I have a very good

1667=     working relationship with the agency, in trying

1668=     to protect the shoreline.  However, it is hard

1669=     to continue to do environmental work such as

1670=     erosion control without some assistance from the

1671=     State or Federal government, as a private

1672=     reserve owner -- preserve.

1673=                  Thank you for the opportunity to

1674=     share my concerns regarding Executive Order 36.

1675=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1676=     Mr. Burton.

1677=                  MR. BURTON:  And I would like to

1678=     leave a copy with you.

1679=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Great.

1680=     Thank you.  Next I have Dave Jacobs.

1681=                  MR. JACOBSON:  Unless we can

1682=     discuss ethanol and the gas, that kind of thing,

1683=     I might as well pass.  Is that open for

1684=     discussion?  We got a Federal -- we have a

1685=     legislator here.

1686=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You know,

1687=     ethanol is a Federal issue.  It's not a State

1688=     issue, from a regulatory point of view.  I'm
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1689=     happy to talk with you afterwards, if that's

1690=     okay.

1691=                  MR. JACOBS:  Okay.  Well --

1692=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Or if you

1693=     can -- we're almost wrapping it up, so go ahead.

1694=                  MR. JACOBS:  I'll just take a

1695=     minute of your time.  We have a State

1696=     Representative, they did bring up Congress and

1697=     the Constitution and all of that.

1698=                  I buy gas here in Millsboro, and

1699=     it's got 10 percent ethanol.  And that's

1700=     regulated because Philadelphia has a pollution

1701=     problem.  We're all paying through the nose

1702=     here.  When I go to another state, like ten

1703=     miles away to Pittsville, Maryland, the gas

1704=     there has less than 10 percent ethanol.  It's

1705=     whatever Maryland dictates.  And I get like 50,

1706=     52 miles a gallon on my motorcycle.  With

1707=     Delaware gas I'm getting about 48.

1708=                  Now that's a motorcycle.  So now

1709=     transcribe that to your SUVs, and how much

1710=     you're putting into your gas tanks, and et

1711=     cetera.  It's a Federal issue, but America and

1712=     the Federal systems got to start with the little
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1713=     individual citizen.  So, I'm here.

1714=                  The EPA has some influence.  It

1715=     doesn't come down -- maybe it goes up from your

1716=     end, you speak to Federal EPA people.  And

1717=     Mr. Representative, there it is.  I may not even

1718=     be in your district, but I'm sure if you have a

1719=     constituency that lives in Delaware, they

1720=     probably would like to get a better performance

1721=     out of the car.  We're talking about the water

1722=     and boating and fishing.  I know the boats are

1723=     lined up at the gas stations in Maryland,

1724=     because the ethanol screws up the gas, screws up

1725=     the gas tanks in boats.  So, anyone that can

1726=     alleviate and help these problems, that would be

1727=     great.

1728=                  The other thing I noticed, what the

1729=     EPA, or maybe DNREC, when I moved down here in

1730=     '96, this place was full of chicken farms.  A

1731=     lot of people, chicken farms, a lot of people

1732=     working.  And they say it's the economy.

1733=                  They came down with rules.  My

1734=     neighbor had four chicken houses, and it was

1735=     bustling, every six weeks, new chickens coming

1736=     in, more chickens going out.
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1737=                  And then suddenly, what happened?

1738=     He said, well, they've got some new regulations,

1739=     I've got to put like $200,000 worth of something

1740=     to fix it up, because perhaps of some runoff or

1741=     whatever it was.

1742=                  And they -- chicken farms have all

1743=     dried up.  You don't have to drive very far from

1744=     this location here to see the chicken farms that

1745=     have dried up.  The small farmer has -- who

1746=     couldn't afford a couple hundred thousand

1747=     dollars to fix it up, they've gone into

1748=     retirement, or whatever.

1749=                  Now, I -- I'm going to say it had

1750=     to have been regulations, because I used to eat

1751=     as much in 1969 -- '96, when I came here, and I

1752=     don't think people have stopped eating.  So,

1753=     where are they getting their chickens from?  You

1754=     can go to Maryland and get chickens, or other

1755=     states.  But I know Delaware's chicken output

1756=     must be a lot less.

1757=                  And whatever the EPA, DNREC can do

1758=     to improve that, and maybe drop a lot of

1759=     regulations.  Apparently some of them aren't --

1760=     they aren't coming out the way they were
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1761=     described, to be bad for the environment.  I

1762=     don't know.  But I live next to a chicken farm.

1763=     My water's fine.  It was fine before, it's fine

1764=     now.  You know.

1765=                  Thank you for your time, and I hope

1766=     I wasn't too far off the track.  Thank you very

1767=     much.

1768=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1769=     Mr. Jacobs.  Next I have Stephanie Herron.

1770=                  MS. HERRON:  My name is Stephanie

1771=     Herron.  I'm with the Delaware chapter of the

1772=     Sierra Club, and we have some comments to offer,

1773=     but I will have some more formal comments

1774=     written or at a later hearing.

1775=                  I would first like to say that we

1776=     completely agree and echo everything that

1777=     Mr. Moyer and the Inland Bay Foundation said

1778=     about environmental regulations not being bad

1779=     for jobs.

1780=                  And I also have something to say.

1781=     The Delaware chapter of the Sierra Club has been

1782=     monitoring the DNREC and State public meeting

1783=     web calendars in an effort to notify our members

1784=     of the times and locations of the DNREC
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1785=     regulation review hearings under Executive Order

1786=     36.  We could find no notice on either site of

1787=     this or the following two public hearings until

1788=     today, January 7th, 2013.  And we find it

1789=     extremely troublesome that such an important

1790=     meeting as this would be held with less than 24

1791=     hours notice to the residents of Sussex County

1792=     who are not on the DNREC mailing list, who went

1793=     out on the e-mail list.

1794=                  In order to remedy this series

1795=     oversight, we request that the public comment

1796=     period be extended from March 1, 2013, as the

1797=     end, to April 1, 2013.  Thank you.

1798=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1799=     Ms. Herron.  Next I have Henry Glowiak as a

1800=     maybe.  Are you a yes or are you a no,

1801=     Mr. Glowiak, if you're still with us?  Sorry if

1802=     I've pronounced that -- done an injustice to

1803=     that.  No?  Not with us.  Okay.

1804=                  Sam Wilson.  Okay.  He may be in

1805=     the lobby.  So, somebody's going to go see if

1806=     Sam wants to --

1807=                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  How are you

1808=     doing?
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1809=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  How are

1810=     you, sir.

1811=                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  I don't believe

1812=     I put my name on to speak, but I do have one

1813=     comment.  I believe that the -- that any

1814=     regulation that any agency, I don't care who it

1815=     is, Natural Resources or DelDOT, whoever, that's

1816=     put regulations upon the public, the general

1817=     public, that this regulation, you've come up

1818=     with the ideas before it can be finally

1819=     approved, it must go to the General Assembly.

1820=                  They are the ones who make it, and

1821=     they should be the ones responsible for every

1822=     regulation.  And if they're not doing the job

1823=     right, the general public has to know about

1824=     this, and they have the right to vote them out.

1825=     If bureaucrats continue to make regulations, all

1826=     we can do is we can fuss.  You can't really be

1827=     replaced, or neither can anyone else.

1828=                  So, my recommendation is, let's put

1829=     this -- these regulations back in to the people

1830=     that should be responsible.  Those are the

1831=     legislators.  And let them tell you at the final

1832=     that it's improved or not approved.
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1833=                  If it's important enough to levy

1834=     fines and regulations, it's important enough for

1835=     them to vote on.

1836=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you

1837=     Councilman Wilson.  The last thing I have signed

1838=     up, and we'll go back out and see if anybody has

1839=     any final thoughts that they want to share, or

1840=     if folks have been here and decided that they

1841=     would like to share something with us.

1842=     Mr. Cramer.

1843=                  MR. CRAMER:  I believe I'm signed

1844=     in.

1845=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  You are.

1846=                  MR. CRAMER:  Okay.

1847=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  I have a

1848=     note that said you wanted to have the last word,

1849=     and it turned out you were last on the list,

1850=     so --

1851=                  MR. CRAMER:  Well, it didn't really

1852=     matter.  I just didn't want to be the first one.

1853=     I wanted to see what the others had to say

1854=     first.  My name is Dan Cramer.  Can you actually

1855=     hear me, or do you need me to get closer to the

1856=     mike?
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1857=                  Well, I'll tell you what.  How do

1858=     you not start a business?  DNREC.  That's how

1859=     you don't start a business.  A couple years

1860=     ago -- it had to have been more than three years

1861=     ago, because my face got messed up, so it had to

1862=     be more than three years ago when I was in a

1863=     meeting and I said you know how you solve this

1864=     problem.  I wanted to get into business for this

1865=     particular problem, and it would have helped the

1866=     environment.

1867=                  But then I was told, oh, you can't

1868=     do that without a permit from DNREC, because it

1869=     has a diesel engine on it.  So in order to do

1870=     this, in order for me to pollute the air, I had

1871=     to kiss DNREC.  And that's one person, people,

1872=     or whatever, I'm not going to kiss.

1873=                  So therefore, the business is not

1874=     going to start.  And it would have.  The machine

1875=     itself costs about $250,000.  Another building

1876=     would have had to have been put up, and trucks

1877=     bought.  Would have been about a half a million

1878=     dollars.  And in fact, five guys would have had

1879=     jobs.

1880=                  But do you think I'm going to
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1881=     invest $500,000 and they're going to tell me

1882=     when I can start the motor, when I have to shut

1883=     it off?  And if you don't believe so, go watch

1884=     the advertising in the fine print, generally on

1885=     a Sunday in The News Journal.  And you'll see

1886=     where somebody wants to use a diesel engine, and

1887=     they'll say, oh, so many pounds of X, so many

1888=     pounds of Y, and so many pounds of Z is going to

1889=     be put out.  And this is regulated, and you will

1890=     not be permitted to put out more.

1891=                  And I'll tell you what actually

1892=     happened.  This is a true story.  Delaware

1893=     Electric put a diesel engine to their plant, to

1894=     their headquarters.  Wanting to use it as a

1895=     backup when electric went off and they needed

1896=     more electric.  They were flat-out told, don't

1897=     start that engine.  Now, did they change

1898=     anything since then?  Don't know.  Don't really

1899=     care.

1900=                  The whole thing is a bunch of crap,

1901=     because that little bit of pollution that I

1902=     wanted to put out, I would have offset it by

1903=     reducing the pollution of what I was going to

1904=     remove.  But I'm not going to -- I'd rather take
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1905=     that $500,000 and just stick it in a bank, get

1906=     that 1 percent.  I'd be way ahead of the game.

1907=                  And now that's going to talk a

1908=     little bit about septic tanks.  These same

1909=     septic tanks that they want to now bring in

1910=     here, 15 years ago they wouldn't even approve

1911=     them.  Why not?  Because they said they didn't

1912=     work.

1913=                  When the fact of the matter was, in

1914=     Ohio they were being used and the water was not

1915=     putting to the ground.  It was actually put

1916=     right along the driveway and that, and the

1917=     longer roads.  And I said how in the world can

1918=     you do that?  The health department approved it.

1919=     That's how good the water was.

1920=                  And by the way, all these Inland

1921=     Bay people here that are so hepped up, the best

1922=     thing you guys could do in the Inland Bays area,

1923=     move out of there.  Because then that pollution

1924=     won't be there, because you're the ones

1925=     polluting it.  Thank you.

1926=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1927=     Mr. Cramer.  I don't have any other folks signed

1928=     up to speak.  Is there anyone who would like to
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1929=     speak who hasn't?  Is there anyone who would

1930=     like to speak again?

1931=                  COUNCILMAN WILSON:  Me.  I got one

1932=     comment.  I don't need to come up there, but --

1933=     Sam Wilson.  I'd like to make one quick comment.

1934=     Sulfur has been removed from fuel oil, diesel

1935=     fuel, and a lot of money's been spent, a lot of

1936=     regulations.  At this point in time, farmers are

1937=     buying sulfur to put on their farms.  We're just

1938=     actually wasting people's money to do -- or take

1939=     away sulfur out of fuel.  And it's only got

1940=     worse since now we've taken sulfur out of fuel.

1941=     Before, we did get some natural sulfur, things

1942=     like that, that would come back on the soil.

1943=     But now we're short on sulfur.

1944=                  So, it's just a comment.  Let us

1945=     know what -- how some things -- the EPA has

1946=     screwed up a lot of things, and it's cost us a

1947=     lot of money, and it doesn't amount to a hill of

1948=     beans, and that made things worse.  Thank you.

1949=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you.

1950=     Mr. Moyer.

1951=                  MR. MOYER:  Again, president of the

1952=     Inland Bays Foundation.  I would like to remind
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1953=     the commenters and DNREC that Executive Order 36

1954=     was very specific on what regulations are going

1955=     to be reviewed, and those are regulations that

1956=     are older than three years.  And much of the

1957=     testimony tonight has been on regulations that

1958=     have been proposed within the last three years.

1959=                  So, I would request that the

1960=     Department stick with the requirements of the

1961=     Executive Order, and/or get clarification as to

1962=     whether or not it's going to look at regulations

1963=     that have been adopted after that three-year

1964=     limit, and would urge them to stick with the

1965=     intent of Executive Order 36.  Thank you.

1966=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1967=     Mr. Moyer.  Mr. Wheatley.

1968=                  MR. WHEATLEY:  My name is Bob

1969=     Wheatley, and I would ask that you would allow

1970=     common sense to prevail, and respect the

1971=     comments of every person here who bothered to

1972=     give up their time to show up, whether it was a

1973=     regulation three years old, one year old, or a

1974=     regulation yet to be promulgated.

1975=                  DEPUTY SECRETARY SMALL:  Thank you,

1976=     sir.  Seeing no other hands, I wanted to take a
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1977=     moment to thank all of you for coming, and

1978=     either sharing your thoughts or coming to

1979=     listen.  I appreciate the respect with which you

1980=     delivered your comments, the thought that you've

1981=     provided behind those.

1982=                  And I would just say this:  I also

1983=     heard a number of issues that are examples that

1984=     people brought to the microphone.  There is a

1985=     larger regulatory context behind most of them,

1986=     but if you're -- I would encourage you, if

1987=     you're having issues, and maybe you've tried and

1988=     this didn't work for you, but you know, working

1989=     with the agency, as Representative Gray

1990=     mentioned earlier, to try and solve issues and

1991=     navigate through some of these regulatory

1992=     hurdles, you know, we do a pretty good job if we

1993=     are given the opportunity.

1994=                  We don't always get it right, and I

1995=     understand that, but I would just encourage you

1996=     all to reach out to the agency and let us know

1997=     what your challenges are.  We might be able to

1998=     help you.  Not to say that there isn't a

1999=     regulatory issue behind that, but you know, we

2000=     spend a lot of time working with constituents
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2001=     and the regulated community to try and both be

2002=     protective and responsible and reasonable.

2003=                  So with that I will stop, and

2004=     again, thank you all.  And remember, we have

2005=     additional hearings.  Right now the public

2006=     comment period is open until March 1.

2007=     Ms. Herron, your request will be taken under

2008=     advisement.

2009=                  So, thank you all again.

2010=                  (Hearing concluded at 7:55 p.m.)
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